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CITY OF COCKBURN

MINUTES OF AUDIT & STRATEGIC FINANCE COMMITTEE 

HELD ON THURSDAY, 16 NOVEMBER 2017 AT 6:00 PM

PRESENT: 

ELECTED MEMBERS

Mr KAllen 

Mr L Howlett 

Mrs C Reeve-Fowkes 

Mr M Separovich 
Mr S Portelli

Councillor (Presiding Member) 

Mayor 
Councillor 

Councillor 

Councillor

IN ATTENDANCE

Mr S Cain 

Mr D Green 

Mr S Downing 
Mr D Arndt 

Mr C Sullivan 

Mrs M Tobin 

Mr J Ngoroyemoto

Chief Executive Officer 

Director Governance & Community Services 

Director Finance & Corporate Services 

Director Planning & Development 
Director Engineering & Works 

Executive Manager, Strategy & Civic Support 
Governance & Risk Management Co- 

ordinator 

Governance & Risk Support OfficerMrs B Pinto

1. DECLARATION OF MEETING

The Chief Executive Officer declared the meeting open at 6:02pm and 

welcomed all those present.

The Chief Executive Officer advised the meeting that he had received one 
nomination from Cr Kevin Allen for the position of Presiding Member. He 

called for any further nominations. No further nominations were received.

2. APPOINTMENT OF PRESIDING MEMBER (If required)

The Chief Executive Officer declared Cr Kevin Allen as Presiding Member.

Cr Allen assumed the role of Presiding Member.
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The Presiding Member welcomed Mr Toni Macri, Partner and Mr Suren 

Herathmudalige, Senior Audit Manager from Macri Partner, Council’s External 

Auidotrs

3. DISCLAIMER (Read aloud by Presiding Member)

Members of the public, who attend Council Meetings, should not act 

immediately on anything they hear at the Meetings, without first seeking 
clarification of Council’s position. Persons are advised to wait for written 

advice from the Council prior to taking action on any matter that they may 
have before Council.

4. ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF RECEIPT OF WRITTEN 

DECLARATIONS OF FINANCIAL INTERESTS AND CONFLICT 

OF INTEREST (by Presiding Member)

Nil

5. APOLOGIES & LEAVE OF ABSENCE

Deputy Mayor Lee-Anne Smith Apology

6. PUBLIC QUESTION TIME

Nil

7. CONFIRMATION OF MINUTES

7.1 (2017/MINUTE NO 0001) MINUTES OF THE AUDIT & 
STRATEGIC FINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING - 20/07/2017 

RECOMMENDATION 

That Committee confirms the Minutes of the Audit & Strategic 
Finance Committee Meeting held on Thursday, 20 July 2017 as a 

true and accurate record.

COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION 

MOVED Cr S Portelli SECONDED Cr M Separovich 
That the recommendation be adopted.

CARRIED 5/0

[[]5 of 174

Version: 4, Version Date: 20/04/2022
Document Set ID: 6859306



ASFC 16/11/2017

8. DEPUTATIONS

Nil.

9. PETITIONS

Nil.

10. BUSINESS LEFT OVER FROM PREVIOUS MEETING (IF 
ADJOURNED)

Nil

11. DECLARATION BY MEMBERS WHO HAVE NOT GIVEN DUE 

CONSIDERATION TO MATTERS CONTAINED IN THE 

BUSINESS PAPER PRESENTED BEFORE THE MEETING

Nil

AT THIS POINT IN THE MEETING, THE TIME BEING 6:07 PM THE 

FOLLOWING ITEMS WERE CARRIED BY ’EN BLOC’ RESOLUTION OF 

COUNCIL

12.2 14.2 

14.3
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12. COUNCIL MATTERS

12.1 (2017/MINUTE NO 0002) RISK MANAGEMENT INFORMATION 
UPDATE

Author(s) 

Attachments

J Ngoroyemoto 

1. Draft Risk Management Framework 
2. High/Extreme Risks Quarterly Report

RECOMMENDATION 

That Council:

(1) receive the risk management information report; and 

(2) endorse the proposed Risk Management Framework as shown in 

the attachment to the Agenda.

COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION 

MOVED Cr C Reeve-Fowkes SECONDED Cr S Portelli

That the recommendation be adopted.

CARRIED 5/0

Background

The City’s Risk Program, is committed to a culture of risk management, 
to ensuring that sound risk management practices and procedures are 

fully integrated into its strategic and operational processes and day to 

day business practices. The City is progressing in implementing the 

Risk Program, and this report provides an update on the key milestones 

achieved over the past 4 months since the last information report was 

submitted to the Audit Committee.

The purpose of this report is to provide an overview of the current and 

planned risk management activities by the City of Cockburn, 

incorporating the Status of the City Business Continuity Management 

Program.

Submission

N/A
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Report

This Risk Report covers the months of August to November 2017 and 

outlines the risk and business continuity management activities 

undertaken during these months.

Risk Management Program;

Update on High and Extreme Risks

As at 31 October 2017, 25 Strategic Risks and 220 Operational risks 

currently sit on the City’s Risk Registers.

Nil EXTREME risks

5 HIGH risks

16 SUBSTANTIAL risks

132 MODERATE risks

67 LOW risks

These risks are monitored and reviewed in priority of the risk rating 
level as per the City of Cockburn risk treatment levels. Updates on the 
identified HIGH/EXTREME are attached to the report.

Risk Profile

All of the City’s risk information is continuously reviewed by the risk 

owners in Risk Management & Safety System (RMSS). The distribution 
of risk ratings for both strategic and operational risks throughout the 

organisation is shown in the following risk matrix and pie chart. The pie 
chart demonstrates the overall image of the City’s risk categorised into 

Low, Moderate, Substantial, High and Extreme risks. The City is 

proactively managing its risks with no Extreme risks identified and only 
1.94% rated as High. The distribution of the risk ratings is likely going to 

change as the City transitions through the risk maturity levels and 
continues to review all operational and strategic risks.
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Figure 2: Risk Matrix - This matrix maps out the distribution of risks 

within the City’s Risk Matrix.
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Significant impact making it unlikely for the organisation to achieve 
its objectives. capability of the organisationRisk Treatment 
Eliminated. Requires treatment to eliminate risk. Fonnal 
assessment and action plan prepared. 

Significant impact making it difficult for organisation to achieve 

objectives Will diminish capability of organisation. Risk Treatment 

mitigate. Risk requires treatment to mitigate impact FoonaI 
assessment and action plan prepared. 
Will Impact on the ability of organisation to achieve objectives or will 
diminish capability. Risk Treatment: Accepted with detailed review 
and assessment. Action Plan prepared. 

May Impact on the ability of organisation to achieve objectives or 

may diminish capability. Risk Treatment: Accepted with review. 

Little or no impact on the achievement of objectives or 
capability Risk Treatment: Accepted without detailed review. 
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Management Control Reviews

The City has undertaken its annual control review audits, whereby 
random risks are selected from each directorate and all controls 

associated with these risks are scrutinised, tested and verified to 

confirm the effectiveness of the controls in place to controlling the risk. 
The controls reports and results for each directorate were presented to 
the November Directors meeting.
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The results of the control reviews provided confidence to the Executive 

Team, that key risks have adequate controls in place and that these 

controls are adequate. These validates that the Administration has 

instructive and practical mitigation strategies, and monitors the status 
and the validity of all existing controls.

Risk Management Framework

Council at its Delegated Authorities, Policies and Position Statements 

Committee of 24 August 2017 adopted the Risk Management Policy 
SC51. As part of this process, the guidelines that were originally part of 

the risk management policy were removed from the policy. This report 
seeks to formalise these guidelines into a framework document that 

supports the Risk Management Policy. 

The proposed Risk Management Framework (the framework) provides 
a structure and guidance to Council’s risk management activities and 

outlines the components that provide the foundations and 

organisational arrangements for designing, implementing, monitoring 
and reviewing risk management throughout Council’s operations. The 

framework highlights the role played by all Council departments in risk 

management and reinforces the importance of a risk focussed 

approach to management of Council’s activities. The Framework will be 

reviewed on a biennial basis, but will also make incremental changes, 
modifications, and adjustments as conditions warrant. This framework 

document goes through continuous ongoing changes based on the risk 

maturity level of the City of Cockburn.

The framework incorporates the following aspects:

. Includes explicit links to Council’s planning process 

. Aligns with AS/NZS 31000:2009 by including the application of the 

risk management principles, and incorporating emerging risk and 

project risk. 

. Includes a risk management action plan

The proposed framework was reviewed by the Project Portfolio 

Management - Project Team, Risk Review Group, the Executive Team, 
and is presented, and supported for formal consideration and adoption.

The City’s Business Continuity Management Program 

The Administration has formalised a Crisis Management Plan to 

address the operational gaps identified during the Business Continuity 
Plan test exercise in relation to effective communications, clear roles 

and responsibilities, and good information management. This 

establishes the response procedures, that provide guidelines for the 

management of the immediate actions and operations required to 

respond to incidents. The overall objective is to respond to crisis 

conditions and manage the process of restoring the City critical
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services, encompassing the facilities, services and administration of the 

City.

In addition, a comprehensive location based Business Continuity 

Management Program is to be developed and implemented. This will be 

applied for relevant critical scenarios affecting the regular delivery of 

Council critical functions, which incorporates the vital and necessary 

components of the City’s current and future business environment.

Insights and moving forward:

As the City continues to implement and embed risk management 

through its Risk Program, it will continue to focus on the following key 
areas and current initiatives:

I. A review the City’s risk registers, by conducting annual risk 

controls reviews. The main objective of the control reviews is to 

ensure that City of Cockburn can not only identify its risks, but 

also have confidence that key risks have adequate controls in 

place and that these controls are adequate. A fully functioning 
and transparent risk management program ensures that Council 

is aware of its risks, and will have the means to develop 
instructive and practical mitigation strategies, and monitor the 

status and the validity of all existing controls

II. Development of Location Based Business Continuity Plans 

during 2017-18 and 2018-19 Financial Year (Business Impact 
Analysis, Identify Response Options, Develop Response Plans, 
Train Exercise & Maintain).

III. Continue working with all business units to implement robust 

processes for embedding risk management and provision of risk 

management training for officers to improve the City’s risk culture 

and commitment, and development of a risk management 

training program.

Strategic Plans/Policy Implications

Leading & Listening

Deliver sustainable governance through transparent and robust policy 
and processes

Budget/Financial Implications

Planned initiatives contained within the proposed Framework are 

funded from departmental operating budgets. With the exception of the 

development and implementation of location based business continuity 
Plans for all City buildings and facilities, which will require funding to be
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resourced and included in the budget 2017 -2018 budget of 

approximately $60,000.

Legal Implications

N/A

Community Consultation

Regulation 17, of the Local Government (Audit) Regulations 2013 
refers.

Risk Management Implications

Failure to adopt the recommendations will result in inability to support 
an integrated and effective approach to risk management, and lack of 

guidance on the arrangements for designing, implementing, monitoring 
and continually improving risk management process.

Advice to Proponent(s)/Submissioners

N/A

Implications of Section 3.18(3) Local Government Act, 1995

Nil
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RISK MANAGEMENT~RA~EWORK 
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Document Control

I Document Record
Document title Risk Management Framework

ECM document name City of Cockburn - Risk Management Framework

ECM document 

number
6788740

ECM file number 6788740

I Review and approval
Maintained by Governance & Risk Management Coordinator

Version number 2 Version date
October 

2017

Reviewed by Risk Review Group Date reviewed
26 October 

2017

((= 
Approved by Chief Executiv~cer ~ 

Date approved 

Frequency of review Bi~ ~ Next review date 

NOTE: The City of Cockburn will review this framework on a biennial basis, but will 

also make incremental changes, modifications, and adjustments as conditions 

warrant. This framework document goes through continuous ongoing changes based 

on the risk maturity level of the City of Cockburn.

I Record of changes I issues
Version Date Comments / reasons for change Made by

2

I Distribution
Name Position

Executive and
Directors & Senior Managers

Management Team

Elected Members Audit & Strategic Finance Committee Members
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INTRODUCTION

The management of risk is the responsibility of everyone and is an integral part of 

the City of Cockburn’s (the City) culture, and is reflected in the various policies, 

protocols, systems and processes used to ensure efficient and effective service 

delivery.

The Risk Management Framework reflects good practice and sound corporate 

governance and is consistent with the risk management guidelines and principles of 

AS/NZS ISO 31000:2009 (the Standard).

Sound corporate governance requires integrated risk management processes and 

strategic planning, reporting and performance measurement. The key to successful 

integration is streamlining the approach to managing risk by ensuring that everyone 

uses common language and documents their risks using a consistent approach.

To effectively embed risk management throughout the City, all employees need to 

be aware of their responsibilities in relation to identifying, managing, communicating 

and elevating risk. 

The City’s overall risk appetite is ’risk prudent’. \~ 
The City should accept the taking ~ntro~ risks, the use of innovative 

approaches and the develoe t of n 
, 
portunities to improve service delivery 

and achieve its objectives ~j:d th the risks are properly identified, evaluated 

and managed to ~ tha~ures are acceptable.

Date

Stephen Cain 

Chief Executive Officer

1
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1. RISK MANAGEMENT FRAMEWORK OVERVIEW

1.1 Risk Management Policy

The City Risk Management Policy (SC51) documents the commitment 

and objectives regarding managing uncertainty that may impact the 

City’s strategie,s, goals and objectives,

The purpose of this Framework is to provide details O~reqUirements 
and processes supporting the Council’s Risk Manage i Policy. 
The implementation of the 

FrameW~k 
will: 
~ 

. Ensure a consistent approac ~ the 
r~r management process 

across Council; 

~ . 

Establis~huctur 
2 ess or undertaking the risk management 

process I tify, a ess and control/treat risks; 

. Encourag integration of risk management into the strategic and 

operational process across all Business Units of the Council.

This Risk Management Framework has been developed with input and 

review from the Risk Review Group, Executive Team, and Audit & 

Strategic Finance Committee and adopted by Council.

1.2 Benefits of Risk Management

The management of risk is an ongoing process that provides many 
benefits which include:

. Greater likelihood of achieving objectives 

. Compliance with legislative requirements 

. Improve stakeholder trust and confidence 

. Encourages decisive leadership rather than management of crisis 

. Better information for decision making 

. Reduces unexpected and costly surprises 

. Better results from projects and activities 

. More effective and efficient allocation of resources 

. Balancing opportunity and risk 

. Enhanced accountability and corporate governance; and 

. Assists in obtaining insurance cover.

2
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1.3 Common Risk Definitions and Explanations

Risk:

The effect of uncertainty on the achievement of set objectives. 

(AS/NZS ISO 31000:2009)

Note - an effect is a deviation from the expected - positive and/or 

negative.

Risk is often expressed in terms of a com~ztion of the 

consequences of an event and the associated IikeJ\;. 
Risk Management: \0 

Coordinated activities to dire~ con~1 an organisation with 
regard to risk. (A~ISO 3~009) 

RiskFram~ ~ 
. Set of co~ents that provide the foundations and organisational 

arrangements for designing, implementing, monitoring, reviewing 
and continually improving risk management throughout the 

organisation. (AS NZS ISO 31000:2009)

Risk Assessment:

This is the part of the risk management process that includes the 

following three components: 

Risk Identification - process of finding, recognising and describing 
risks;

Risk Analysis - Involves developing an understanding of the risk 

including their causes and sources and the likelihood and 

consequences should the risk occur; and

Risk Evaluation - Assists in making decisions about risk priorities 
and treatments following the risk analysis.

Risk Monitoring and Review:

Involves continually reviewing the overall risk management process 
to ensure that controls are effective, new information is gathered, 
latest changes and trends are identified, successes and failures are 

recorded, lessons are learned, changes in internal and external 

context are detected and emerging risks are captured.

3
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1.4 Risk Management Principles

Building an integrated and effective Risk Management Framework 

takes commitment and resources. All components of this document are 

based on AS/NZS ISO 31000:2009 Risk Management The risk 

management principles outlined in the Standard which guide the City’s 
risk management approach are:

~

I
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Framework Process

Our Framework is built around the elements identified as risk culture, 

governance and accountability, resources and planning, process, and 

assurance. A brief description of the five elements is outlined below:

(a) Risk Culture: Risk culture is a sub-set of the City’s culture. The risk 

management behaviour of the people within Council can be described 

as ’the way things are done’.

(b) Risk Governance and Accountability: Governance and 

Accountability is the approach taken for making decisions about risk 

and developing, supporting, and embedding the risk framework.

(c) Risk Management Resources and Planning: Resources is the 

allocation of human and financial resources to oversee risk and 

planning. It is the thinking and organising of activities that are required 
to implement an integrated Risk Management Framework.

4
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(d) Risk Management Process: Refers to the process around 

managing all risks, including strategic, operational and emerging risks. 

This involves identifying, assessing and monitoring risks through the 

City’s risk management system.

(e) Risk Assurance: Risk assurance is making sure the internal 

controls are adequately supporting the management of risk and 

compliance with regulations.

1.5 Risk Management Approach C\? 
The City has adopted the "Three Line of De~1I Assu~ce model for 
the management of risk. This 

mOd~sures’e?les; 
responsibilities and 

accountabilities for decis’ n mak re structured to demonstrate 

effective governance 0 suran . By operating within the approved 
risk 

appetite~rame 
e Council, Management and Community 

will have a Qf~ e tha isks are managed effectively to support the 

delivery of th ~ ’Gtt, tegic, Corporate and Operational plans.

The Following diagram depicts the Three Lines of Defense 

Assurance Model

Three lines of Defense Assurance Model

Council

EXECUTIVE TEAM

First Line of Defense Second Line of Defense Third Line of Defense

Senior Management 
Team & 

Employees

Govemance Services
Internal I External 

Audit

. Assess risk environment. Identify and build risk 

prome

. Establish and co- 

ordlnat.e risk 

management processes . PrOVIde Independent 
assurance on Internal 

oonlrol system

. Implement & maintain 

controls . Ensure compliance WIth 

framework

. Consider nsk In 

operaUon decision- 

making

. Collect and analyse risk 
Inf()(mallon

. Communicate risk 

exposure for 

remediation

. Report on adequacy of 

risk mitigabon

. Reports on adequacy 
and effectiveness of 

oonlrol processes and 

procedures

. Monitoring and reporting 
on risk profile

s
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1.6 Legislative Requirements

Risk management is integral to good governance and good 

management. Regulation 17, of the Local Govemment (Audit) 

Regulations 2013, requires the Chief Executive Officer to undertake a 
review which assesses the appropriateness and effectiveness of the 

City’s systems and procedures in relation to:

. risk management; 

. internal controls; and 

. legislative compliance

~

~ 
~~
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2. RISK MANAGEMENT KEY ELEMENTS

The purpose of this section of the Risk Management Framework is to provide 

an overview of the Framework’s five key elements and how they apply to 

Council.

2.1 Risk Culture

Our organisational culture is the behaviours, values and beliefs that are 

shared by the people within the organisation. i 
Risk culture is fundamental to Supportin ’ernance, stakeholder 

confidence, trust and comPliance~h 
re~~~ legal and regulatory 

requirements for impr~~ the c ,environment, the operational 

effectiveness and effic:Q::nd t. identification of opportunities and 

threats. ~ \f3 
The manage~ of risk is the responsibility of all staff and this 

requirement is included in all position descriptions. Risk maturity 

assessments can be conducted which will inform us about our culture.

The City’s values positively encourage a risk culture where 

understanding, managing and calculating a prudent level of risk is part 

of the everyday decision-making process. The elements that will 

contribute to a positive risk culture are:

. leadership, which is articulated in the policy 

. communicating the benefits of risk management 

. Integrating risk management with other business processes and 

systems so the task of managing risk is not regarded as an 

additional burden.

Key risk performance indicators are measures which support our 

transparent approach to maturing risk management. The risk 

management performance indicators which we are working towards 

are provided as Appendix C.

7
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2.2 Risk Governance and Accountability Structure

Our risk management accountability framework is aligned to our 

existing accountability requirements and summarised in Appendix D, 

outlining the roles and responsibilities in relation to risk management.

Our approach to enterprise risk management is aligned to our strategic 

and business planning frameworks.

STRATEGIC OBJECTIVES

OPERATIONAL GOALS

COUNCIL
Mandate for Enterprise RI~k Management 

(ERM)

AUDIT& 

STRATEGIC 

FINANCE 

COMMITTEE

EXECUTIVE TEAM
Enterprose Risk Management & Strategfc 

Approach

GOVERNANCE 

SERVICES

Enterp,,~o Risk Managemont Program 
Co-ordln.llfon

ALL 

MANAGEMENT & 

STAFF

Enterprose RIsk Management 
Implementation

8
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Strategic risks are overseen by the Executive and operational risks are 

identified and monitored as part of our annual business planning cycle. 

Our risk register is enabled by a licenced enterprise risk information system 

(Risk Management and Safety System). Our maturity and performance can be 

measured against our integrated risk management performance indicators.

2.3 Risk Management Resources and Planning

Risk management resources and planning are embedded within 

existing processes and operates on a number of lev~ summary 
of 

our integrated approach to resources 

and~1 
ning IS utlined below 

depicting the components that make up th ’s Integ ted Planning 
and Reporting Framework: 

~ 
Elements of Integrated Planning and Reporting Framework

Community 

Engagement

Measuring 
and Reporting

Strategic 
COll1ll1un’t, 
Plan

> Corporate 
BUSl!leSS Plan > 

1=1
Annual 

Budget

Outputs 
Plan Monitoring and 
Annual Reporting

I I" ... .... ... ......... ............ .... . >

Informng Strategies

. LTFP 

. Informahon 

Communications 

and Technology 
. Services

. Workforce 

. Assets 

. Issues Specific 
Strategies etc.

The City’s Integrated Planning and Reporting Framework (IPRF), as 
the primary source of guidance for the organisation, provides context to 

which the risk management process operates. The IPRF is designed to 

strengthen the linkages between community aspirations, financial 

capacity and practical service delivery.

The City’s risk management approach is embedded into this planning 

process and assists in the delivery of community needs in a 

sustainable manner. This planning process operates on a cyclical basis 

and provides opportunities to undertake analysis of emerging, known 

or unknown risks that may impact on the purpose and objectives of the 

City.

The City is required to perform a biennial review of the IPRF elements. 

The review is designed to test and ratify the City’s strategic direction, 

9
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based on community needs. This provides the mandate to ensure the 

City’s risk approach is also reviewed, in line with the legislative 

requirements of risk management.

Responsibility for risk management is outlined in our Risk Management 
Accountability Structure (Refer to Appendix D). Risk management 
resources are embedded within all Departments across all functions.

~~

~ 
~w

10
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2.4 Risk Management Process

The City’s risk management process is designed to ensure that risk management decisions are based on a robust approach, 
assessments are conducted in a structured and consistent manner, and common language is used and understood throughout 
the organisation. In line with the Standard, the elements of the City’s risk management process are outlined below, with a brief 

description of each of the process articulated in the below table:

appropriately defined: 
. Staff tha e Involved throughout the risk process understand the basis for decisions and 

ctlons re Ired; and 

Lessons learnt are shared and transferred to those who can benefit from them.

Risk 

Identification

Understanding 

th~ 
obje. 

. 

e and 

defining the e t and Internal 

enviro \ .thin I h 
. 

e City operates. 

Identlfyl sks, Its sources, causes and 

potential consequences.

. Understand the critical success factors influencing the ability to achieve objectives: and 

. Determine boundaries within which the Risk Management Framework operates using the 

City’s Risk Assessment & Acceptance Criteria (Appendix A).

Establish Context 

(explained further in 
section 2,4,1)

Risk Analysis

’E 
G.I 

~ Comprehending the nature of the risk and 

:determining the level of risk exposure 

::: (likelihood and consequence). 
~ 
~ 
III 

ii:

. Refer to the City’s Risk Assessment & Acceptance Criteria to ensure risks are assessed in 
a consistent manner: and 

. Generate a comprehensive list of threats and opportunities based on the critical success 
factors that might enhance, prevent, degrade, accelerate or delay the achievement of set 

objectives. 

. Provide an understanding of the residual (level of exposure should controls fail) and 
controlled risk (level of exposure with controls in effect): 

. Utlllse the City’s Measures of Existing Controls in Identifying ineffective controls: 

. Determine relevant consequence categories to rate the residual risk: and 

. Combine the measures of consequence and likelihood to determine the level of risk. 

Comparing the risk analysis with the risk . Determine whether the controlled risk aligns with the City’s risk appetite: 

criteria to determine whether the risk is Determine if controlled risks need further treatment: and 

acceptable or tolerable. 
. Identify priority order in which these risks should be treated.

Risk 

Evaluation

11
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Process Step Description Purpose

Risk Treatment . Selecting one or more options for treating 
the risk. 

. Reassessing the level of risks with 

controls and treatments In place (residual 
risk).

. Identify treatments for risks that fall outside the City’s risk appetite: 

. Provide an understanding of the residual risk (level of risk with controls and treatments in 

place): and 

. Identify priority order in which individual risks should be treated. monitored and reviewed in 
line with the City’s risk assessment & acceptance criteria.

~~

. Identifying emerging risks; 

. Provide feedback on control effectiveness: 

. Identify ether any further treatment is required; 

. ProvO asis to reassess risk priorities; 

. Capture sons learnt from event failures, near - misses and success: and 

Monitor r controls and actions through the City’s Risk management Software (RMSS).

Monitoring and 
Review

. Determining whether the risk profile has 

changed and whether new risks have 

emerged. 
. Checking control effectiveness and 

progress of the treatment plans.

rf-

12
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2.4.1 Establishing the Risk Management Context

To ensure adequate alignment and consistency of risk management practices throughout the City, the below provides the context 

for which risks are defined, identified and managed.

I Plans Risk Definitions Accountability

Strategic Community Plan 
The Strategic Community Plan articulates the long term 

strategic direction and glides the City’s planning process. It 
outlines the communities’ aspirations and vision as well as 

identifying the strategies that the City is intending to implement 
to achieve its objectives.

Strategic Risks 
. Identified through 

~n 
IS of both the Strategic Community Plan and Corporate 

BUSiness Plan an t can Impede the organisatIOn from dehvenng on strategic 

ObJeCtiijes 
s well a eVlewlng past perfonnance and nsks to determine future 

challe nd new pn es 

Risks Identified ffom the external enVIronment, that affect the deCISions made 

~round 
0 nlsatlonal prionties, resource allocation, tolerance and acceptance of nsk 

tegic risks are the risks that will prevent Council from meeting the objectives outlined 
in the Strategic Community Plan.

Executive Team

The Strategic Community Plan describes the vision and 

strategic objectives ofthe elected Council. 

~ .. 

..Q 
In determining the strategic nsk 

~ro 
the Clt e to 

collect information, through envir I scanni w ch is 

broad enough to include a range 0 t~, influences and time 
honzons ~V

They are the risks of most concern to the City of Cockburn and therefore require direct 
attention by Chief Executive Officer.

They are usually identified through analysis of environmental 

factors, stakeholder expectations and strategy development 
and will likely have a material impact on the City’s ability to 
achieve its mandate and strategic objectives.

13
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I-Plans -Risk Definitions Accountability

Business Unit Operational Plans 
Annual plans that identify the Unit’s key accountabilities In 

implementing the City’s strategic plan, key strategies and 

targets. Plans are developed through a process of 

environmental scanning and reviewing past performan
and nsks to determine upcoming challenges and new 

priorities

Program Plans 
Plans for implementing business strategies, policies and 

initiatives, or large-scale change, to achieve a desired 
outcome and benefits of strategic Importance.

Safety Management System 
The City’s systematic approach to managing safety, 

including organisalional structures, 

aCm’litles, policies and procedures. Officers (persons ting a 

business or undertaking) 

are~~~ible 
f ling 

workers and other persons aga Ii n to he h, safety 
and welfare through the elimlnati or inlmlsallon of risks 

arising from work or from particula es of substances or 

plant

Operational Risks

Risks or opportunities Ihat may affect achieving the objectives of the planned BUSiness 
Unit outcomes of performance, identified through Business Unit Plans, Specific Purpose 
Plans, programs of change, or hazard assessments. These risks usually result from 

inadequate or failed internal processes, people and systems. 

Operational risks are linked to the Business Plan objectives and take Into conSideration 
risks which Will prevent Departments from delivering their annual bUSiness plans and 

ongoing services to 

the~o 
unity. 

Each 

Dep~rt 
nt is req 

. 

d to undertake a risk assessment in accordance with this 

Framewo etermine risks in meeting its delegated statutory obligations and 
stated obje t . 

This process is incorporated into the business planning process. 

’ tlonal’ k predominantly relates to cnllcal services and functional bUSiness 

es that support the City’s service delivery objectives. This risk type takes a 
rizontal perspective of risk across the City.

Safety risks can cause harm or adverse effects (to individuals as health effects or to the 

City as property or equipment losses).

Business Unit 

Managers

Service Unit Leader

All Staff

Project Plans 

Formal, approved documents used 

both project execution and project control.
to

Project Risks 

guide Uncertain events or set of circumstances that, should they occur, will have an effect on 
the achievement of one or more project objectives.

Project and program risk refers to the risks unique to a specific projecVprogram. The 

City regularly undertakes significant projects and programs, management of which 

should be consistent with the City’s project management methodology.

Projects and programs should maintain a risk register(s) and regularly report the risks to 

the proJecVprogram sponsorls or steering committee, Any Significant risk that is strategic 
in nature should also be incorporated in the Operational risk register to ensure visibility 
across the enterprise,

Project 
Team/Manager

4
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Specific Risk Functions

r Plans Risk Definitions Accountability

Fraud and corruption - Refer to the Fraud and corruption 
prevention policy and guidelines.

Business continuity management -. Refer to the Crisis 
and Business continuity framework.

~
Local Emer enc Mana emen 

Series of plans that identify risks and their 

mitigation, response to and re from emergency 

events. Detailed plans for response and recovery are 
linked to the District & State Emergency Management 
Plans.

Fraud and corruption risk management is an important subset of the City’s overall All services units 

risk management framework. The City and constituent business areas are required with support from 

to conduct a fraud risk assessment on a regular basis, in doing so; the assessment other units and 

should be consistent with the process prescribed in the framework. external agencies 

Correspondingly, provision for fraud has been integrated into the City risk register to 
enhance fraud and corruption reporting. 

Some risk is 

unaVoi~nd 
it is not within the ability of the City to completely 

manage, e.g. natura sters. A key strategic risk for the City and its business 
areas Is 

ti"ity 
to r in operational and continue delivering Council services. 

In these ces, the only action that can be taken is the preparation of 

~tingenC 
ans for business continuity. Business continuity management is a key 

rb!il’ ting fa or as it increases the department’s resilience in. response to and 
r ry from events that may disrupt business services and operations

Emergency Management Hazards/Risks & Public Hazards 
Risks and hazards which:

. Would pose a threat to life, property or the environment. 

. Would require a large scale emergency response. 

. Would require support I action from the City. 

. Would require Recovery strategies to be adopted \0 return the community to normal.

15
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2.4.2. Treatment

For risks which fall outside of the City’s risk appetite, determine 

treatment options that may improve existing controls and/or reduce 

consequence/likelihood to an acceptable level.

Risk treatments may involve actions such as avoid, share, transfer or 

reduce the risk. The treatment selection and implementation may be 

based on: 

. Cost versus benefit; ~ Ease of implementation; and 

!f. . Alignment to organisational values and o’ ’ves. 

The purpose of risk treatment Pla~’ to d ment how the chosen 

treatment options will 

~i$emen 
. comprehensive risk treatment 

plan should be prep for High and Extreme risks. The 

information ~d in t tent plans should include: 

. Risk 10, r~scriPtion, risk level 

. The reasons for selection of treatment options, including expected 
benefits to be gained 

. Those who are accountable for approving the plan and those 

responsible for implementing the plan (e.g. Risk owner); 
. proposed actions; 
. resource requirements including contingencies 
. plan to monitor implemented controls; 
. reporting requirements (e.g. Council action, Audit and Risk 

Committee action, Executive Management team action etc.); and 

. timing and schedule.

2.4.3. Monitor & Review

The City will review all Risk Profiles in line with the Risk Assessment & 

Acceptance Criteria or if triggered by one of the following:

changes to context; 
a treatment is implemented; and 

an incident occurs or due to audiUregulator findings.

The Governance & Risk Management Coordinator will monitor the 

status of risk treatment implementation and report on progress, if 

required.

The CEO and Executive will monitor significant risks and treatment 

implementation as part of their normal Directors agenda item with 

specific attention to be given to risks that meet any of the following 
criteria:

Risks with a Level of Risk of High or Extreme; 
Risks with an Inadequate Existing Control Rating;

16
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Risks with a Consequence Rating of Catastrophic; and 

Risks with a Likelihood Rating of Almost Certain.

2.5. Risk Assurance

The risk management validation and assurance program operates on a 

number of levels from management reviews to internal and external 

reviews. 

Management Control reviews: These 

ann~ul 
view~ initiated by 

management to inform and to provide anoth el o~~~ht on the 
degree to which management and 

~ration 
evels has a shared 

understanding of risk management [): 

This level of scrutiny c~tes an portant aspect of a risk 

manageme~m. 
T~o provide assurance that key risks are 

actively cont I~ nd control mechanisms in place reduce the risk 

profile of the I

Audit services: The internal audit program is overseen by the 

Financial Services Department. The internal audit plan is developed 
with consideration to the strategic and operational business risk profile.

The internal audit program is designed as a rolling three year plan 
based on risk against which Internal Audit is to prepare audit reports for 

the Audit Committee’s consideration. These audit reports are to also 

include, where applicable, management responses, accountabilities 

and timelines for corrective actions.

This plan shall detail the nature and timing of reports to be presented to 

the Audit Committee and to Council and will reflect the priorities and 

functions of the Audit Committee as detailed in their Charter.

External reviews: These reviews are conducted by an agency 
external to Council. Typically the agencies which currently conduct 

independent reviews are the Auditor General’s Office and Ombudsman

Risk Maturity review: Governance services conduct a maturity 
assessment every 2 years, in line with the corporate planning cycle to 

measure and test staff’s perception of Council’s risk management 
culture. The results are reported to the Executive Team and where 

appropriate incorporated into an action plan.

2.5.1. Risk Tools

The risk register enables staff to document, manage, monitor, review 

and update strategic, operational, hazard or project risk information. 

Risk register reporting allows the City to monitor and review risks in

17
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alignment with the Strategic Community Plan, Corporate Business 

Plan, Business Unit Plans, programs and other cascading plans.

Information from the risk management process is to be recorded, 

reported and monitored using the City’s various risk register templates. 
The City has two ways to record risks as depicted below:

RMSS risk register - An online risk management tool, to assist the 

City in recording, monitoring and reporting operational and strategic 
risk information. 

Offline risk registers - These are various risk regist~mPlates used 
for projects, programs, events and hazard a~~ments.~hiS information is not kept within the RMSS syst\) 

3. 

TRAI~~eG ;:0 h~::~. r~ibilities. 
accountabilities and 

delegations at all levels. The City’s Risk Management Framework is to 
be embedded through a number of communication, training and 

support systems, including training.

To ensure that adequate risk management competency levels are 
achieved and maintained, the City provides regular training courses in 

the risk management process and its application in the City.

Specific risk management training sessions will be held on an annual 

basis, aimed at providing an overview of the Risk Management 
Framework. The training will be provided by the Governance & Risk 

Management Coordinator. Additional ad-hoc training will be provided 
as required.

This training is designed to increase the knowledge and awareness of 

staff and management in a number of risk management topics 

including:

. risk management principles and process; 

. fraud and misconduct awareness; 

. environmental management; 

. events management; and 

. Business Continuity and Crisis Management.

Instruments providing training on appropriate controls include job descriptions, 
inductions. policies, procedures, terms of reference, performance planning 
and review programs, contracts and delegations.

18
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APPENDIX A - RISK ASSESSMENT AND ACCEPTANCE CRITERIA

artlal disablement or severe 

n’ur 

amage to reputation. 
ublic embarrassment High 
edia attention Several public 
omplaints Third party legal 
ction

ome objectives affected 
an continue as business- 

s- usual with minor 

ontrols executed / 10 - 

5% variation against PI 

moderate environmental 

vent that can be 

remediated but requires 
ultiple stakeholder input

ome of the major objectives 
annot be achieved 

usiness can still deliver but 

ot to expected level / 25 - 

0% variation against PI 

significant environmental 
vent where rehabilitation 

nvolves multiple stakeholders 
nd various levels of the 

ommunlty and government 

ompliance Breach involving 
xternal investigation or third 

arty actions resulting in 

angible loss or reputation 
amage to the City and 
reach of legislation or 

egulatlons

Irreversible damage to reputation. 
ery high level of public 
mbarrassment. 

ery high media attention 

any public complaints

ost objectives cannot be achieved 
usiness will not operate / 
> 50% variation against PI

severe environmental event 

equiring multiple stakeholders. all 
evels of the community and 
overnment to remediate.

ompliance Breach involving 
egulatory Investigation and / or third 

arty actions resulting in tangible loss 
r significant reputation damage to 
he organization and breach of 

egislation or regulations
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ajority of milestones and 

bjectlves being achieved 
Ith minor variation to 

cope and/or quality 
eported. Minor Impact 
bsorbed through project.

than 5% of Project 
Budget or < than $50k. 
hlchever Is lower

than 5% of Project 
Imeline or < than 30 

ays. whichever Is lower

Inor Impact on milestones 
nd objectives being achieved 
Ith minor variation to scope 
nd/or quality reported. 

Disruptive Impact on project 
ellverables expected.

Between 5% to 10% of 

Project Budget or between 
50k - $250k. whichever Is 

ower

Between 5% to 10% of 

Project Tlmeline or between 
o - 60 days. whichever Is 
Ower

ajor Impact on milestones Major Impact on milestones atastrophlc Impact on 
nd objectives being achieved nd objectives being achieved lIestones resulting In the 
’th minor variation to scope Ith significant variation to allure to achieve one or more 

nd/or quality reported. cope and/or quality reported. bjectlves of the project. 
erlous Impact on project rltlcal Impact on project 
eliverables expected. eliverables expected.

etween 10% to 25% of 

roject Budget or between 
250k - $1m. whichever Is 

ower

etween 10% to 25% of 

roject Timeline or between 
o - 90 days. whichever Is 
ower

Between 25% to 50% of 

roject Budget or between 
1 m - $5m. whichever Is 

ower

etween 25% to 50% of 

Project Timeline or between 
- 120 days. whichever Is 

lower

than 50% of Project Budget 
r> than $5m. whichever Is 

ower

than 50% of Project 
Imeline or> than 120 days. 
hlchever is lower

20
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Likely 

Possible 

Unlikely 

Rare

Such events are expected to occur routinely during an operation /asset life/project. 

Such events may occur frequently during an operation /asset life/project. 

Such an event may occur more than twice during an operation /asset life/project. 

ccur once during operation /asset life/project.

(

2 

3 

4 

5

Significant (10)

Significant (12) 

High (15)Significant (10)
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Risk acceptable with adequate controls. 

managed by routine procedures. Subject to 
annual monitoring or continuous review 

throughout project lifecycle.

Management through routine operations/project. 
Risk Registers to be updated.

Risk acceptable with adequate controls. 

managed by specific procedures. Subject to 
semi- annual monitoring or continuous review 

throughout project lifecycle.

Communication and awareness of increasing 
rovided to SM. Risk Registers to be 

ated.

Senior Manager/Project 
Manager

Assess Impact of competing Service Director/Steering Committee 
Unit/Business Unit Projects. Potential redirect of 
Service Unit/Business Unit resources. Risk 

registers to be updated.

ptable with effective controls. managed 
by management/executive. Subject to 

qua erly monitoring or continuous review 

throughout project lifecycle.

Escalate to CEO. report prepared for Audit & 

Strategic Finance Committee. Quarterly 
monitoring and review required. Risk Registers 
to be updated.

Executive/ Steering 
Committee/Project Sponsor

Risk only acceptable with effective controls and 
all treatment plans to be explored and 

implemented where possible. managed by 
highest level of authority and subject to 
continuous monitoring.

Escalate to CEO. report prepared for Audit & 

Strategic Finance Committee. Monthly 
monitoring and review required. Risk Registers 
to be updated.

CEO/Council/Project Sponsor

22
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Effective Doing more than what is reasonable under 
the circumstances

1. Existing controls exceed current legislated. regulatory and compliance 
requirements. and surpass relevant and current standards, codes of practice, 
guidelines and industry benchmarks expected of this organisation 

2, ~ct to continuous monitoring and regular testing 
3. A~ontrol improvements that can be implemented have minimal impact on 

operations,

1. Existing controls are in accordance with current legislated. regulatory and 

compliance requirements. and are aligned with relevant and current standards. 
codes of practice. guidelines and industry benchmarks expected of this 

organisation

2. Subject to continuous monitoring and regular testing

Inadequate Not doing some or all things reasonable under 
the circumstances

3. Control improvements may be implemented

1. Existing controls do not provide confidence that they meet current 

legislated, regulatory and compliance requirements, and may not be 

aligned with relevant and current standards, codes of practice. guidelines 
and Industry benchmarks expected of this organisation

2. Controls not operating as intended and have not been reviewed or tested

3. Existing Controls need to be improved

23
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APPENDIX B - RISK MANAGEMENT ACTION PLAN

Action Description Responsibility Timing

Strategic Risk 

Management Review

Risk Maturity Review

Review Risk 

Management Policy

Review Risk 

Management 
Framework

Build robust 

contingency services 
to ensure the 

protection of Council 
assets and services 

Review Operational 
Risk Registers

Strategic risk workshops with 
the key deliverable of a 

strategic risk register for the 

City, to identify high level key 
strategic risks associated with 

City of Cockburn’s external 

environment. stakeholders, 

strategic direction and systemic 
organisational Issues. 

Maturity review to measure and 
test Risk Management culture, 
and assess the 

~ appropriateness and 

effectivene~he 
City’ 

D 

systems a edures 

~ionto: \ risk nagement; 
internal controls; and $) 
legislative compliance 

Review the currency and 

effectiveness of Council’s Risk 

Management Policy

Review the currency and 

effectiveness of Council’s Risk 

Manag,ement Framework.

Annual test and review of 

Council Business Continuity & 
Crisis Management Program

Review risks and controls 

contained in Council’s 

corporate risk register and 

identify new or emerging risks

Executive Team 

(coordinated by 
Governance 

Services)

Every 4 years 
in conjunction 
with 

Community 
Strategic Plan 
review

c;( 

Ei’ve 
Teall’’ Biennially 

& nagers 
\) 

(c inated by 
Gov rnance 

Services)

Council to adopt 

(review to be 

coordinated by 
Governance 

Services) 
Council to adopt 

(review to be 

coordinated by 
Governance 

Services) 

Governance 

Services

All Managers 

(risk owners) to 

complete review 

(review to be 

facilitated by 
Governance 

Services)

Biennially- 
presented to 
DAPPS

Biennially

Annually

Annually- 
presented to 
Audit & 

Strategic 
Finance 

Committee

Risk Controls 

Assurance Review

Targeted control review to rate Governance 

and confirm the effectiveness Services 

for controls contained in the 

operational risk register.

Annually- 
presented to 
the November 

Directors 

Meeting

Include Risk 

Treatment Plans in 

Operational Plan

Ensure that actions required by All Managers 
Risk Treatment Plans (RTP) 
are incorporated into the 

Operational Plan

Every year in 

conjunction 
with 

Operational 
Plan
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Action Description Responsibility Timing

development!
review

Implement Risk Implement actions contained in Risk Owners As identified in

Treatment Plans in risk treatment plans (RTP) the RTP

operational decisions

Risk assessments for Conduct risk assessments as Relevant Prior to

projects/initiatives in required for new or altered Manager! Risk deciding to

accordance with the activities, processes or events Owner! Project proceed with

project methodology

Man:er!Te~
new project!
Initiative

Risk Status Report Identify and review, by ~~~~eTeam\I) Quarterly

exception, any "51< 

ISsue~
(c nated by report to the

arising from the Quarter1 t Go~nance Audit and

register r~~d 
the c Services) Strategic

status of k 
. 

(high Finance

~me), ~=idents and Committee

( releva ’ss s

Annual Report ~i 
risk management Governance Annually

ties undertaken during the Services

previous year and any relevant
risk manaQement issues.

Operational Plan Identify key risks that may Managers/Risk Annually
Impact on objectives as well as Owners

strategies and controls In place (overseen by
(or proposed) to manage those Governance

risks. Services) 
.

Staff Performance Ensure risk management Manager, Annually
Review performance of managers is Human

assessed on a regular basis Resources

Communicalion Ensure slaff are aware of Governance Ongoing
relevant risk Services

management issues and have

access to risk

management lools
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APPENDIX C - RISK MANAGEMENT INDICATORS

.Management are committed to 
risk management. 
Employees ’contributions to risk 

management are valued. 
Practices and values are linked 

to risk management.

. Risk management included in Job 

descriptions 
Risk management is linked to values and 
Code of Conduct. 

Risk management is included in 

recognition and 

reW$rd 
ograms. 

All staff Is aware of Isation’s 

approach to .sk mana ent and the 

risk ma ent forma as been 

documen e

.

.

.

Risk governance Is aligned 
organisations 

gijV 
rnance a 

accountability rk. 

There is an en 0 se isk 

management p I cessible to 

all staff. 

Executive and Audit Committee 

regularly receive, consider and 
discuss risk management 
reports. 
There is a process to support risk 

management attestation. 
There is a robust process for 

ensuring legal and regulatory 
compliance requirements are 
met. 

Roles and responsibilities for risk 

management are clearly defined 
t III I f th 

. 

f

.

.

.

.

R documented, approved & 
accessible to staff. 

Risk reports distributed and reviewed. 

Organisational wide approach to legal 
and regulatory compliance framework 
documented and accessible to staff. 

Risk roles and responsibilities 
documented. 

Risk meeting agendas and minutes 
recorded and maintained.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

. 

. 

Resource & Planning

. There are human resources to 

support risk management system 
and processes. 
Tools and templates are used to 

support risk management 
processes and assessments.

. Organisational wide risk policy 
Risk management capabilities and 

training provided. 
Risk management skills gap addressed. 

Organisational wide risk tools and 

templates are used 

Organisational wide risk management 
plans documented, approved and 
accessible to all staff. 

Risk information system available and 
accessible to nominated staff. 

User software training made available to 
nominated staff.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.
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Process

There are processes to ensure . Risk management guidelines.
communication and consultation . Organisation wide risk appetite and
with internal and external tolerance has been documented,

stakeholder groups takes place approved and available to all staff.

during each activity of the risk . Documented evidence of risk

management process management forms part of the strategic
. Risk appetite and tolerances has and operational objectives that

been agreed and is clearly specifically takes into account risks which
understood may impact the organisation.

. The external and internal context .A defined risk criterion is available and

to be considered by staff is consistently applied.
clearly defined. . The risk methodology is endorsed and

. A risk rating criteria is clearly available to all staff.

defined and risks are consistently . Risk has been linked to agreed
documented and the categories which have been documented
effectiveness of existing controls and reviewed.

is used to determine the . System in place for near misses
estimated level of risk. . Risk escalation processed established,

. Risks are consistently identified clear and complied too.
and by staff with the required . Risk has been linked to agreed
knowledge and skills using an categories which have been documented

agree risk register format. and reviewed.

. There is a process in place to . System in place for near misses

respond to incidents, near Risk escalation processed established,
misses, incidents, hazards and clear and complied
complaints.

. Risks are assessed to determine

tolerability & priorities for risk
treatment.

. Treatment plans are prepared,
implemented and monitored

Assurance

. Control owners assigned, & 

layered approach to risk controls 
. Control effectiveness considered 

within risk acceptance decision 

Alignment with audit and 
assurance programs / activities. 

The internal validation and 

assurance activities are aligned 
to the risk profile.

. There is a clear, documented link 

between the validation and assurance 

program 
. The validation and assurance Program 

incorporates data analytics such as 
dashboard reporting, measurements 

against targets 
. Assurance mapping
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APPENDIX D. RISK MANAGEMENT ACCOUNTABILITY STRUCTURE

udit & Strategic 
inance Committee

ouncil’s responsibilities are to: 

. Adopt a Risk Management Policy that complies with the requirements of 
AS/NZS ISO 31000:2009 and to review and amend the Policy in a timely 
manner and/or as required. 

. Adopt the Risk Management Framework for the Council. 

. Be satisfied that risks are identified, managed & controlled appropriately to 
achieve Council’s Strategic Objectives. 

. Appoint and resource the Audit & Strategic Fl!JaI9 Committee. 

. Provide adequate budgetary provision forthe1t~nclng of risk management 
including approved risk mitigatiO~ities. \) 

. Review Council’s risk appetite. 

~ 
t;:

cll, the rpose of Audit Committee is to oversee that Council 

slbilities for accountable financial management, good 
ate go rnance, fostering an ethical environment and maintains a system 
rnal control and risk management. They have been constituted to monitor 

report on the systems and activities of Council in ensuring: 

Reliable financial reporting and management Information. 

High standards of corporate governance. 
Appropriate application of accounting policies. 
Compliance with applicable laws and regulations. 
Effective monitoring and control of ail identified risks. 
Effective and efficient internal and external audit functions. 

Measures to provide early warning of any issues affecting the organisation’s 
financial well-being. 
The level and effectiveness of appropriate Crisis Management, Business 

Continuity and Disaster Recovery planning. 
Maintenance and fostering an ethical environment.

hief Executive Officer The Chief Executive Officer is accountable for the implementation and 
maintenance of risk management policies and processes across the 

organisation. 
The CEO is responsible for ensuring thatat strategic risks are regularly 
reviewed. 

The Chief Executive Officer is responsible for raising awareness and leading 
the culture of managing risk responsibly across the organisation.

xecutive Team romote and champion a strong risk management culture by linking and 

bedding risk management. and maintaining organisational risk focus across 
ouncil 

Manage and monitor the strategic risks. 
Ensure that an effective risk control environment is implemented and 
maintained. 

Ensure that risks are considered and Integrated Into corporate and business 

planning processes. 
Participate In the review and updating of the organisation’s strategic risk 

profiles. 
Ensure that accountabilities for managing risks are clearly defined.
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overnance & Risk 

anagement 
oordinator

Managers are accountable for Implementing the risk management practices In 

their area of responsibility. This includes ensuring that risks are identified, 

managed, reviewed and updated regularly. 
Ensure that assets and operations, together with liability risk to the community, 

are adequately protected through treatment plans and measures. 

Provide risk management related information as requested by their Directorate. 

Managers are responsible for raising awareness and leading 
the culture of managing risk responsibly 

acro~rganlsation 
by ensuring 

that risk management policies, procedures. sta s, guidelines and risk 

management treatment plans are i~ented 
in eryday business practice. 

Advising of any risk management that should be included in 

forthcoming budgets. ~ Are respon 1:1 for rais reness and leading the culture of managing risk 

responsi I@ ss the, anisation by assisting with the implementation of 
. 

k mana policies, procedures, standards, guidelines and risk 

~ tment 
he Risk Management & Governance Coordinator is responsible for overseeing 
he development, facilitation and implementation of a risk management culture and 

ramework, including training and awareness across the organisation. They also 

rovide advice to the organisation and are responsible for strategic overview.

II staff II staff is responsible for applying risk management practices in their business 

ctlvities. This involves:

Systematically identifying, analysing, evaluating and treating risks. Maintaining 

awareness of current and potential risks that relate to areas of responsibility. 
Risk management practices and treatments are regularly reviewed and 

monitored. 

Risk management reporting is appropriately undertaken. 

Advice to Managers of any risk issues believed to require attention, such as 

property exposures for potential loss or damage and community risk.
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HIGH/EXTEME RISKS QUARTERLY REPORT

Risk Owner: Director Governance & Community Services 

Key Service: Improving the quality of community life of residents and to ensure good governance. 
Risk Name: Bush Fire

Risk Risk Description Causes Control Risk

10 Effectiveness Rating

139 Fail to adequately manage bush fire Fuel loads not in control of City Adequate High
risk exposure within City Interagency lack of communication

Delays to programmed back burning
Non-compliance

Risk Impacts Existing Controls

People and property losses Emergency Management Arrangements
Loss of public realm Interagency engagement (DFES and DPaW)

Non-compliance with EM Act Bushfire Risk Management Plan and fuel load register

Reputational damage An additional employee has been engaged in 2017

whose specific task relates to Bushfire Mitigation within

the District.

Update:

The Bushfire Risk Management Plan (BRMP) mitigation actions are underway, and the appointment of the Fire and Emergency 

Management Officer will help expedite mitigation works, and advocating State land managers while promoting fire awareness to the 

community. The City has undertaken a number of mitigation works in recent months; this has included several low-intensity hazard 

reduction burns and extensive weed sparing. Within the 2017 - 18 financial year the City has spent approximately $40 000 on 

mitigation works identified through the BRMP process. Rural properties were inspected up to April 2017 throughout the 2016 -17 

inspection period 1764 properties were inspected resulting in 311 infringements issued. The 2017 - 18 inspections are due to start 
1 November. Currently, the Officer conducting the upcoming inspections is readying the Firebreak system and identifying potential 

problem properties.

4-
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HIGH/EXTEME RISKS QUARTERLY REPORT

There has been no change to the State’s Bushfires Act and binding crown land to mitigate bushfire risk on request of the Local 

Government. The City is leading the industry in this sector and has (in collaboration with WALGA) been meeting with several State 

land managers to amicably agree on mitigation works. Recently the City and the Department of Lands agreed in principle on 

mitigation and funding structure. This proposed structure was (at the request of DFES) placed on hold until the State finalised their 

rural fire service model.

I~ 49 of 174

Version: 4, Version Date: 20/04/2022
Document Set ID: 6859306



Item 12.1 Attachment 2 ASFC 16/11/2017

HIGH/EXTEME RISKS QUARTERLY REPORT

Risk Owner: Director Governance & Community Services 

Key Service: Improving the quality of community life of residents and to ensure good governance. 
Risk Name: Community Services Major Projects

Risk Risk Description Causes Control Risk

10 Effectiveness Rating

99 Failure to coordinate Community Lack of due diligence Adequate High
Services major projects on behalf of Lack of detailed project scope
the City of Cockburn Lack of resourcing

Poor contractors performance
Variations of expenditure
Inaccurate project cost estimate

Risk Impacts Existing Controls

Delays in projects Contract independent specialist consultant

Financial Loss Project control group & project working group
Committees & Council reference group

Consulting teams/meetings
Financial monitoring, extensive project program, monthly

progress reports
Risk management Plans.

Update:

1. Cockburn ARC - Facility now operational, the geothermal system has yet to be given practical completion due to ongoing issues 

with the pump system. This is anticipated to be rectified by the start of November.

~.
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HIGH/EXTEME RISKS QUARTERLY REPORT

2. Lake Lands Reserve Hockey and Community Facilities - Procurement processes completed for appointment of Project Manager 
and Quantity surveying services. Negotiations with DoE and the FHC are underway in the development of the MOU and other legal 

agreements.

3. Frankland Reserve - Preliminary concept design, estimated construction cost and lifecycle costing developed. CSRFF funding 
submission completed. Flora and fauna survey and site contamination assessment underway, the outcomes of these assessments 

will determine the feasibility to proceed with the project.

Currently, a new Project Portfolio Management (PPM) system is being developed to standardise the implementation of major 
project works across the organisation, based on a model now operating within the Engineering and Works Division. While this 

system will take some time to become fully integrated in all Units across the City, it has been accepted as a major positive step in 

ensuring a consistent approach to Project Management in the future.
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HIGH/EXTEME RISKS QUARTERLY REPORT

Risk Owner: Director Finance & Corporate 

Key Service: Managing the annual budget & financial reporting and long term financial planning, managing financial risks including 
treasury, rates and other taxation type measures for the Council 

Risk Name: Records Management

Risk Risk Description Causes Control Risk

10 Effectiveness Rating

139 Inconsistently applied record Lack of audit trail for documents/external Adequate High
management practices Documents and emails not saved in ECM

Non - compliance with processes and requirements
Lack of awareness and training

Risk Impacts Existing Controls

Breach of State Records Act Record management policy and guidelines
Inefficiencies Training
Incomplete records Dedicated resources

Loss of records ECM

Update:

All new staff is required to complete online Recordkeeping Awareness Training as part of their induction and depending on their 
role they are also required to undertake ECM training. A presentation to Elected Members on their recordkeeping resp.onsibilities 
has been developed and will be scheduled for early 2018. The internal auditors (Deloitte) will be undertaking an audit of the 

organisations’ records management practices during the 2017/18 financial year (date to be confirmed). A review of technology 
solutions was undertaken in the form of a staff survey of ECM during August 2017. The results and information gained from the 

. survey will be used to develop strategies to address any issues and improve use of the system.
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HIGH/EXTEME RISKS QUARTERLY REPORT

Risk Owner: Director Finance & Corporate / Executive Manager Strategy & Civic Support 

Key Service: Managing the annual budget & financial reporting and long term financial planning, managing financial risks including 

treasury, rates and other taxation type measures for the Council. 

Risk Name: Project Management

Risk Risk Description Causes Control Risk

10 Effectiveness Rating

143 Fail to consistently apply project Resistance to cultural change Adequate High
management methodology and Inconsistent and duplication of processes
implementation to City projects lack of skills training

Inconsistent project management frameworks

Selecting the wrong project management software

solution for the city
Fundamental lack of governance from an IS perspective

Risk Impacts Existing Controls

Capital works carryover Project management tools

Silo approach to projects Staff training

Budget impacts Cross functional meetings
Parachuted project long term financial plan

Update:

Planning continues, led by three senior officers and overseen by three Executive Team Members. Consultation has commenced 

across the organisation including the Senior Management Team and Directors to discuss the progress of the plan including the 

implementation timeframe and the priorities (as to which business units). The Engineering and Works plus the Governance and 

Community Services are being prioritised as they in turn are responsible for the majority of the capital projects by size and dollar 

value.
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HIGH/EXTEME RISKS QUARTERLY REPORT

Risk Owner: Director Engineering and Works 

Key Service: Delivering and maintaining a safe road, cycleway and path system, developing and maintaining parks, and 

landscaping the natural environment for the enjoyment of everyone; the collecting and disposing of waste from all properties in the 
district and providing and maintaining all buildings and other facilities on Council property for community use. 
Risk Name: Water Availability

Risk Risk Description Causes Control Risk

10 Effectiveness Rating

139 Reducing water availability to irrigate Drying climate Adequate High
City and maintain service delivery and Lower allocation of groundwater, by Department of water

amenity

Risk Impacts Existing Controls

Poor appearance of street scapes and Water management plan

parks Adapt landscaping plans
Water recharge options
Community education

Update:

The City continues to liaise with Department of Water on water availability from recycled water and redistribution of abstracted 

groundwater.

~
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12.2 (2017/MINUTE NO 0003) LEGAL PROCEEDINGS BETWEEN 
COUNCIL AND OTHER PARTIES

Author(s) 

Attachments

J Ngoroyemoto 

1. Summary of Legal Proceedings commenced 
and/or responded to by 
the City (2016-2017 financial year) 
(CONFIDENTIAL) 

2. Fratelle Architectural Services Termination of 

Contract Legal proceedings summary 
(CONFIDENTIAL)

RECOMMENDATION 

That Council receive the report on legal proceedings commenced or 

responded to by the City during 2016/17 financial year.

COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION 

MOVED Cr C Reeve-Fowkes SECONDED Cr S Portelli

That the recommendation be adopted.

CARRIED 5/0

Background

At its meeting held on 12 October 2006, Council adopted a new 

Position Statement PSES13 "Legal Proceedings Between Council and 

Other Parties". At the May 2016 DAPPS Committee Meeting, Policy 
SES1 ’Obtaining Legal or Other Expert Advice’ and associated 

delegated authority was presented for clarification on the methodology 

by which legal or other expert advice is provided to Elected Members to 

enable them to perform their civic function. As a result the "Legal Advice 

Register" provided annually to the Audit and Strategic Finance 

Committee is now limited to the notification of those issues which are in 

relation to, or a result of a Council resolution, or where the amount 

related to administrative advice is of such an amount to warrant 

Council’s attention only.

Submission

N/A

Report

Clause 2 of Position Statement PSES13, sub-clause (7) and (8)
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states:

(7) The Chief Executive Officer shall establish and maintain a 

procedure which enables those matters which are subject to the terms 
of this Position Statement to be centrally recorded and updated, as 

appropriate.

(8) A record of the procedure mentioned in (7) above shall be 

presented to the Audit Committee at least annually, or as often as 
considered appropriate by the Chief Executive 
Officer or as requested by any member of the Audit Committee.

The Audit Calendar - Part 6 in the month of November states:

(6) Monitor the progress of any major law suits facing the Council. 

(Internal Audit).

A Summary of the Legal Proceedings commenced or responded to by 
the City during the 2016/17 financial year, as a result of a Council 

resolution, or of significant amount that warrants Council’s attention has 
been circulated under separate confidential cover.

Strategic Plans/Policy Implications

Leading & Listening

Deliver sustainable governance through transparent and robust policy 
and processes

Budget/Financial Implications

The table below highlights the legal fees expensed during 2016-2017 
with commensurate, where relevant, fines and penalties arising from 

the incurring of the legal expenditure. The City, further incurs expenses 
for rates recovery, but in 93.8% of the cases, the amounts expended 
are recovered. The break-up of where the funds are spent is detailed in 

the table below as well.

LEGAL SERVICES 2016/17

Legal Firms Actual Budget

.........................................................................................................................7...................................7................................... 

General - McLeods i $445,177 i N/A 

...~.~.~.~.;~;..~..~~~..~.~.~.~;.~~.................................................................r............~.~~:.~.~.~..T......................~~.~... 
.........................................................................................................................t....................................~................................... 

...~~~~.~..~.~.~.~.~~.I.......................................................................................l............~.~.~.~~.~.~.~...l............~.~.~.~:.~.~.:...
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.........................................................................................................................-;-...................................f................................... 

.~CVV:Ja~kS~n~c~onal~.....,$97:.382.$10~:OOO 

...~~~~~..~~~~~~~...............................................................................T..................................r................................. 
. .......................................... ......................... .... ............................... ...................~..................... ......... ......?.................... ... ........... 

Debt Collection ! $247,647 ! $100,000 

~i~~~i;,i~:$~~~,~;~L$;~~,~~~ 
Net ~ $16,272 ~ Nil 

.........................................................................................................................1...................................1’.................................. 
..........................................................................................................................?..................................?................................... 

Fines and Penalties Income i $299,712 ! $178,545 

~~t~;~~,;;=(a~~r;,n~~~~~~~~~,ti~~)L~2~~,::6I~3~~,~9~ 
........................................................................................................................T..................................r.................................

The above excludes parking, litter and firebreak infringements.

Legal Implications

N/A

Community Consultation

N/A

Risk Management Implications

There are no risks associated with this recommendation, However 

failure to present this report to the Council annually presents a 

compliance risk in accordance with Position Statement PSES13 ’Legal 

Proceedings Between Council and Other Parties’, and Policy SES1 

’Obtaining Legal or Other Expert Advice’ & Associated delegated 

authority.

Advice to Proponent(s)/Submissioners

N/A

Implications of Section 3.18(3) Local Government Act, 1995

Nil
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13. PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT DIVISION ISSUES 

Nil
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14. FINANCE & CORPORATE SERVICES DIVISION ISSUES

14.1 (2017/MINUTE NO 0004) 2017 ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT & 
EXTERNAL AUDIT REPORT

Author(s) 

Attachments

N Mauricio 

1. Annual Financial Report 2017 

2. Summary Annual Financial Report 2017 

3. Audit Completion Report & Proposed Audit 

Opinion 2017 

4. Auditor’s Report on Summary Financials 2017

RECOMMENDATION 

That Council accept:

(1) the annual financial report for the year ended 30 June 2017, as 

attached to the Agenda;

(2) the summary financial report for the year ended 30 June 2017, as 

attached to the Agenda;

(3) the audit completion report & proposed audit opinion 2017; and 

(4) the auditor’s report on summary financials 2017.

The Presiding Member invited Mr Macri and Mr Herathmudalige to brief 

the Committee on 2017 Annual Financial Report and External Audit 

Report. Committee Members presented questions to which responses 
were provided by the Auditors.

The Presiding Member thanked the Auditors for their brief.

COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION 

MOVED Cr C Reeve-Fowkes SECONDED Cr M Separovich

That the recommendation be adopted.t

CARRIED 5/0

Background

As set out in its terms of reference, the Audit and Strategic Finance 

Committee (ASFC) is required to review the City’s annual financial 

report and recommend its adoption to Council. The listed duties and

~ 59of174
Version: 4, Version Date: 20/04/2022
Document Set ID: 6859306



ASFC 16/11/2017 Item 14.1

responsibilities of the ASFC include reviewing Council’s annual financial 

report, focusing on:

1. accounting policies and practices; 
2. changes to accounting policies and practices; 
3. the process used in making significant accounting estimates; 
4. any significant adjustments to the financial report arising from the 

audit process; 

5. compliance with accounting standards and other reporting 
requirements; 

6. significant variances from prior years.

The committee is also required to discuss any issues arising from the 

audit of the annual financial report with the auditor. The Local 

Government Act 1995 requires the City to meet with the auditor at least 

once in every year.

Regulation 9 (2) of The Local Government (Audit) Regulations 1996 
states that the principal objective of the external audit is to carry out 

such work as is necessary to form an opinion as to whether:

a) the accounts are properly kept; and

b) the annual financial report:

i. is prepared in accordance with financial records; and

ii. represents fairly the results of the operations of the local 

government at 30 June in accordance with Australian 

Accounting Standards and the Local Government Act 1995. 

The Audit Plan for the 2017 financial year as prepared by the City’s 
auditor (Macri Partners) was presented to the July 2017 meeting of the 
A&SF Committee and adopted by Council. This outlined the purpose 
and scope of the external audit and explained the audit methodology 
and approach to be taken.

Submission

N/A

Report

2017 Annual Financial Report

The annual financial report is presented to the Audit and Strategic 
Finance Committee in two formats:

1. Financial Statements including all accounting and supporting notes 

(Detailed).
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2. Summary Financial Statements excluding all accounting and 

supporting notes.

The Summary Financial Statements differ from the full set in that they 
don’t contain the accompanying financial notes and discussion and 

analysis. Both sets have been approved by the City’s Chief Executive 

Officer and auditor (Macri Partners).

The Summary Financial Statements have been prepared specifically for 

inclusion in the City’s Annual Report, as the full set is too lengthy and 

mostly irrelevant to the report’s audience. The full set of Financial 

Statements will be published separately on the City’s website.

Statement of Comprehensive Income

1. Operating Result

The City’s operating result for 2017 came in at $4.4M, down by 
$4.0M on the previous year. Operating expenditure increased by 
11.3% versus an increase of 7.4% in operating revenue. This is 

still a healthy result, as it demonstrates the City generates more 
than enough revenue to cover its costs, including depreciation.

Overall, operating revenues of $139.6M were up $9.7M year on 

year. The main contributors were revenue from rates up $5.0M 

(5.5%) and operating grants and subsidies up $5.7M (70.7%). 
This is mainly attributable to the impact of $3.9M from the ever 

changing practice of the Federal Government in paying federal 

financial assistance grants (FAGS). This year’s FAGS included 

an advance of 50% of next year’s funding whilst the previous 

year did not. There was also an increase of $1.3M in child day 
care subsidies received year on year, reflecting strong growth in 

service delivery.

Operating expenses were up for the year by $13.7M to $135.2M. 

Employee costs, the City’s biggest operational expense item, 
were up $5.0M (10.7%) to $52.1 M and were impacted by $2.1 M 

for the commissioning of the Cockburn ARC facility. Spending on 
materials and contracts was up 8.2% to $37.7M (+$2.8M) with 
the biggest impact coming from a $1.2M increase in payments to 

childcare givers reflecting the growth in services delivered. This 

result also reflects $0.7M of costs for the Cockburn ARC and an 

extra $0.5M for the triennial GRV property valuations. Insurance 

expenses came in $0.2M (10%) higher than last year at $2.4M. 
Back claimed workers compensation was the main reason for 
this increase. Interest expenses increased from $85k to $1.0M 

(+$0.9M) due to the previous year’s borrowings for the Cockburn 
ARC facility.
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Depreciation expense (non-cash) increased by 15.4% to $27.5M 

(+$3.7M). This reflected an increase in building depreciation of 

$1.2M due to the commissioning of the Cockburn ARC building 
in January 2017. There was also an impact of $0.9M from the 

depreciation of Port Coogee Marina assets, which was handed 

over to the City in July 2016. A revaluation of parks equipment 
assets in June 2016 also contributed to an extra $0.9M in 

depreciation (year on year) for this asset class. Amortisation of 

landfill infrastructure assets increased by $0.8M (year on year) 
due to amortisation now recorded for the rehabilitation of the site.

2. Net Result

Including non-operating activities, the City’s net result (before 
asset revaluations) was up $20.2M on the previous year to 

$71.9M. Although negatively impacted by the $4.0M decline in 

the operating result, the following non-operating activities 

contributed an additional net $24.2M.

Capital grants and contributions received of $11.1 M were down 

$12.6M year on year. State and federal capital grants were down 

$2.4M mainly due to the Cockburn ARC project winding up. 
However, the significant impact came from private capital 
contributions (-$10.1 M) as a result of adjustments made to the 

JV partner share of incurred construction costs for Cockburn 

ARC.

$5.6M received from the City’s Developer Contribution Plans 

(DCP) was down $3.6M year on year, reflecting a slowdown in 

land development across the City in 2016-17. $4.6M was 
received for the community infrastructure plan (down $1.9M) and 

$1.0M for the road infrastructure plans (down $1.7M). 

The City received gifted assets valued at $54.3M in July 2016 

related to the Port Coogee marina. Infrastructure assets within 

new subdivisions gifted by developers totalled $8.4M, down 

$4.7M on the $13.1 M gifted the previous year. 

Expenses for land ceded to the Crown increased by $14.0M due 

to the purchase of recreational land using POS cash in lieu funds 

of $14.6M.

Profit from the sale of assets of $5.7M was up (+$5.3M) on last 

year’s result, mostly from the sale of commercial land totalling 
$1 0.9M on Beeliar Drive, Yangebup.

With the opening of the Cockburn ARC facility and the 

subsequent decommissioning of the South Lake Leisure Centre 

(SLLC), the City was required to book an impairment charge of
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$3.2M. This represented the remaining written down value of the 

SLLC as at 30 June 2017.

Statement of Financial Position

The City’s net assets and total equity was unchanged during the 

reporting year, remaining at $1, 162.8M. This reflects a decrease in total 

assets of $21.5M, comprising current assets (-$38.9M) and non-current 
assets (+$17.4M). These were however offset by a decrease in total 
liabilities of $21.5M, comprising current liabilities (-$13.2M) and non- 
current liabilities (-$8.3M).

1. Assets

The decrease in current assets of $38.9M (year on year) 
includes $36.2M less in cash and investments, reflecting the 

lower amount of cash held in financial reserves. Receivables 

were also lower by $6.8M, mainly due to the invoiced Cockburn 

ARC JV contribution in the previous year.

The increase in non-current assets of $17.5M comprised a net 

increase of $16.8M in the value of property, plant & equipment 

(PPE) and an increase of $3.9M in infrastructure assets.

PPE assets were impacted this year by the triennial revaluation 

of land and buildings, with land losing $11.3M in fair value and 

buildings gaining $0.5M. PPE was also impacted by the new 
Cockburn ARC building at $83.2M (offset by the work in progress 
spend from the previous year of $64.9M) and the gifting of the 

Port Coogee marina services building at $1.7M.

Infrastructure assets were impacted by a number of significant 
transactions including the gifting of Port Coogee marina assets 

(+$52.6M) and the gifting of roads, drainage and parks 
infrastructure (+$8.4M). The annual revaluation of infrastructure 
assets also had significant impact on asset values with Roads 

suffering a decrease of $68.5M primarily due to an extensive 

condition audit undertaken last year. Drainage had an increase 

of $5.9M due to improving levels of data accuracy, whilst both 

footpaths (+$0.6M) and parks infrastructure (+$1.0M) also had 

increases in value. There were also acquisitions of $21.2M less 

depreciation of $19.9M transacted during the year. 

2. Liabilities

Current liabilities reduced year on year by $13.1M to $18.5M, 
with trade & other payables the main reason, decreasing by 
$14.2M to $9.4M. This is considered a more normal level as last 

year’s result had been impacted by the June end of month 

payment run being processed on 1 st July (+$6.5M) and the June
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progress claim for Cockburn ARC (+$8.4M). Current leave 

provisions were also $1.2M higher on last year at $6.6M, mainly 
attributable to annual leave (+$O.8M).

Non-current liabilities reduced by $8.3M from last year, primarily 
due to the new treatment of bonds and deposits received as trust 

fund items this year (-$5.8M). Non-current loan borrowings were 
also paid down by $3.1 M to $20.0M (of total borrowings of 

$22.5M including current liability).

Changes in Equity

Cash backed reserves held by the City decreased by $21.1 M to 

$1 05.5M during the reporting year, with the completion of the Cockburn 

ARC facility drawing down on several reserves. Reserves with 

significant decreases included the Cockburn Central West (CCW) 

Facility Reserve (down $1 O.3M to $O.5M), the Waste Reserve (down 
$1 O.7M to $13.2M), POS Cash in Lieu (down $5.5M to nil - now Trust), 

Developer Contributions- Community Infrastructure (down $4.4M to 

$6.0M) and Land & Development Fund Reserve (down $2.2M to 

$4.2M).

Reserves that increased significantly during the year were the Roads & 

Drainage Infrastructure (up $5.8M to $14.0M) and the new Port Coogee 
Waterways Management (WEMP) Reserve ($2.3M). 

The Revaluation Surplus reduced by $71.9M to $503.5M as a result of 

the annual management valuation of roads, footpaths, drainage and 

parks infrastructure (down a net $61.1 M) , as well as the triennial 

valuation of land & buildings undertaken by a licensed valuer (down a 
net $1 O.8M).

The City’s accumulated surplus increased by $93.0M to $553.8M. This 

represented the $71.9M net surplus result, plus the $21.1 M net transfer 

of funds to financial reserves.

Statement of Cash Flows

The City’s net incoming cash flows from operating activities reduced by 
$14.1 M to $26.9M for the reporting year. This still reflects strong 

operating cash flows that allow the City to continue funding new assets 
and asset renewals and upgrades as planned.

Cash of $83.3M was outlaid on capital spending, a slight increase of 

$5.3M on the previous year.

Cash flows from grants and contributions received for the development 
of assets reduced by $16.1 M to $16.7M, with the decrease mainly 
attributable to less grant receipts for the Cockburn ARC project. Cash
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received from the sale of assets was up by $9.0M to $12.5M, due to the 

sale of two large lots of land on Beeliar Drive, Yangebup.

The City repaid $3.2M of outstanding borrowings, including the early 

repayment of the emergency services building self-funding loan at the 

request of DFES.

Cash and cash equivalents decreased during the year by $36.2M to 

$115.4M, representing the fall in funds held in financial reserves and 

the transfer of funds held for bonds and deposits into the Trust fund in 

accordance with legal advice.

Rate Setting Statement

This statement shows the most complete view of the City’s financial 

performance for 2017 and determines the municipal budget surplus.

The City’s closing funds at 30 June 2017 were $6.6M, down $2.6M 

against the previous year. $5.4M of the closing funds is unspent monies 

required to complete carried forward works and projects. The remaining 
balance of $1.2M represents uncommitted funds carried forward into 

the next year. In setting the 2017-18 budget, an estimated $2.5M of 

uncommitted funds were allowed for.

The total amount raised from general rates was up $5.0M (5.5%) on 
last year to $96.4M and includes additional revenue from development 

growth in the City’s rating base. This was $0.6M above the adopted 

budget target.

Financial Ratios

The WA Local Government (Financial Management) Regulations 1996 

prescribe seven financial ratios that are to be included in the annual 

financial report. These ratios are also used by the Department of Local 

Government & Communities (DLGC) as a measurement of a local 

government’s overall financial health. They form the basis of 

calculations used for the Financial Health Indicator (FHI) displayed on 

the MyCouncil website.
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Asset Consumption Ratio 0.688 0.714 
i

0.50 0.75

Asset RenewaiF’ nd ing-Rati
............!--- 

o. 729-----0~741
........................................... 

0.75 1.10

Six of the ratios are well above the DLGC benchmark, with three 

exceeding the high ratio mark (in bold). The Asset Renewal Funding 
Ratio (comparing value of planned renewal spend in L TFP against 
requirements in AMP’s) is only slightly below the benchmark.

The results from these seven ratios produce an FHI score for the City of 
90 (compared to 89 last year). This result is the highest achieved by the 

City to date. An FHI result of 70 and above indicates sound financial 
health according to the DLGC. 

Audit Report

The 2017 annual financial report was audited by Macri Partners and 

their assigned Audit Partner, Mr Tony Macri. They were signed off as 

being true and fair and without qualification. The Local Government Act 

requires the City to meet with the auditor at least once in every year 
and the auditor will be present at the meeting to discuss the audit report 
and any audit findings.

Strategic Plans/Policy Implications

Leading & Listening

Deliver sustainable governance through transparent and robust policy 
and processes

Ensure sound long term financial management and deliver value for 

money

Budget/Financial Implications

The cost of the external audit is sufficiently covered within the City’s 
annual budget. 

Legal Implications

Local Government Act 1995 Sections 5.54,6.4,7.9 and 7.12A 

Local Government (Audit) Regulations 1996 Regulations 9 and 10

Community Consultation

N/A
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Risk Management Implications

It is a requirement under the Local Government Act for Council to 

accept the City’s annual report (including the financial report and 

auditor’s report) by no later than 31 December each year. Failure to do 

so will lead to statutory non-compliance.

Advice to Proponent(s)/Submissioners

N/A

Implications of Section 3.18(3) Local Government Act, 1995

Nil
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Statement by Chief Executive Officer

The attached financial report of the City of Cockburn, being the Annual Financial Report and supporting notes and other information 

for the financial year ended 30 June 2017, are in my opinion, properly drawn up to present fairly the financial position of the City of 

Cockburn at 30 June 2017 and the results of the operations for the financial year then ended, in accordance with the Australian 

Accounting Standards and comply with the provisions of the Local Government Act 1995 and the regulations under that Act.

Signed as authorisation of issue on the (date]

seal" 

Chlrl Exrcutlvr Ol/lerr
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Understanding the Financial Statements

Introduction

The Financial Statements show how the Council performed fnancially during the 2016/17 financial year and 

presents the financial position as at the 30.h June 2017.

Council is required to prepare its’ financial statements in accordance with the Australian Accounting Standards, 

the Local Government Act 1995 and the associated Local Government Regulations. As Council is a "not-for- 

profit" organisation in the public sector, some of the generally recognised terms used in private sector reports are 

not ideally transferable to the Local Government environment.

Cockburn Council is mindful of its role of acting in the public interest and it is in this context that this guide is 

provided to assist readers in understanding and analysing the financial statements.

What is contained in the Financial Statements?

Council’s Financial Statements has two sections, namely:

(1) The principal Financial Statements 

(2) The Notes to and Forming Part of the Financial Statements.

There are five (5) principal Financial Statements and twenty eight (39) Notes to the Accounts. These are prepared 

by Council staff, audited by an independent Auditor, presented to Council’s Audit Committee and then accepted 

by full Council as part of the Annual Report.

The five Principal Financial Statements comprise the following:

. Statement of Financial Position 

. Statement of Changes in Equity 

. Statement of Comprehensive income 

. Cash Flow Statement 

. Rate Setting Statement

The Notes to the Accounts include the accounting policies that were applied in preparing the financial statements, 

as well as more detailed information relating to specific items and values disclosed within the statements.

Statement of Financial Position

This statement is a snap shot of the financial position of the Council as at 30 June 2017. it shows what Council 

owns as assets and what it owes as liabilities. The bottom line of this statement is the net assets and is equivalent 

to the net worth of the Council that has built up since inception.

The assets and liabilities are separated into those that are Current and Non Current. Current means those assets 

and liabHities, which are likely to be consumed or extinguished within the next 12 months. Non Current refers to 

assets and liabilities with an economic life extending beyond 12 months.

Statement of Changes in Equity

From one year to the next, the value of and composition of equity (as reported within the Statement of Financial 

Position) changes. Equity can be defined as being the net worth of Councilor its net assets (Assets less liabilities).
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Council’s equity Is comprised of Cash Backed Reserves, Asset Revaluation Reserve (non cash) and the Accumulated 

Surplus. Net surpluses (or deficits) from Council’s operations (as disclosed in the Statement of Comprehensive 

Income), will change the overall total of equity (via the accumulated 5urplu5). A55et revaluation5 al50 impact 

Council’s net worth position. Transfers to and from ca5h backed re5erve5, whil5t not impacting the overall total of 

equity, demonstrate the consumption of or accumulation of savings for future purposes.

Stat~m~nt of Compr~h~nsiv~ Incom~

The Statement of Comprehensive Income shows:

. The sources of Council’s Revenue under various Program Headings 

. The expen5es incurred in running the Council during the year under Program Headings

The5e expenses relate only to the operations and do not include the costs associated with the purcha5e or the 

building of assets. While asset purchase costs are not included in expenses, there is an item for depreciation. This 

is the annual allocation of the cost of assets by reference to the remaining useful life of assets.

The key figure is the change in net assets resulting from operations and this year, it indicates that revenues 

exceeded expenses.

Cash Flow Stat~m~nt

The Cash Flow Statement summarises Council’s cash payments and cash receipts for the year. This statement is 

presented according to a very specific accounting standard and needs some care and analysis. The values in the 

Cash Flow Statement differ from those shown in the Statement of Comprehensive Income, as it is prepared on a 

cash basis, whereas the Statement of Comprehensive Income is prepared on an accruals basis.

Cash in this 5tatement refers to bank deposits and other forms of highly liquid investments that can be readily 

converted to cash.

Council’s cash arises from and Is used in three main areas:

. Operating activities 

. Investing activities - this term relates to a5sets such as infrastructure, plant, land and other long-term 

revenue producing assets. 

. Financing activities - this is used to record the receipt and repayment of external financing such as loans and 

leases.

The bottom line of the Cash Flow Statement shows the cash held at the end of the financial year.

Rat~ Sdting Stat~m~nt

The inclusion of a Rate Setting Statement in the annual statements is a requirement of the Local Government 

(Financial Management) Regulations 1996. The format for this statement is prescribed within the regulations and 

is the same as that included in the annual budget.

As the name suggests, the Rate Setting Statement sets out the total amount of general rates proposed in the 

budget and the amount actually raised during the reporting year. To arrive at these, the statement reconciles all 

sources and application of funds and the closing surplus or deficit (less any opening balances). This includes all 

operational revenue and expenses (as included in the Statement of Comprehensive Income) together with all 

capital acquisitions made, transfers to and from cash-backed reserves and transactions associated with 

borrowings.
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The Rate Setting Statement provides a more complete picture of the council’s financial activities during the 

reporting year compared to the Statement of Comprehensive Income (which reports only on the operational 

activities).

Not.s to the Accounts

The notes are a very important and informative section of the Report. They provide additional meaning to and 

information in support of the principal statements.

The Significant Accounting Policies at note 1 provide the reader with the policies and parameters used in 

preparing the Statements. In other words, these are the ground rules that form the basis for preparing the 

statements.

Apart from the Accounting Policies, the other notes provide the details behind many of the summarised figures 

contained within the statements. Where there is a direct correlation between amounts, the applicable note 

number is disclosed beside the relevant item in the statements.

The notes should be read in conjunction with the prncipal Financial Statements to get a clearer understanding of 

Council’s financial position.

Auditor’s Report & CEO’s Statement

The independent Audit Report provides an external and independent opinion on the Financial Statements. It 

provides the reader with the scope of the audit work undertaken and expresses an audit opinion formed on this 

basis. The audit opinion relates to the fairness aspects and the statutory compliance of the Financial Statements.

The Statement by the Chief Executive Officer serves as a written undertaking by management to the correctness 

and fairness of the statements.
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Statement of Comprehensive Income

by Nature or Type
for the Year Ended 30 June 2017

Actual Budget Actual

Nat~ 2016/17 2016/17 2015/16

S S S

OPERATING REVENUE

Rates 23a 96,337,163 95,700,000 91,311,030

Specified Area Rates 23b 312,936 330,000 341,727

Fees and Charges 25 22,353,295 24,368,500 22,072,981

Service Charges 440,700 450,000 1,066,477

Operating Grants and Subsidies 27 13,752,463 9,357,649 8,057,274

Contributions, Donations and Reimbursements 1.203.429 638,665 1,372,307

Interest Earnings 5,157,532 4,772,036 5,678,901

Total Ope,.tine Revenue 139,557,517 135,616,850 129,900,696

OPERATING EXPENDITURE

Employee Cost (52,132,049) (48,822,391) (47,084,154)

Materials and Contracts (37,709,273) (38,979,850) (34,865,658)

Utilities (4,748,358) (4,684,525) (4,363,875)

Interest Expenses (966.490) (930,000) (85,602)

Insurances (2.444,985) (2,244,048) (2,223,550)

Other Expenses (7,810,268) (7,328,893) (7,976,582)

Depreciation on Non Current Assets (27,465,498) (26,353,614) (23,790,540)

Finance Cost (490,620)

Amortisation on Landfllllnf,astructure (1,391,018) (1.191,132) (1,0&4,912)

Total Ope,atlne Expenditure (135,158,559) (130,534,453) (121,454,871)

Incnase/(Oecre..e) 4,398,958 5,082,396 8,445,825

NON-OPERATING ACTIVITIE5

Non-Operating Grants, Subsidies and Conlributlons 27 11,063,443 23,245,184 23,618,162

Developers Contributions Plans: Cash 5,631,840 11,721,922 9,llO,108

Gllted Subdivision Assels 9b. lOb 62,676,020 13,128,414

Increase/(Decrease) in Equity - Joint Venture 17 499,833 (2,344,579)

Increase/(Decrease) in LG House Trust (2.718) (16,582)

Assets Gifted to Other Parties (14,566,385) (610,366)

Impairment Charge - Buildings 9b (3,200,000)

Profit on Sale of Assets 20b 5,684,213 14,650 364,400

Loss on Sale of Assets 20b (271,825) (121,241)

Total Non-Operatlnc Activities 67,514,422 34,981,756 43,238,316

NET RESULT 71,913,380 40,064,152 51,684,141

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Item. rhot will not bit rec/ou/fied .ub.equently to profit or Iou

Changes on revalua tlon of non-current assets lS (71,904,359) 7,190.450

Total Other Comprehensive Income (71,904,359) 7,190,450

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 9,021 40,064,152 58,874,591

The Statement of Comprehensive Incomf? should be fe-ad In conjunction with the accompanying nores.
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Statement of Comprehensive Income

by program
Actual Budget Actual

For the y..r ended 30Junll 2017 2016/17 2016/17 2015/16

NOt~ $ $ S

REVENUES

Revenue From Ordinary Activities

General Purpose Funding 108,691,413 105,371,974 100,301,439

Governance 165,070 131,550 231,074

Law Order & Public Safety 999,756 803,944 962,430

Health 336,647 260,500 309,815

Education & Welfare 8,886,134 6,417,260 7,049,298

(ommtJnity Amenities 9,937,578 11,717,236 11,875,672

Recreation & Culture 4,300,089 5,018,140 4,101,359

Transport 219,702 315,000 522,125

Economic Services 2,045,897 2,325,503 2,120,142

Other Property & Services 3,975,230 3,255,743 2,427,343

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES 139,557,517 135,616,850 129,900,696

EXPENSES

General Purpose Funding (1,854,910) (1,569,505) (1,165,505)

Governance (9,950,052) (11,445, 157) (10,153,011)

law Order & Public Safety (6,335,833) (6.460,903) (6,004,225)

Health (2,340,611) (2,466,674) (2.454,667)

Education & Welfare (15,231,102) (13,138,099) (13,228,316)

Community Amenities (33,210,050) (33,631,070) {30, 160,766)

Recreation & Culture (33,531,641) (30,634,527) (28,531,696)

Transport (26,399,596) (26,567,806) (25,497,265)

Economic Services (2,618,309) (2,564,698) (2,504,795)

Other Property & Services (3,686.454) (2,056,014) (1.754,625)

Total Opentinc Expendltur. (135,158,559) (130,534,453) (121,454,871)

Incr..se/tOecrease} 4,398,958 5,082,396 8,445,825

NON.OPERATING GRANTS/CONTRIBUTIONS TOWARDS ASSETS: CASH

General Purpose Funding 4,136,093 85,557 89,267

Governance 2,082,l35 18,079,999 17,437,563

law Order & Public Safety 706,195 117,897

Education & Welfare 200,000 23,640

Community Amenities (5,433,663) 603,645

Recreation & Culture 930,356 4.154,220 199,633

Transport 10.272,804 3,805,408 5,115,016

Economic Services

Other Property & Services 3.801,362 8,841.922 9.251,608

16,695,283 34,967,106 32,838,270

Gifted Subdivision Assets 9b,lOo 62,676,020 13,128,414

Assets Gifted to Other Parties (14,566,385) (610,366)

Increase/(Oecrease} in Equity - Joint Venture 11 499,833 (2,344,579)

Increase/(Oecrea~) in lG House Trust (2,718) (16,582)

Impairment Charge - Buildings 9b (3,200,OOO)

PROFIT /(LOSS) ON DISPOSAL OF ASSETS

law Order & Public Safety 30,625

Education & Welfare 31,800 12,000 42,300

Recreation & Culture (271,825) (9O,767)

Transport 309,263 32,150 283,348

Other Properly & Services 5,312,525 (29,500) 8,278

lOb 5,412,388 14,650 243,160

NET RESULT 71,913,380 40,064,152 51,684,141

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

It.m~ that will not M reclassified subsequently to profit or loss

Changes on revaluation of non.current assets " (7I,904,359) 7,190,450

Total Other Compreh.nsiv.lncome (71,904,359) 7,190,450

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 9,021 40,064,152 58,874,591

rhe Slatement of Comprehensive Income should be (cad in conjunction with the occompo’Wirlg tlOles.
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Statement of Financial Position

Actual Budget Actual

As at 30 June 2017 2016/17 2016/17 2015/16

Not.. $ $ $

CU RRENT ASSETS

Cash and Cash Equivalents 115,396,082 114,885,061 151,554,000

Financial Assets’ Current 3,841,492

Trade & Other Receivables 6,894,909 7,033,800 13,656,877

Other Assets 911,565 65,000 715,996

Inventories 21,782 13,700 41,102

Total ClIrrent Assets 127,065,830 121,997,561 165,967,975

NON CURRENT ASSETS

Financial Assets. Non Current 1,202,453 4,813,070 4,819,364

Interests in Joint Ventures 6,592.991 8,437,737 6,093,158

Trade & Other Receivables 858,657 630,000 738,851

Property, Plant and Equipment 328,223,270 351,112,618 311,375,336

Infrastructure 10 740,089,224 714,640,302 736,216,337

Rehabilitation Assets II 16,211,653 16,517,533

Total Non Current Assets 1,093,178,248 t,079,633,727 1.075,760,579

TOTAL ASSETS 1.220,244.078 1.201,631,288 1,241,728,554

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Trade & Other Payables t2. 9,381,006 2,225,000 23,605,924

Borrowings 12. 2,500,000 2,597,175 2,593,138

Provisions 13 6,596,413 2,000,000 5,425,888

Total Current Liabilities 18,477,419 6,822,175 31,624,950

NON CURRENT LIABILITIES

Other Payables 123 6,329,512 5,761,532

Borrowings 12b 20,000,000 20,552,860 23,150,036

Provisions 13 18,957,592 6,544,855 18,391,990

Total Non Current Liabilities 38,957,592 33,427.227 47,303,558

TOTAL LIABILITIES 57,435,012 40,249,402 78,928,508

NET ASSETS 1,162,809,067 1,161,381,886 1,162,800,045

EQUITY

Accumulated Surplus 553,757,996 477,327,907 460,767,729

Reserves. Cash/Investment Backed 1A 105,523,070 115,812,070 126,599,957

Revaluation Surplus 15 503,528,001 568,241,909 575,432,360

TOTAL EQUITY 1,162,809,067 1,161,381,886 1,162,800,045

The Statemf"nt of Financial Position should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Statement of Changes in Equity

RESERVES CASH/INVESTMENT BACKED 

Balance at beginning of year 

Transfer from accumulated surplus 

Transfer to accumulated surplus 

Balance al end of reporting period 14

Actu.1 Budget Actual

2016/17 2016/17 20]5/16

$ S S

126,599,957 124,078,024 107,073,767

61.219,722 44,411,004 68,342,790

(82,296,608) (52,676,958) (48,816,600)

105,523,070 115,812,070 126,599,957

575,432,360 568,241,909 568,241,909

7,966,579 15,359,080

(79,870,938) (8,168,629)

503,528,001 568,241,909 575,432,360

460,767,729 428,997,800 428,609,779

71,913,380 40,064,152 51,684,141

82,296,608 52,676,958 48,816,412

(61,219.722) (44,411,004 ) (68,342,602)

553,757,996 477,327,907 460,767,729

1,162,809,067 1,161,381,886 1,162,800,04S

For the year ended 30 June 2017

Not.,

REVALUATION SURPLUS 

Balance al beginning of year 

Revaluation Increments during year 

Revaluation Decrements during year 

Balance at end of reportng period 15

ACCUMULATED SURPLUS 

Balance at beginning of year 

Net result 

Transfer from reserves 

Transfer to reserves 

Balance at end of reporting period

TOTAL EQUITY

The Statement oj Changes in Equity shoufd be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Statement of Cash Flows

Actual Budget Actual

For the year ended 30 June 2017 2016/17 2016/17 2015/16

Notes S S S

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Payments

Employee Cost (50,886,542) (48,822,391) (46,236,902)

Materials and Contracts (51,794,610) (47,479,850) (20,127,926)

Utilities (4,748,358) (4,684,525) (4,363,875)

Interest Paid (966,490) (930,000) (85,602)

Insurances (2,444,985) (2,244,048) (2,223,550)

Other Expenses (7,810,268) (7,328,893) (7,976,582)

GST on Payments (13,367,790) (10,657,073)

(132,019,043) (111,489,707) (91,671,509)

Receipts

Rates & Special Area Rates 96,076,683 96,030,000 90,889,316

Fees and Charges 27,947,790 27,368,500 16,128,057

Service Charges 440,700 450,000 1,066,477

Contributions, Donations and Reimbursements 1,203,429 638,665 1.372.307

Interest Received 4,882,964 4,772,036 5,438,875

Grants & Subsidies. Operating 13,752,463 9,857,649 8,057,274

Other Revenue/Income 597,526

GST on Receipts 3,648,584 2,973,834

GST Refunded by ATO 10,426,932 5,000,000 6,786,736

158,977 ,070 144,116,850 132,712,876

NET CASH flOWS PROVIDED BY!(USED IN) OPERATING
16. 26,958,027 32,627,142 41,041,367

ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from Sale on Non Current Assets lOb 12,503,975 1,264,650 3,471,651

Purchase Furniture and Equipment (1,758,457) (33,808) (6,105)

Purchase Computer Equipment (943,781) (484,800) (294,621)

Purchase & Construction of Infrastructure Assets (23,927,732) (19,767,538) (13,016,993)

Purchase Plant and Machinery (7,925,137) (5,791,000) (3,537,490)

Purchase & Development of Land (836,966) (428,871)

Purchase & Construction of Buildings (33,399,309) (58,655,520) (60,055,961)

Capital Grants, Subsidies & Contributions 11,110,713

Developer Contribution. Cash 5,631,840

Assets Gifted to Other Parties (14,566,385) (610,366)

NET CASH flOWS PROVIDED BY /(USED IN) INVESTING
(54,111,239) (83,468,016) (41,640,486)

ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Net recelpt.s/(refund) of bonds (5,761,532) (441,622)

Loan Principal Repayment (3,243,174) (2,593,138) 23,576,680

NET CASH flOWS PROVIDED BY!(USED IN) FINANCING
(9,004,706) (2.593,138) 23,13S,058

ACTIVITIES

Net Increase/(Deerease) In Cash during year (36,151,918) (18,466,906) 22,535,939

Cash & Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Reporting Period 151,554,000 133,351,966 129,018,060

CASH & CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF REPORTING PERIOD 3,I6b 115,396,082 114,885,061 151,554,000

Th.. Stat..m..nt of Cash Flows should b.. r..ad in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Rate Setting Statement

Actual Budget Actual

For the year ended 30 June 2017 2016/17 2016/17 2015/16

NotM $ S S

Opera tine Revenue

Specified Area Rates 23b 312,936 330.000 341.727

Fees & Charges 23b 22.353,295 24,368,500 22.072.981

Service Charges 23b 440,700 450.000 1.066,477

Operating Grants & Subsidies 23b 13,752.463 9.357.649 8.057.274

Contributions. Donations, Reimb 23b 1.203.429 638.665 1.372.307

Interest Earnings 23b 5,157,532 4,772,036 5,678,901

Profit on Sale of Assets 20b 5,684,213 364,400

Total Opera tine Revenue 48,904,567 39,916,850 38,954,067

Opera tine Expenditure

Employee Costs (52,132,0491 (48,822.391) (47.084,154)

Materials and Contracts (37,709,2731 (38,979,850) (34,865,658)

Utilities (4,748,358) (4.684,525) (4,363,875)

Interest Expenses 22 (966,490) (930,000) (85,602)

Insurances (2,444,985) (2,244,048) (2,223,550)
Other Expenses (7,810,268) (7,328,893) (7,976,582)

loss on Sale of Assets 20b (271,825) (121,241)

Depreciation on Non Current Assets 9b, lOb (27,465,4981 (26,353,614) (23,790,540)

Finance Cost on Non Current Assets lOb, 11.13 (490,620)

Amortisation on Non Current Asset!. lOb. 11. 13 (1,391,0181 (1,191,132) (1,064.912)

Total Operatine Expenditure (135,430,383) (130,534,453) (121,576,112)

Change in Net Assets Resulting from Opwratlons before Rates (86,525,816) (90,617,604) (82,622,045)

Adjustments for Cash Budeet Requirements:

Profit on Sale of Assets 20b (5,684,213) (364,400)

loss on Sale of Assets 20b 271,825 121,241

Depreciation on Non Current Assets 9b,10b 27,465,498 26.353.614 23,790.540

Finance Cost on Non Current Assets lOb. 11,13 490,620

Amortisation on Non Current Assets lOb. 11, 13 1,391,018 1,191,132 1.064.912

Movement in Non-Current Employee Benefit Provisions 13 74,982 40,164

Movement in Deferred Pensioners (119,806) (106,3011

23,889,923 27,544,746 24,546,155

Capital Expenditure and Revenue

Purchase of Land 90 (836,966) (428,871)

Purchase of Buildings 9b (33,399,309) (58,655,520) (60,055,961)

Purchase of Plant and Machinery 9b (7,925,137) (5,791,000) (3,537,490)

Purchase of Furniture and Equipment 9b (1,758,457) (33,808) (6,105)

Purchase of Computer Equipment 9b (943,781) (484,BOO) (294,621)

Construction of Roads Infrastructure lOb (14,500,745) (10,865,703) (12,831,296)

Construction of Drainage Infrastructure lOb (536,058) (1,061,475) (6,540,856)

Construction of Footpath Inrrastructure lOb (925,121) (1,003,360) (941.680)

Construction of Parks Har<l Infrastructure lOb (7,709,222) (5,642,000) (6,756,317)

Construc1ion of Parks Soft Infrastructure lOb (970,000) 1,156,523

Construction of Refuse Site Infrastructure lOb (256,587) (225,000) (231.7811

Proceeds on Sale of Assets 20b 12,503,975 1,264,650 3,417,732

Contributions/Grants for the development of Assets 27 11,063,443 23,245,184 23,618,162

Net Movement in Gifted Assets (14,566,385) 12,518,048

Developer Contribution Plans - Cash 23b 5,631,840 11,721,922 9,220,108

Repayment of Loans 22 (3,243,174) (2,593,138) ( 1,423,320)

Proceeds (rom New loans 22 25,000,000

Transfers from Reserves (Restricted Assets) ,. 82,296,608 52.676,958 48,816,600

Transfers to Reserves (Restricted Assets) " (61.219,722) (44,4 11,004) (68,342,790)

(36,324,797) (42,828,094) (37,643,914)

NET (98,960,690) (105,900,951) (95,719,805)

Add: Opening Funds 3. 9,267,511 10,500,000 13,676,287

less: Closing Funds 3< 6,643,985 299.049 9.267,511

Amount R.qu r.d to b. Rais.d from Rat.s (96,337,163) (95,700,000) (91,311,030)

Thp Rote 5ptting Slolempnl should be rpod in conjunction with thp accompanying noles.
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

1. Significant Accounting Policies

The significant accounting policies which have been adopted in the preparation of this 

financial report are presented below and have been consistently applied unless 

otherwise stated.

a. Basis of Preparation

The financial report is a general purpose financial report which has been prepared in 

accordance with Australian Accounting Standards (as they apply to local governments 

and not-for-profit entities), Australian Accounting Interpretations, other authoritative 

pronouncements of the Australian Accounting Standards Board, the Local Government 

Act 1995 and accompanying regulations.

Except for cash flow and rate setting information, the report has also been prepared on 

the accrual basis and is based on historical costs, modified, where applicable, by the 

measurement at fair value of selected non-current assets, financial assets and liabilities.

Critical accounting estimates

The preparation of a financial report in conformity with the Australian Accounting 

Standards requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that 

effect the application of policies and reported amounts of assets and liabilities, income 

and expenses.

The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and 

various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. The 

results of this experience and other factors combine to form the basis of making 

judgements about carrying values of assets and liabilities not readily apparent from other 

sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The advisors model valuations, which are based on future cash flows, are derived from a 

number of factors including information obtained from arrangers of individual securities 

and ratings agencies, reviews of the components of the relevant securities and also 

movements in applicable credit spreads.

The local government reporting entity

All Funds through which the City controls resources to carryon its functions have been 

included in the financial statements forming part of this financial report.

In the process of reporting on the local government as a single unit, all transactions and 

balances between those funds (for example, loans and transfers between Funds) have 

been eliminated.
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b. Goods and Services Tax (GST)

Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of GST, except 

where the amount of GST incurred is not recoverable from the Australian Taxation Office 

(ATO).

Receivables and payables are stated inclusive of GST receivable or payable. The net 

amount of GST recoverable from, or payable to, the ATO is included with receivables or 

payables in the statement of financial position.

Cash flows are presented on a gross basis. The GST components of cash flows arising 

from investing or financing activities which are recoverable from, or payable to, the ATO 

are presented as operating cash flows.

c. Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash at bank and in hand and short-term deposits 
with an original maturity of six months or less that are readily convertible to known 

amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

For the purposes of the Statement of Cash Flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of 

cash and cash equivalents as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts. Bank 

overdrafts are included as short-term borrowings in current liabilities on the Statement of 

Financial Position.

d. Trade and Other Receivables

Trade and other receivables include amounts due from ratepayers for unpaid rates and 

service charges and other amounts due from third parties for goods sold and services 

performed in the ordinary course of business.

Receivables expected to be collected within 12 months of the end of the reporting period 

are classified as current assets. All other receivables are classified as non-current 

assets.

Collectability of trade and other receivables is reviewed on an ongoing basis. Debts that 

are known to be uncollectible are written off when identified. An allowance for doubtful 

debts is raised when there is objective evidence that they will not be collectible.

e. Inventories

General

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Net realisable value 

is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated costs 

of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

f. Fixed Assets

Each class of fixed assets within either property, plant and equipment or infrastructure, 

is carried at cost or fair value as indicated less, where applicable, any accumulated 

depreciation and impairment losses.
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Mandarory requiremenr ro revalue non-currenr assers

Effective from 1 July 2012, the Local Government (Financial Management) Regulations 

1996 were amended and the measurement of non-current assets at Fair Value became 

mandatory.

During the year ended 30 June 2013, the City commenced the process of adopting Fair 

Value in accordance with the Regulations.

Whilst the amendments initially allowed for a phasing in of fair value in relation to fixed 

assets over three years, as at 30 June 2016 all non-current assets were carried at Fair 

Value in accordance with the requirements.

Thereafter, each asset class must be revalued in accordance with the regulatory 

framework established and the City revalues its asset classes in accordance with this 

mandatory timetable.

Relevant disclosures, in accordance with the requirements of Australian Accounting 

Standards, have been made in the financial report as necessary.

Land under conrrol

In accordance with Local Govemment (Financial Management) Regulation 16(a), the 

City was required to include as an asset (by 30 June 2013), Crown Land operated by the 

local government as a golf course, showground, racecourse or other sporting or 

recreational facility of State or Regional significance.

Upon initial recognition, these assets were recorded at cost in accordance with AASB 

116. They were then classified as Land and revalued along with other land in 

accordance with the other policies detailed in this Note.

Inirial recognirion and measuremenr between mandatory revaluation dates

All assets are initially recognised at cost and subsequently revalued in accordance with 

the mandatory measurement framework detailed above.

In relation to this initial measurement, cost is determined as the fair value of the assets 

given as consideration plus costs incidental to the acquisition. For assets acquired at no 

cost or for nominal consideration, cost is determined as fair value at the date of 

acquisition. The cost of non-current assets constructed by the City includes the cost of 

all materials used in construction, direct labour on the project and an appropriate 

proportion of variable and fixed overheads.

Individual assets acquired between initial recognition and the next revaluation of the 

asset class in accordance with the mandatory measurement framework detailed above, 

are carried at cost less accumulated depreciation as management believes this 

approximates fair value. They will be subject to subsequent revaluation at the next 

anniversary date in accordance with the mandatory measurement framework detailed 

above.
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Revaluation

Increases in the carrying amount arising on revaluation of assets are credited to a 

revaluation surplus in equity. Decreases that offset previous increases of the same asset 

are recognised against revaluation surplus directly in equity. All other decreases are 

recognised in profit or loss.

Land under Roads

In Western Australia, all land under roads is Crown Land, the responsibility for managing 

which, is vested in the local government.

Effective as at 1 July 2008, Council elected not to recognise any value for land under 

roads acquired on or before 30 June 2008. This accords with the treatment available in 

Australian Accounting Standard AASB 1051 Land Under Roads and the requirement of 

Regulation 16(a)(i) of the Local Government (Financial Management) Regulations that 

prohibits local government from recognising such land as an asset of local government.

In respect of land under roads acquired on or after 1 July 2008, as detailed above, 

Regulation 16(a)(i) of the Local Government (Financial Management) Regulations 

prohibits local government from recognising such land as an asset of local government.

Whilst such treatment is inconsistent with the requirements of AASB 1051, Local 

Government (Financial Management) Regulation 4(2) provides, in the event of such an 

inconsistency, the local Govemment (Financial Management) Regulations prevail.

Consequently, any land under roads acquired on or after 1 July 2008 is not included as 

an asset of the City.

Depreciation of Non-Current Assets

The depreciation amount of all fixed assets including buildings but excluding freehold 

land, are depreciate don straight-line basis over the individual asset’s useful life from the 

time the asset is held ready for use. Leasehold improvements are depreciated over the 

shorter of either the unexpired period of the lease or the estimated life of the 

improvements.

When an item of property, plant and equipment is revalued, any accumulated 

depreciation at the date of the revaluation is treated in one of the following ways:

1) Restated proportionately with the change in the gross carrying amount of the asset 

so that the carrying amount of the asset after revaluation equals its revalued amount; 

or 

2) Eliminated against the gross carrying amount of the asset and the net amount 

restated to the revalued amount of the asset.
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Depreciation is recognised, as follows: 

Property, Plant and Equipment

Buildings (Components) 
Furniture and Equipment 

Computer Equipment 
Plant & Machinery 
Infrastructure Assets

Infrastructure - Footpaths 

Infrastructure - Drainage 
Infrastructure - Roads: Surface 

Infrastructure - Roads: Base 

Infrastructure - Roads: Sub-Base 

Infrastructure - Roads: Kerbing 
Infrastructure - Bridges 

Infrastructure - Parks Equipment 
Bus Shelters

30-50 years 

3-10 years 

3-5 years 

3-10 years

20-50 years 

30-75 years 

15-25 years 

50-80 years 

80-100 years 

20-50 years 

30-50 years 

10-30 years 

15-40 years

Cap lalisalion Threshold 

Asset Class 

Land 

Buildings 
Furniture & Equipment I Computer Equipment 

Plant & Machinery 

Infrastructure Assets 

Software

$

5,000 

5,000 

5,000 

100,000

The assets residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at 

the end of each reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the 

asset’s carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with the carrying 

amount. These gains and losses are included in the statement of comprehensive 

income in the period in which they arise.
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g. Financial Instruments

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the City becomes a party to 

the contractual provisions to the instrument. For financial assets, this is equivalent to 

the date that the City commits itself to either the purchase or sale of the asset (i.e. trade 

date accounting is adopted).

Financial instruments are initially measured at fair value plus transaction costs, except 

where the instrument is classified ’at fair value through profit or loss’, in which case 

transaction costs are expensed to profit or loss immediately.

Classification and subsequent measurement

Financial instruments are subsequently measured at fair value, amortised cost using the 

effective interest rate method, or at cost.

Amortised cost is calculated as: 

(a) The amount in which the financial asset or financial liability is measured at initial 

recognition; 
(b) less principal repayments and any reduction for impairment; and 

(c) plus or minus the cumulative amortisation of the difference, if any, between the 

amount initially recognised and the maturity amount calculated using the effective 
interest rate method.

The effective interest method is used to allocate interest income or interest expense 

over the relevant period and is equivalent to the rate that discounts estimated future 

cash payments or receipts (including fees, transaction costs and other premiums or 

discounts) through the expected life (or when this cannot be reliably predicted, the 

contractual term) of the financial instrument to the net carrying amount of the financial 

asset or financial liability. Revisions to expected future net cash flows will necessitate an 

adjustment to the carrying value with a consequential recognition of an income or 

expense in profit or loss.

i) Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss 
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are financial assets held for trading. 
A financial asset is classified in this category if acquired principally for the purpose of 

selling in the short term. Derivatives are classified as held for trading unless they are 

designated as hedges. Assets in this category are classified as current assets.

ii) Loans and receivables 

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable 

payments that are not quoted in an active market. They are included in current assets, 

except for those with maturities greater than 12 months after the balance sheet date 

which are classified as non-current assets.

Iii) Held-to-maturity investments 

Held-to-maturity investments are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or 

determinable payments and fixed maturities that the Council’s management has the 

positive intention and ability to hold to maturity. If Council were to sell other than an 

insignificant amount of held-to-maturity financial assets, the whole category would be
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tainted and reclassified as available-for-sale. Held-to-maturity financial assets are 

included in non-current assets, except for those with maturities less than 12 months from 

the reporting date, which are classified as current assets.

ivy A va ilab le-for-sa Ie financial assets 

Available-for-sale financial assets, comprising principally marketable equity securities, 

are non-derivatives that are either designated in this category or not classified in any of 

the other categories. They are included in non-current assets unless management 

intends to dispose of the investment within 12 months. Investments are designated as 

available-for-sale if they do not have fixed maturities and fixed or determinable 

payments and management intends to hold them for the medium to long term.

They are subsequently measured at fair value with changes in such fair value (i.e. gains 

or losses) recognised in other comprehensive income (except for impairment losses). 

When the financial asset is derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss pertaining to that 

asset previously recognised in other comprehensive income is reclassified into profit or 

loss.

v) Financialliabilities 

Non-derivative financial liabilities (excluding financial guarantees) are subsequently 

measured at amortised cost. Gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss.

Recognition and derecognition

Regular purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on trade-date - the date 

on which Council commits to purchase or sell the asset. Investments are initially 

recognised at fair value plus transaction costs for all financial assets not carried at fair 

value through profit or loss. Financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss 

are initially recognised at fair value and transaction costs are expensed in the income 

statement. Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from 

the financial assets have expired or have been transferred and Council has transferred 

substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership.

When securities classified as available-for-sale are sold, the accumulated fair value 

adjustments recognised in equity are included as gains and losses from investment 

securities.

Subsequent measurement

Loans and receivables and held-to-maturity investments are carried at amortised cost 

using the effective interest method.

Available-for-sale financial assets and financial assets at fair value through profit and 

loss are subsequently carried at fair value. Gains or losses arising from changes in the 

fair value of the financial assets at fair value through profit or loss category are 

presented in the income statement within other income or other expenses in the period 

in which they arise. Dividend income from financial assets at fair value through profit and 

loss is recognised in the income statement as part of revenue from continuing 

operations when Council’s right to receive payments is established. Changes in the fair 

value of other monetary and non-monetary securities classified as available-for-sale are 

recognised in equity.
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Impairmenr

Council assesses whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or group of 

financial assets is impaired. In the case of equity securities classified as available-for- 

sale, a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of a security below its cost is 

considered as an indicator that the securities are impaired. If any such evidence exists 

for available-for-sale financial assets, the cumulative loss- measured as the difference 

between the acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any impairment loss on that 

financial asset previously recognised in profit or loss - is removed from equity and 

recognised in the income statement. Impairment losses recognised on equity 

instruments classified as available-for-sale are not reversed.

h. Fair Value of Assets and Liabilities

When performing a revaluation, the City uses a mix of both independent and 

management valuations using the following as a guide:

Fair Value is the price that the City would receive to sell the asset or would have to pay 

to transfer a liability, in an orderly (i.e. unforced) transaction between independent, 

knowledgeable and willing market participants at the measurement date.

As fair value is a market-based measure, the closest equivalent observable market 

pricing information is used to determine fair value. Adjustments to market values may be 

made having regard to the characteristics of the specific asset. The fair values of assets 

that are not traded in an active market are determined using one or more valuation 

techniques. These valuation techniques maximise, to the extent possible, the use of 

observable market data.

To the extent possible, market information is extracted from either the principal market 

for the asset (i.e. the market with the greatest volume and level of activity for the asset) 

or, in the absence of such a market, the most advantageous market available to the 

entity at the end of the reporting period (i.e. the market that maximises the receipts from 

the sale of the asset after taking into account transaction costs and transport costs).

For non-financial assets, the fair value measurement also takes into account a market 

participant’s ability to use the asset in its highest and best use or to sell it to another 

market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

Fair Value Hierarchy

MSB 13 requires the disclosure of fair value information by level of the fair value 

hierarchy, which categorises fair value measurement into one of three possible levels 

based on the lowest level that an input that is significant to the measurement can be 

categorised into as follows:

Level 1 

Measurements based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical 

assets or liabilities that the entity can access at the measurement date.
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Level 2 

Measurements based on inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are 

observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly.

Level 3 

Measurements based on unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

The fair values of assets and liabilities that are not traded in an active market are 

determined using one or more valuation techniques. These valuation techniques 

maximise, to the extent possible, the use of observable market data. If all significant 

inputs required to measure fair value are observable, the asset or liability is included in 

Level 2. If one or more significant inputs are not based on observable market data, the 

asset or liability is included in Level 3.

Valuation techniques

The City selects a valuation technique that is appropriate in the circumstances and for 

which sufficient data is available to measure fair value. The availability of sufficient and 

relevant data primarily depends on the specific characteristics of the asset or liability 

being measured. The valuation techniques selected by the City are consistent with one 

or more of the following valuation approaches:

Market approach 
Valuation techniques that use prices and other relevant information generated by market 

transactions for identical or similar assets or liabilities.

Income approach 

Valuation techniques that use convert estimated future cash flows or income and 

expenses into a single discounted present value.

Cost approach 
Valuation techniques that reflect the current replacement cost of an asset at its current 

service capacity.

Each valuation technique requires inputs that reflect the assumptions that buyers and 

sellers would use when pricing the asset or liability, including assumptions about risks. 

When selecting a valuation technique, the City gives priority to those techniques that 

maximise the use of observable inputs and minimise the use of unobservable inputs. 

Inputs that are developed using market data (such as publicly available information on 

actual transactions) and reflect the assumptions that buyers and sellers would generally 

use when pricing the asset or liability and considered observable, whereas inputs for 

which market data is not available and therefore are developed using the best 

information available about such assumptions are considered unobservable.

As detailed above, the mandatory measurement framework imposed by the Local 

Government (Financial Management) Regulations 1996 requires, as a minimum, all 

assets carried at a revalued amount to be revalued at least every 3 years.
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i. Impairment of Assets

In accordance with Australian Accounting Standards the City’s assets, other than 

inventories, are assessed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any 

indication they may be impaired.

Where such an indication exists, an impairment test is carried out on the asset by 

comparing the recoverable amount of the asset, being the higher of the asset’s fair value 

less costs to sell and value in use, to the asset’s carrying amount.

Any excess of the asset’s carrying amount over its recoverable amount is recognised 

immediately in profit or loss, unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount in 

accordance with another Standard (e.g. AASB 116) whereby any impairment loss of a 

revalued asset is treated as a revaluation decrease in accordance with that other 

Standard.

For non-cash generating assets such as roads, drains, public buildings and the like, 

value in use is represented by the depreciated replacement cost of the asset.

j. Trade and Other Payables

Trade and other payables are carried at amortised cost. They represent liabilities for 

goods and services provided to the Municipality prior to the end of the financial year that 

are unpaid and arise when the Municipality becomes obliged to make future payments in 

respect of the purchase of these goods and services. The amounts are unsecured and 

are usually settled within 30 days of recognition.

k. Employee Benefits

The provisions for employee benefits relates to amounts expected to be paid for long 

service leave, annual leave, wages and salaries and are calculated as follows:

Shon-term employee benefits 

Provision is made for the City’s obligations for short-term employee benefits. Short-term 

employee benefits are benefits (other than termination benefits) that are expected to be 

settled wholly before 12 months after the end of the annual reporting period in which the 

employees render the related service, including wages, salaries and sick leave. Short- 

term employee benefits are measured at the (undiscounted) amounts expected to be 

paid when the obligation is settled.

The City’s obligations for short-term employee benefits such as wages, salaries and sick 

leave are recognised as a part of current trade and other payables in the statement of 

financial position. The City’s obligations for employees’ annual leave and long service 

leave entitlements are recognised as provisions in the statement of financial position.

Other long-term employee benefits 

Provision is made for employees’ long service leave and annual leave entitlements not 

expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the end of the annual reporting 

period in which the employees render the related service. Other long-term employee 

benefits are measured at the present value of the expected future payments to be made 

to employees. Expected future payments incorporate anticipated future wage and salary
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levels, durations of service and employee departures and are discounted at rates 

determined by reference to market yields at the end of the reporting period on 

government bonds that have maturity dates that approximate the terms of the 

obligations. Any remeasurements for changes in assumptions of obligations for other 

long-term employee benefits are recognised in profit or loss in the periods in which the 

changes occur.

The City’s obligations for long-term employee benefits are presented as non-current 

provisions in its statement of financial position, except where the City does not have an 

unconditional right to defer settlement for at least 12 months after the end of the 

reporting period, in which case the obligations are presented as current provisions.

I. Borrowings

All loans and borrowings are initially recognised at the fair value of the consideration 

received less directly attributable transaction costs.

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently 

measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Fees paid on the 

establishment of loan facilities that are yield related are included as part of the carrying 

amount of the loans and borrowings.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Council has an unconditional 

right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting date.

Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs are recogriised as an expense when incurred except where they are 

directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset. 

Where this is the case, they are capitalised as part of the cost of the particular asset until 

such time as the asset is substantially ready for its intended use or sale.

m. Provisions

Provisions are recognised when: The Council has a present legal or constructive 

obligation as a result of past events; it is more likely than not that an outflow of 

resources will be required to settle the obligation; and the amount has been reliably 

estimated. Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will be 

required in settlement is determined by considering the class of obligations as a whole. 

A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to anyone item 

included in the same class of obligations may be small.

n. Leases

Leases of fixed assets where substantially all the risks and benefits incidental to the 

ownership of the asset, but not legal ownership, are transferred to the City, are classified 

as finance leases.

l 91 of 174

Version: 4, Version Date: 20/04/2022
Document Set ID: 6859306



Finance leases are capitalised recording an asset and a liability at the lower amounts 

equal to the fair value of the leased property or the present value of the minimum lease 

payments, including any guaranteed residual values. Lease payments are allocated 

between the reduction of the lease liability and the lease interest expense for the period.

Leased assets are depreciated on a straight line basis over the shorter of their estimated 

useful lives or the lease term.

Lease payments for operating leases, where substantially all the risks and benefits 

remain with the lessor, are charged as expenses in the periods in which they are 

incurred.

Lease incentives under operating leases are recognised as a liability and amortised on a 

straight line basis over the life of the lease term.

o. Interests in Joint Arrangements

Joint arrangements represent the contractual sharing of control between parties in a 

business venture where unanimous decisions about relevant activities are required.

Separate joint venture entities providing joint venturers with an interest to net assets are 

classified as a joint venture and accounted for using the equity method. Refer to note 

1 (r) for a description of the equity method of accounting.

Joint venture operations represent arrangements whereby joint operators maintain direct 

interests in each asset and exposure to each liability of the arrangement. The City’s 

interests in the assets, liabilities, revenue and expenses of joint operations are included 

in the respective line items of the financial statements. Information about the joint 

venture is set out in Notes 5 and 17.

p. Investment in Associates

An associate is an entity over which the City has significant influence. Significant 
influence is the power to participate in the financial operating policy decisions of that 

entity but is not control or joint control of those policies. Investments in associates are 

accounted for in the financial statements by applying the equity method of accounting, 

whereby the investment is initially recognised at cost and adjusted thereafter for the 

post-acquisition change in the City’s share of net assets of the associate. In addition, the 

City’s share of the profit or loss of the associate is included in the City’s profit or loss.

The carrying amount of the investment includes, where applicable, goodwill relating to 

the associate. Any discount on acquisition, whereby the City’s share of the net fair value 

of the associate exceeds the cost of investment, is recognised in profit or loss in the 

period in which the investment is acquired.

Profits and losses resulting from transactions between the City and the associate are 

eliminated to the extent of the City’s interest in the associate.

When the City’s share of losses in an associate equals or exceeds its interest in the 

associate, the City discontinues recognising its share of further losses unless it has 

incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate.
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When the associate subsequently makes profits, the City will resume recognising its 

share of those profits once its share of the profits equals the share of the losses not 

recognised.

q. Rates, Grants, Donations and Other Contributions

Rates, grants, donations and other contributions are recognised as revenues when the 

local government obtains control over the assets comprising the contributions. Control 

over assets acquired from rates is obtained at the commencement of the rating period 

or, where earlier, upon receipt of the rates.

Where contributions recognised as revenues during the reporting period were obtained 

on the condition that they be expended in a particular manner or used over a particular 

period, and those conditions were undischarged as at the reporting date, the nature of 

and amounts pertaining to those undischarged conditions are disclosed in Note 20(c). 

That note also discloses the amount of contributions recognised as revenues in a 

previous reporting period which were obtained in respect of the local government’s 

operation for the current reporting period.

r. Superannuation

The Council is a member of the Western Australian Local Government Superannuation 

Plan (WALGSP). This is a Defined Contributions Plan and Council contributes at the rate 

of 10.5% for the Superannuation Guarantee Charge, plus additional matching 

contributions of up to 4% where agreed.

s. Rounding Off Figures

All figures shown in this annual financial report, other than a rate in the dollar, are 

rounded to the nearest dollar.

t. Comparative Figures

Where required, comparative figures have been adjusted to conform with changes in 

presentation for the current financial year.

u. Current and Non-Current Classification

In the determination of whether an asset or liability is current or non-current, 

consideration is given to the time when each asset or liability is expected to be settled. 

The asset or liability is classified as current if it is expected to be settled within the next 

12 months, being the City’s operational cycle. In the case of liabilities where the City 

does not have the unconditional right to defer settlement beyond 12 months, such as 

vested long service leave, the liability is classified as current even if not expected to be 

settled within the next 12 months. Inventories held for trading are classified as current 

even if not expected to be realised in the next 12 months except for land held for resale 

where it is held as non-current based on the City’s intentions to release for sale.
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v. Budget Information

Budget figures shown in the financial statements have been disclosed as per the 

legislative requirements. Where necessary, budget information has been recast to 

comply with current presentation requirements. Unless otherwise stated, the budget 

comparative figures shown in this annual financial report relate to the original budget 
estimate for the relevant item of disclosure.

w. New Accounting Standards and Interpretations for Application in Future 

Periods

Australian Accounting Standards and Interpretations that have recently been issued or 

amended but are not yet effective have not been adopted by the City for the period 

ended 30 June 2017. These are outlined in the table below:

nt~ Issued I Compiled 

Oecembeor2014

Applicable (1) 

1 Janu.ry 2018(i) AASB 9 Fin.nclalln.trumenlS 

(Incorporating AASB 2014-7 and 

AASB 2014-8)

() AASB 15 Reve_nue from Contmcts with 

Customers

December 2014 1 January 2019

(Iij AASB 16 lea.es February 2016 1 J3flu.ry 2019

(iv) AASB 1058 Income of NOl-fOf-Profit Entitle$ 

(incOfPOrating AASB 201&-7 .nd 

AASB 2Ot6-8)

December 20 16 1 Janu.ry 2019

Notes: 

(1) Applicable to reporting periods commenc g on or after the given: dote.

Impact 

Nil_ The objettive 01 IIlis St.ndord I. to Improve and sinpllly Ill. 

approach fo, cbssifieafion and me3$Ureln!nt of fln3nclal assets 

compared with the requirements of AASB 139. Given the n:lture of 

the financial assets of the Shire, it is not anticipated the Standlud 

wit have any mate I effect. 

This Standard establishes principJes for entities to apply to report 

useful information to u~er$ of financial statements about the nature, 

amount. timing and uncertailty of revenue and cash flows arislno 

from ;) contract with ;1 customer.

The effect of this Standard w~1 depend upon the nature of future 

transactions the Shire has with those third parties it has de31ings 

With tt mayor may not be sig,nificanl 

Under AASB 16 there is no longer a distmction between finance 

anO operatlllg leo_.leoseeo wil now brinQ to account" 

ri9ht4o.use 3~et ood le3se l b rty onto their statement of rlf\3noal 

position IOf all tea.... Etfecbvely IIli. me.ns the v.st m"JOnly 01 

operating le""$ .$ defined by Ill. turrent AASB 1 t 7 le.... which 

currently do not imp3ct the statement of financial po$.Ltion wil be 

required to be capitalised on the statement of financial position once 

AASB 16 is adopted. 

Currently, opemtWtQ lease payments are expensed os inC’UITM 

This wi! cease :snd w l be repl3ced by both deprecmtion and 

interest charges. Ba~ on the current num~r of operating 

teases h~td by the ShW"e, the impact is not expected to be 

significant.

These standards are likely to have" signifICant impact on Ihe 

income recognitton tOf NfP’s. Key 3ftas for considerotion are: 

- Assets received below fa yakJe: 

- Transfers received to acquire or construct noo-fin3ncbI3sseIS: 

- Grants received.. 

- Preprud ’’’tes, 

- Le~ entered IOto at beloW market rates. Gnd 

. Volunteer sent es. 

Who.t " i. not poss le to quanofy Ihe r..ancial impact (or d ~ is 

material) of mese key area", until the dela ot future tr31\sactions 

are known, they..il al tulve applic3tton to the Sh re’s operations.
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x. Adoption of New and Revised Accounting Standards

During the current year, the Shire adopted all of the new and revised Australian 

Accounting Standards and Interpretations which were compiled became mandatory and 

which were applicable to its operations.

Whilst many reflected consequential changes associate with the amendment of existing 

standards, the only new standard with material application is as follows:

Title 

(,) AASB 20 15-6 Amendments to Australian 

Accounbng Slandards - Extend’ng Related 

Party DISClosures to Not-for-Profit Public 

Sector Entnles

Issued I Complied Applicable (1) Impact 

The objective 01 thIS Standard was to extend the scope 

Of AASB 124 Relared pany DIsclOsures to ,ndude not.for.profn 

sector entities

IAASB 10, 124 & 1~9J

The Standard has had a Slgnl1icant dIsclosure Impact on 

the ~nanoal report of the Shire es both Elected Members 

and SenIOr Management are deemed to be Key Manogemenl 

Personnel and resultant d,sdosures ,n accordance to AASB 124 

have been necessary

y. Intangible Assets

Easements

The Council has determined that under AASB 138 Intangible Assets, easements are 

valued on an historical cost basis, because it is unlikely that an active market in 

easements exists to allow for fair value measurement. Due to acquisition of easements 

at NIL values, no easements have been included in the financial report.

Z. Provision for Restoration, Rehabilitation and Site Monitoring Costs

The City complies with the full provision method for accounting provisions in respect of 

restoration, rehabilitation and site monitoring costs. Charges are made to expenses 
based on the estimated costs of restoring, rehabilitating and monitoring the landfill site. 

The rate charge is reviewed annually and is based on an estimated cost per tonne. The 

cost per tonne is arrived at after taking into account a standard engineering cost per 
cubic metre of landfill, the density of the waste and the most recent aerial surveys. 

Engineering rates differ according to the nature of the obligation to provide the service.

aa. Future capping Expenditure

The liability for estimated future capping expenditure is provided for through a 

rehabilitation provision on a phase-by-phase basis and is discounted to its present 

value, with the unwinding of the discount being charged to the statement of 

comprehensive income within the amortisation charge. The discounted present value of 

the future capping expenditure is also capitalised as part of the rehabilitation asset and 

is amortised on a straight-line basis. Changes in estimates are recognised prospectively 
with corresponding adjustments to the provision and associated costs.

bb.Land Held for Resale

Land purchased for development and/or resale is valued at the lower of cost and fair 

value less costs to sell. Cost includes the cost of acquisition, development and interest
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incurred on the financing of that land during its development. Interest and holding 

charges incurred after development is complete are recognised as expenses.

Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss at the time of signing an unconditional 

contract of sale if significant risks and rewards, and effective contr l over the land, are 

passed on to the buyer at this point.

Land held for resale is classified as current except where it is held as non-current based 

on the Council’s intention to release for sale.
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NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL REPORT

2a. Revenue and Expenses

Actu.’ Budget Actual

2016/11 2016/17 2015/16

The net result includes: S $ S

(i) CHARGING AS AN EXPENSE

Auditors Remuneration

Audit of financial statements 29,000 29,000 26,300

Audit of project - acquittals 13,332 12,195 11,347

42,332 41,195 31,641

Depreciation

Buildings 5,360,475 5,175,945 4,130,221

Plant and Machinery 2,872.152 3,034,473 2,761,857

Furniture Equipment 142,509 184,620 144,029

Computer Equipment 211,278 257,472 223,307

Infrastructure - Roads 10,735,077 11,029,308 10,176,299

Infrastructure - Drainage 2,444,452 2,622,888 2,498,163

Infrastructure - Footpaths 1.169,810 1,214,664 1.156,861

Infrastructure - Parks Equipment 3,583,931 2,834,244 2,699,803

Infrastructure - Marina 945,815

21,465,498 26,353,614 23,790,540

Amortisation

Infrastructure - Landfill 1,391.018 1.191,132 1.064,912

Interest Expenses

Debentures (refer Note 22) 966,490 930,000 85,602

Rental Charges

Operating Leases 606,372 681,369 556,092

Other Expenses

State Landfill Levy 2,989,955 3,809,501 2,858,990

(ii) CREDITING AS REVENUE

Grants/Contributions towards Assets 11.063,443 23,245,184 23,618,162

Increase/(Decrease) in Equity - SMRC Joint Venture 499,833 (2,344,579)

Interest Earnings

Interest received on Reserve Funds 2.329.289 1,858,196 2,484,527

Interest received on Other Funds 2,828,243 2.913,840 3,194,374

5,157,532 4,112,036 5,678,901
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NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL REPORT

2b. Revenues and Expenses

MISSION STATEMENT 

To make the City of Cockburn the most attractive place to live, work, visit and invest in, within the Perth 

metropolitan area.

The City of Cockburn has adopted the program/activity structure outlined in Schedule 1 of the Local 
Government (Financial Management) Regulations. The City has incorporated the allocation of internal 
service provision costs throughout the various programs/activities.

Council operations as disclosed in this budget encompass the following service orientated 

programs/activities:

General Purpose Funding 
The collection of general-purpose revenue including rates and penalties, general-purpose grants and 
interest on investments. This provides the funding for much of the City’s programs/activities.

Governance 

The administration and operation of facilities and services to the elected members of Council. Also 
includes other corporate type costs that are not related to the specific service areas covered under the 
other programs.

Law, Order And Public Safety 
Provision of community safety services including supervision of various by-laws, animal and dog 
control, a security patrol service, fire prevention and voluntary emergency services.

Health 

The provision of environmental health services Including food quality and pest control. 

Education and Welfare 

The provision of support services to families and children, the aged and disabled and senior citizens. 
The provision of pre- schools and services and facilities for the youth.

Community Amenities 

Refuse collection, recycling and disposal. the operation of the Henderson Landfill site, 

protection of the environment. administration of the town planning scheme and maintenance of bus 
shelters.

Recreation and Culture 

The provision and operation of community halls and recreation centres, parks and ovals, beach 
reserves and swimming areas and library facilities. The development and provision of arts and cultural 
events.

Transport 
This program Includes road, drainage and footpath construction and maintenance. The provision and 
maintenance of streetscapes is also included, as is the purchase of heavy plant and the operations of 
the council works depot

Economic Services 

Activities associated with the control of building activity within the city and the provision of facilities and 
services that encourage tourism.

Other Property and Services 
Includes private works and engineering overheads and plant operating costs (both of Which are 
allocated to the City’s works program).
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NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL REPORT

3. Cash & Cash Equivalents

Cash at Bank 

Cash on Hand 

Term Deposits

Actual 

2016/17 

$ 

2.896.742 

22.500 

112,476.840 

115,396,082

Restricted 

Unrestricted

100.602,935 

14,793,147 

115,396,082

Actual 

2015/16 

$ 

8.528.960 

22.768 

143.002,272 

151,554,000

127,668.651 

23,885,349 

151,554,000

SUMMARY OF RESTRICTED CASH 

Sundry Deposits and Bonds (Non Current Payables) 5,761,532 

5,761,532

Cash/Investment Backed Reserves 

Council Funded 

Externally Funded 

Development Contribution Plans 

Sub-total 

Less: 

Funds held in current & non-current investments

82,590,191 

9,424,250 

13.508,629 

105,523,070

(4,920,136) 

100,602,935

(4,692,838) 

121,907,119

102,687,894 

7,053,040 

16,859,023 

126,599,957

TOTAL RESTRICTED CASH 100,602,935 127,668,651
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NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL REPORT

4. Financial Assets

CURRENT 

Held to Maturity Investments maturing within 12 mths of 

reporting period

Actual 

2016/17 

$

Actual 

2015/16 

$

3,841,492

NON CURRENT 

Held to Maturity Investments maturing later than 12 mths from 

reporting period 

Mortgage-Backed securites 1,078,544 4,692,838

Financial Assets 

Investment in WALGA Local Government House Trust 123,808 125,525

1,202,453 4,819,364

All held to maturity Investments are restricted in nature (see note 3).

*) This note discloses the equity the City has in the Local 

Government House Trust as a consequence of a contribution 

towards the cost of purchasing Local Government House.

The total contribution by all Councils towards the cost of the 

WALGA building was $582,000. There are 620 units in the Local 

Government House Unit Trust, 8 of which are held by the City of 

Cockburn.

5. Interests in Joint Ventures

NON CURRENT 

Joint Venture in SMRC

Refer note 17 for further detail on SMRC Joint Venture

6,592,991 

6,592,991

6,093,158 

5,093,158
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NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL REPORT

6. Trade & Other Receivables

Actual Actual

2016/17 2015/16

CURRENT $ $

Rates Outstanding 2,122,054 1,668,444

Rubbish Charges Outstanding 92,994 110,530

Sundry Debtors 3,866,702 9,443,662

GST Receivable 813,159 2,434,241

6,894,909 13,656,877

NON CURRENT

Rates Outstanding - Pensioners 858,657 738,851

858,657 738,851

7. Other Assets

Actual Actual

2016/17 2015/16

CURRENT $ $

Prepayments 911,565 715,996

911,565 715,996

8. Inventories

Actual Actual

2016/17 2015/16

$ $

Fuel Depot 21,782 41,102

21,782 41,102
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Nons TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL REPORT

9a. Property. Plant and Equipment

PLANT AND MACHINERY 

At Illdcl>endenl Valual n 7.011 

At M,lIIagCll1crll ValuatIOn 2016 

I FSS ̂CCU11lUlilU~d DeplcciMIQtI

Actu.1 ^clu

2016/17 201~/l

$ S

82.632.800

98.010.600

12.6S2,1OO .,010,600

.101.548.238

199.J12.010

{J,lOO,OOOJ

(81,035,3171 (11.841,8]8)

217,312,161 125......,173

1.l8S,)lJ

1.4<16.116

(1.314.613) 11.172.1111

1,’70,619 2"’,162

l.llO.ISO

1.130,1!)O

1731.391) (520.1131

591.759 1.0,037

24,151,0)8

)0,99/,029

18,948,"01) 1’,411.940)

15,J02,621 11,523,019

to,5()’j,SlS lS,}71,17S

lO,SOS,5l5 75,273,215

41~.4~l,06} 39&,]89,140

11,100,0001

194,029.7921 (85,014.(X)4)

321,223,270 311,375.3*

LAND 

AI Independent Valuation 2017 

Alllldl.llXmdt.!fl1 Vdlu.at n 2014

BUILDINGS 

AI Independent VAluation 2017 

At Independent Valuoll n 7.014 

LESS Impairment 

LESS Accumulated Oepreci.ltioil

FURNITURE AND EQUIPMENT 

At Indep4Jndem Valuation 2017 

At Management Valllation 2016 

LESS Accumulated ()(opred.ltion

COMPUTER EQUIPMENT 

AI hltlependcru V.lluat n10l/ 

At M,mdgernenl Valuatron 1016 

LESS ACCuOlul;lIed Oepred,lIion

WORK IN PROGRESS 

At cost

TOTAL PROPER~, PlANT AND EQUIPMENT 

Gros!o Oook Valu!.! 

L[SS tmpairment 

LESS Accumulated Depreciation 

NET BOOK VALUE

The fair v lu~ 01 ploperlv. p!anl.md equipment l~dC’tt’rlllin<<!’d allt’a\1 t’Vt’ly Ihrt’t’ veal\ In ,,((oul.mct’ with tht’ 

1t’8\1la,()ry franleworlo:. AdcU,k)os sinct t~ d t of valuilrion ale shown.15 rost, given Ihey we’ll itcqulted iU 

a! m’\ teng’h imd ..nv IIIceull1\II", I!’d d~o’t’t’;I\Iof\ reflects the ....age 01 ~,vic:e potelllllll. It con\if!e, ed the 

rt’COfded wlltlCOI1 down valut’ ppro~hll"te\ h.1r vakre. AI the od Df Nlch interverllns ~,Iod Ihe valual l k 

revlewcod and whC’lt’ appropriate the f ll v llJe I~ updtC’d to rC’nC’Ct current marlo:et conditions. Thi\ proceou Is 

(oMldered tobe in ACcoldMce wUh loc.itl Government iFlnllll’l(l.1 ManAGementl Regulitl10n I1A which leoqulrl!S 

p’Op~ltv, plnt oIl’\d etlltlJ)fm"1l1 10 be !.IlO’.’o’f1..1 r"il vall)(’.

9b. Movements in Carrying Amounts - Property. Plant & Equipment

fhe lotlow1IlR table ’t’(;OIlc!1e!io the (ll/l’vmg "1110unl al tile ber.lnf1l~ ind end of ll>e’ <’Ulfellt liflann \ yo::ar lor ,,/loCh cla~~ crt 110n ellflelllll~\(""

add: odd: add/I~uj ~lS: leoss’ len: kon:

RevaluallcM’l

C ’lyif1g 11111001’1’ at Work 111 PIO’~~~ C"llit.,15pelld (jllled Dcvelopml"nl ."(Ie,nen."" WOlk in PIOf!U:\~ t’"llllil!llenl (lo\~\\1 C.rrv’nl .mounllt

AUel ClantflClltlon beglnnll’18 ot the vea, OpelltnR lOI611 ^\~I\ (decrelnelll’" Clo~h\ Dispo!.dls & W,ite otl~ ReW!’~iI’\ Ocll.C’ddllon end of the y..r

rrt’ehold umd 98.010.600 1.470,630 836.966 111,284,731) 1804,3044\ 15,546,1151 12."2,100

9ulldfng\ 12~.484.1 fj 11058’,940 )j,399.309 1.1;91.000 4!16.0n (fi "71,184) (211.8’51 1),100.0001 (~,l6O,4151 211,312,161

Furniture & Equll>ment 114,161 l,7~.’1S7 (19.4211 (147,509) 1,170,619

Compuler Equpment 810.031 2.264.706 1)4],7Sil 13.208,4861 (211,178) 591,759

Plant & Machfrlofry 11.523.089 7.92S.137 (1..273.4471 12,872.151) 15,3Ol,627

WQfk In P’Oles~ 75,}13,"6 175,273.1761 10.505.535 10,S05,SSS

Ul,S75,!36 44,S63,6S1 1,691,000 (10,nl,71S) (7,091,517) 13,200,000) ",SM,"I"I 321,223,271

5?Z: 
’"
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loa. Infrutructure Assets

NOltS TO AND ~MfNG ,AlI:T Of THE FINANCW. RE:PORT

1 
1$ 

,.

INFfI.A5.TRUCTURf . ROADS 

At Mnagetnerll Valualion 2017 

~I Mn~t V.lution 20160 

lESS Ac:cumul"t’d Dtptedaliol’l(21S,730,964) 

351,679,174

~17,"10,6)8

INJRASTRtICTURf.. DRAINACi( 

...., MnaSemt1lt Valuation 1011 

AI Manll8~1 ValU/.lion 2016 

lLSS Accumulated OePl’ec:aation

153,243,S93

~ 
lO4,ut.l70

INFRASTRUCTUfI(. ~Tf’Ants 

At Mal\llgtmet’ll Va’u",Iion 2017 

At Maflgement Vlluation 2016 

lESS Ac;CUrnuilJled Oep’ecl/llllOfl

6S.318,180

124,316,(42) 

41.0I2,.2lI

INfRASTRUCTURE. PARKS (QUIPMlNT 

At M’"",&M1e’I’ VMu.t11oo 2017 

AI MaMgement V.luafion 2016 

LESS Ac.cumula~d Depfeoation

11.411.710

(2:),267.053) 
~

IANOFllllNflltASTRUCTUltf 

Allnck~1 valuation 2017 

’" Mana8~t V.IUlion 2016 

LESS ^<<umullfled Amortisation

36.108,000

~ 
21.769.459

MAItINAINFItASTM.lCT\JII:E 

A’ Ir\Oe~enT valwtion 2017 

ltsS AcCUfnulated Det)l’edation

~2.(J08.1~ 

(94S,815) 

51.662A41

~ 
"’--

WORK W f’ROGRUS 

At CCKI23,S81,6()!, 

n,SlI.60S

TOT AlINFUSTRUCT\.IRE ASSlTS 

Gron BooIt Vahle 

LCSS Actumulaled [)epfedaliOfl 

NfTIIOOtCYALUf

1,019,802,082 

(339.7J2.858) 

74O.ott.224

Attu.I .\clual 

2016/17 2015/16 

$ S

~70.909.037 

~ 
~

J4S.1l6,70~ 

~ 
111.15S,604I

!:oS,Sll,2S1 

~ 
4O.Il4.21.

OO,00t6,721 

124,651,8(4) 

"’UM,tl’

3S.8-\~,2S1 

~ 
22.12J,280

997.33],662 

(261,l16,J25) 

751.211,517

lhe foil;’ ...alue of Infrutluctt.e k detelmined ,.r lelM evel’lthlee ~I~ In Kcordance wilh die ~~ul<1Tocy 

frallWWOl\.. Addillol" Wnceo the u.teof....lu.tion <ore 5howo ItS eo.. Gthey ~e &equlred"I"n’, 

1er’llhalldanyactumullted dcpfed:ation rellecl$ Ttle lse of ~potential, it ~ consldO!fed the r<<orded 

_Uen down .....lue.P(ud"’at~ 1M’ 1M1ue.. Alike end 01 eh inter........ins perIOd lhe v’IIlulI’dofl ~ I~ 

otnd, wne.e approprl.tte, the ’...il vue" upd...ted to ,~I<<.t ell/rent m.JI~1le1 conditiocl" 1h... P!oceu;, 

collllde-red 10 be in KCOfdancl!’ wi1h I.oeal Govt-rr~tlFlnandill MlIir’llgemenl)Rcgulalion 17A whkh 

’~es infrastructure 10 be shown .t fli. ...alue, 

lOb. Movements in Carrying Amounts - Infrutructur.

lhfl foUoWII’1S t,blf’ .tlCono~ 1I1e u.rvina anlOl..II! .IT the ~lll’lI"I and er’ld 01 the CU"ellt finauc....’ year fIX eKtJ n 01 IlOfl ""renl "..selS’

odd,odd,k:u"odd/fie>>}Ie>>’kuk"

l’telr.tlLlttOn

C""I)’ine,alTlOUf’lt alWOf~ in "rowenC’lItJiut Spend Gilted ~I>mentWOf~ III "’ogrenlllOell’\ef)b/o.~l, g. WI,te ’fT’IIut,lIIle1ltllosioHl/DtpIecil’ltJOfl/C~~.t
--beginl101 the VN’""""""101&17Aneu(IO\ins(~ren)ffits)Off,ReW’rsalsAmortisatIOnend of the VNI’

Roads ’nl"ulTUClule410,431,627ll,428,7Il14,500,7454,Il5,42J(10,572,494)(68,Sll,162)(10,735.077)J51,’79,67.

O.-aillage Inrrastructure-J96,855,OO-J98,lL5SJ6,C683,J39,514(507,7.4)5,951,87417,444,452)104,119,170

Foot~ths Illlrastfuclur.40,824,21419J,01O92;,1211505,159)S901Jt211,169,8101’1,012.2"

Patks [quipmeflt44,394,9187.286,4907,709,222901,827(11,467,7091963,8411l.S83,9Jl)46,20Usa

Refu~ Sill! Inh"!ilfUclure22,811,180J78,147lS6.S87fSJ8,49911,4,9J9)(l,OM.US)21,70,’59

Manml Infrastructure52,608.156fg.l5,8LSISI,IIZ,"1

Work in Propeu20.884,694(20,884,695)23.581,605lJ,511,605
I4 7H.21’,JJ72s.t27,7J25O,tn,OZOIll.OlS,54J)(1"....221)7.40,OIt.22S
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ASFC 16/11/2017 Item 14.1 Attachment 1

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL REPORT

11. Rehabilitation Assets

Actual 

2016/17

Actual 

2015/16

NON CURRENT 

Post closure rehabilitation assets 

Less: Accumulated amortisation

16,517,533 

(305,880) 

16,211,653

16,517,533

16,517,533

Movements in carrying amounts of post closure rehabilitation assets during the financial year are shown as 

follows.

Rehabilitation Assets

Opening balance at 1 July 2016 

Increase / (decrease) in provision resulting from the 

remeasurement of the estimated future cash flows 

Amortisation 

Closing Balance at 30 June 2017

$ 

16,517,533

(305,880) 

16,211,653

12a. Trade & Other Payables

CURRENT 

Creditors 

Accrued Expenses 

income Received in Advance 

GST Payable

Actual Actual

2016/17 2015/16

$ $

7,360,147 21,244,213

1,380,819 1,405,840

597,526

42,514 955,871

9,381,006 23,605,924

5,761,532

NON CURRENT 

Sundry Deposits and Bonds

12b. Borrowings

CURRENT 

Debentures - Secured by Floating Charge

Actual Actual

2016/17 2015/16

$ $

2,500,000 2,593,138

20,000,000 23,150,036

NON CURRENT 

Debentures - Secured by Floating Charge

Additional detail on borrowings is provided in Note 22.
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS.

13. Provisions

CURRENT 

Provision for Annual Leave 

Provision for Long Service Leave

Actual 

2016/17 

$ 

4,144,905 

2,451,508 

6,596,413

Actual 

2015/16 

$ 

3,312,104 

2,113,784 

5,425,888

NON CURRENT

Provision for Long Service Leave 1,949,439 1,874,457

Provision for Site Rehabilitation 17,008,153 16,517,533

18,957,592 18,391,990

Provision for Provision for lone Provision for Site

Annual leave Service leave Rehabilitation Total

$ $ $ $

Opening balance as at 1 July 2016 3,312,104 3,988,241 16,517,533 23,817,879

Net movement 832,801 412,706 490,620 1,736,127

Balance at 30 June 2017 4,144,905 4,400,947 17,008,153 25,554,006
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ASFC 16/11/2017 Item 14.1 Attachment 1

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS. 

14. Reserves

Actual 

2016/17 

$

Budget 

2016/17 

S

CASH BACKED RESERVES 

Staff Payments & Entitlements 

Opening Balance 

Transfer from Accumulated Surplus. Interest 

Transfer from Accumulated Surplus 

Transfer to Accumulated Surplus

2,115,293 

45,778 

119,822 

(333,262) 

1,947,631

2,133,594 

45,068 

119,822 

(162,000) 

2,136,484

ThisReserve provides for payment of various staff entitlements Including separation, bonus, awards and other 

payments made to Staff either through contractual or statutory entitlement. other than leave liabilities already provided for 

within the City’s net asset position

Plant & Vehicle Replacement 

Opening Balance 

Transfer from Accumulated Surplus. Interest 

Transfer from Accumulated Surplus 
Transfer to Accumulated Surplus

8.252.372 

165.730 

2.966.421 

(4.013.350) 

7,371,172

6.527.521 

105.975 

2.949.690 

(2.967.350) 

6,615,836

This Reserve provides for the orderly replacement of plant and vehicles. Annual transfers into this 

Reserve are equivalent to the depreciation charge for plant each year. Funds are drawn as required 

to meet annual plant replacement cosls.

Information Technoloey 

Opening Balance 

Transfer from Accumulated Surplus - Interest 

Transfer from Accumulated Surplus 

Transfer to Accumulated Surplus

379.658 

7,747 

100.000 

(197.350) 

290,055

259.123 

8,082 

100,000 

(50.000) 

317,205

This Reserve Fund was set up to provide for the upgrading/replacement of Council’s computer 

hardware and software depreciated over five years. An amount equivalent to the annual depreciation 

charge for computers is transferred to the Reserve each year. Funds are drawn as required to cover 

capital computer replacement costs.

Major BuildinC Refurbishment 

Opening Balance 

Transfer from Accumulated Surplus - Interest 

Transfer from Accumulated Surplus 

Transfer to Accumulated Surplus

9.706.691 

133.850 

1.500.000

9.828.567 

224.591 

1.620.328 

(100,000) 

11,573,486 11,340,541

This Reserve Fund provides funding for future major refurbishment of Council buildings as they become necessary. 
Annual transfers are usually made to this Reserve from any end of year surplus.

Waste & Recyclinc 

Opening Balance 

Transfer from Accumulated Surplus - Interest 

Transfer from Accumulated Surplus 

Transfer to Accumulated Surplus

23.846,752 

329.115 

1.271.022 

(12.280,992) 

13,165,896

23.007,894 

348,847 

1.949.433 

(9.325.000) 

1S.981,173

This Reserve Fund was Initially set up for the funding of capital COSls associated with the 

development of a rubbish disposal site. It was recognised that land would be expensive to purchase 

and the stringent environmental standards required would result in high development costs. 
Transfers to this Reserve are made based on planned future capital funding requirements.

land Development and Investment Fund Reserve 

Opening Balance 

Transfer from Accumulated Surplus - Interest 

Transfer from Accumulated Surplus

6,348.831 

101.680 

11.141.607

14.799,330 

251,777 

240.095

Actual 

2015/16 

S

2,049.042 

49,774 

110.000 

(93,523) 

2,115,293

7.416,121 

163.062 

2.802.657 

(2.129.467) 

8,252.372

279,795 

6,913 

100.000 

(7.050) 

379,658

5,452,406 

127.269 

4.928.686 

(679,794) 

9,828,567

21,330,958 

524.843 

2.233,448 

(242,497) 

23,846,7S2

5.605.100 

170.717 

3.679,491
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Transfer to Accumulated Surplus

Actual 

2016/17 

S 

(13,414,353) 

4,177,766

Budget 

2016/17 

$ 

(5,060,000) 

10,231,202

This Reserve Fund Is to accommodate and facilitate the purchase, development and disposal of land under the 

Council’s land development strategies with the ability to loan funds on <In interest payable basis to other reserve funds 

of the City.

Roads & Dralna,. Infrastructur. 

Opening Balance 

Transfer from Accumulated Surplus - Interest 

Transfer from Accumulated Surplus 

Transfer to Accumulated Surplus

8,159,206 

246,952 

5,754,502 

(173,277) 

13,987,382

2,593,975 

64,880 

4,250,000 

(3,500,000) 

3,408,855

The purpose of this Reserve Fund is to provide for the renewal and refurbishment of roads and 

drainage Infrastructure and for the provision of matching funds for Federal & State Government road 

gra nts.

Naval Bas. Shacks 

Opening Balance 

Transfer from Accumulated Surplus - Interest 

Transfer from Accumulated Surplus 

Transfer to Accumulated Surplus

935,871 

21,428 

120,376

969,751 

22,969 

158,696

1,077,675 1,151,416

This Reserve Fund was initially set up to provide funds for the development & refurbishment of the 

Naval Base Chalet Resort. It is envisaged that it will also fund rehabilitation costs required to be 

Incurred when the Park reverts back to the State Government. Annual transfers to this Reserve are 

fully funded by part of the lease income derived from the chalet sites.

Community Infrastructur. 

Opening Balance 

Transfer from Accumulated Surplus - Interest 

Transfer from Accumulated Surplus 

Transfer to Accumulated Surplus

12,096,036 

264,703 

4,504,636 

(3,655,111) 
13,210,265

11,229,764 

109,782 

1,304,636 

(4,520,000) 

8,124,182

This Reserve Fund was set up to fund the provision of community and recreation facilities within the 

City as the need arises. The requirement for these facilities over the next five to ten years is 

significant due to the rapid rate of development within the city and the associated population growlh.

Insuranc. 

Opening Balance 

Transfer from Accumulated Surplus - Interest 

Transfer from Accumulated Surplus 

Transfer to Accumulated Surplus

488,961 

9,737 

14,500 

(l85,OOO) 

328,198

504,509 

8,090

512,599

Council’s Workers Compensation cover is provided by Municipal Workcare, which is a self-insurance scheme. If at a 

future date claims exceed income, then Council will be required to contribute further funds towards any defcit. 

These funds are held so that any additional contributions will not Impact on the annual budget.

Gr..nhous. Action Fund 

Opening Balance 

Transfer from Accumulated Surplus - Int.erest 

Transfer from Accumulated Surplus 
Transfer to Accumulated Surplus

901,331 

16,195 

1,450,000 

(2,017,608) 

349,919

478,171 

10,330 

1,450,000 

(195,000) 

1,743,501

This Reserve will be used to purchase carbon offsets and fund projects to support energy effciency, waste management 

and renewable energy Installations.

D.v.lopm.nt Contribution Plans
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Actual 

2015/16 

$ 

(3,106,478) 

6,348,831

3,207,854 

79,162 

4,876,387 

(4,197) 

8,159,206

828,752 

20,206 

103,088 

(16,176) 

935,871

6,211,519 

153,500 

5,798,831 

(67,814) 

12,096,036

389,322 

9,639 

100,000 

(10,000) 

488,961

636,855 

14,378 

361,660 

(111,562) 

901,331
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ASFC 16/11/2017 Item 14.1 Attachment 1

Opening Balance 

Transfer from Accumulated Surplus - Interest 

Transfer from Accumulated Surplus 
Transfer to Accumulated Surplus

Actual 

2016/17 

$ 

6,497,765 

156,723 

1,003,258 

(113,563) 

7,544,182

This Reserve was established for the management of contributions and costs with respect to 

Development Contribution Areas as established by and in accordance with Town Planning Scheme 3.

Family Day Care Accumulation Fund 

Opening Balance 

Transfer from Accumulated Surplus - Interest 

Transfer from Accumulated Surplus 

Transfer to Accumulated Surplus

8,295 

187

Budget 

2016/17 

$ 

8,255,151 

104,795 

1,741,922 

(149,590) 

9,952,278

Actual 

2015/16 

$ 

6,525,157 

178,621 

2,729,985 

(2,935,998) 

6,497,765

8,295

8,482 8,295

This Reserve Is fully funded from the operating grants received by the Family Day Care service and t.hus has no effect on the 

Municipal Fund.

Aced and Disabled Asset Replacement Reserve 

Opening Balance 

Transfer from Accumulated Surplus - Interest 

Transfer from Accumulated Surplus 
Transfer to Accumulated Surplus

326,947 

5,285 

68,129 

(177,168) 

223,193

172,895 

8,628

(17,000) 

164,523

This Reserve is fully funded from the operating grants received by various services and thus has no effect on the 

Municipal Fund.

Welfare Projects Employee Entitlements 

Opening Balance 

Transfer from Accumulated Surplus - Interest 

Transfer from Accumulated Surplus 
Transfer to Accumulated Surplus

479,810 

10,97.1 

15,671 

(47,249) 

459,203

This is a Reserve Fund that applies to grant funded welfare services. It is fully funded from the 

operating grants received by the service and thus has no effect on the Municipal Fund.

HWRP Post Closure Manacement & Contaminated Sit.. 

Opening Balance 

Transfer from Accumulated Surplus - Interest 

Transfer from Accumulated Surplus 

Transfer to Accumulated Surplus

2,322,695 

52,361

(15,401) 

2,359,654

454,366 

10,933 

13,000

478,299

2,089,461 

47,780

(100,000) 

2,037,241

This Reserve is required to cover costs associated with the HWRP post closure management plan and any 

remediation works at contaminated sites within the district as enforced by the Contaminated Sites Act.

Municipal Elections 

Opening Balance 

Transfer from Accumulated Surplus - Interest 

Transfer from Accumulated Surplus 

Transfer to Accumulated Surplus

34,213 

984 

120,000

155,198

This Reserve has been established to provide funding to cover election expenses during election 

years. An amount will be transferred into this reserve in non-election years.

Welfare Redundanci.. 

Opening Balance 

Transfer from Accumulated Surplus - Interest 

Transfer from Accumulated Surplus 

Transfer to Accumulated Surplus

40,825 

923

14,027 

2,681 

120,000

136,708

39,839 

797

430,493 

8,160 

60,317 

(172.023) 

326,947

432,255 

10,582 

124,280 

(87,306) 

479,810

2,488,919 

59,914

(226,138) 

2,322,695

51,009 

(890) 

150,000 

(165,905) 

34,213

39,839 

986
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Actual 

2016/17 

$ 

41,748

Budget 

2016/17 

$ 

40,636

This Reserve was created for the purpose of covering potential future redundancy costs for grant funded services, 

as funding agreements do not usually allow for these costs.

Port Coo,.. Special Maintenance - SAR 

Opening Balance 

Transfer from Accumulated Surplus - Interest 

Transfer from Accumulated Surplus 

Transfer to Accumulated Surplus

1.400.129 

29.760 

256,936 

(439,984) 

1.246,841

This Reserve was established to manage the funds raised through the specified area rate for 

the Port Coo gee development. These funds are required for the speclalised maintenance 

requirements of the development. The City commenced rating issued lots in 2008/09.

Port Coo,ee Waterways WEMP Reserve No.1 

Opening Balance 

Transfer from Accumulated Surplus - Interest 

Transfer from Accumulated Surplus 

Transfer to Accumulated Surplus

35.418 

2,464,768 

(203,1921 

2,296,993

1.325,909 

26.794 

274.000 

(308.5091 

1.318,194

40.372 

2.100.000 

(253.1921 

1,887,180

This Reserve was established to manage the funds paid by the developer of the Port Coogee marina development In 

accordance with the Waterways Environmental Management Plan (WEMPI. The funds will be used to maintain 

and manage the marina.

Public Open Space (POSI Cash In lieu Trust 

Opening Balance 

Transfer from Accumulated Surplus - Interest 

Transfer from Accumulated Surplus 
Transfer to Accumulated Surplus

Actual 

2015/16 

$ 

40.825

1,224.733 

27,554 

341,727 

(193.8851 

1,400,129

5.471.641 5,256,925 5.485,916

53.833 108,937 134.863

96,000 452,457

(5,621,4741 (601.5941

5,365,862 5,471,641

This Reserve was established in 2009/10 for holding Council’s public open space cash In lieu trust funds. These funds 

were transferred into the Cit s Trust Fund during 2016/17 following audit query and legal advice.

Community Surveillance Levy Reserve 

Opening Balance 

Transfer from Accumulated Surplus - Interest 

Transfer from Accumulated Surplus 

Transfer to Accumulated Surplus

1,245,490 

27.369 

200,000 

(375,1171 

1,097,742

This Reserve was established to fund activities In relation to Community Surveillance

Community Infrastructure - Development Contributions Reserve 

Opening Balance 

Transfer from Accumulated Surplus - Interest 

Transfer from Accumulated Surplus 

Transfer to Accumulated Surplus

10,361,258 

218,853 

4.644.522 

(9,260,1861 

5,964,447

1.229,695 

22.594 

200,000 

(334,0001 

1,118,289

8.567.662 

220.238 

5.000.000 

(40,4731 

13,747,427

This reserve has been established to account for the funds generated from the proposed Community Infrastructure 

Developer Contributions Scheme. Subject to ministerial approval, funds could commence flowing during 2011/12.

Waste Collection 

Opening Balance 

Transfer from Accumulated Surplus - Interest 

Transfer from Accumulated Surplus 

Transfer to Accumulated Surplus

2.641.530 

50,763 

1,027.352 

(1.282.0181 

2.437,627

1.566.660 

63.366 

1,638.621 

( 1.010.0001 

2.258,647

This reserve is to provide funding for fulure capital requirements related to the Waste Collection service.

1.481.926 

35.866

(272.3011 

1,245,490

16,479.668 

264.337 

6,465.284 

(12.848.0301 

10,361,258

1.055,070 

26.656 

1.681,022 

(121,219) 

2,641.530

110 of 174 I v I
Version: 4, Version Date: 20/04/2022
Document Set ID: 6859306



ASFC 16/11/2017 Item 14.1 Attachment 1

Actual Budget Actual

2016/17 2016/17 2015/16

$ S $

Naval Bu. l....hold.r Ow.llinC R.moval

Opening Balance 461,814 456,167 397.285

Transfer from Accumulated Surplus - Interest 10,533 10.217 9.836

Transfer from Accumulated Surplus 54.693 54.693 54.693

Transfer to Accumulated Surplus (202)

526.838 521,077 461.814

Established for the purposes of the future removal of leasehold dwellings al Reserve 24308. Naval Base. All 

funds raised are to be accounted for on a properly lease by lease basis. and not on who paid the actual payment at the 

time of the payment. Funds raised will be reimbursed to leaseholders when dwelling Is removed and the site 

rehabilitated to Its prior state.

Undercround Power - SAR 

Opening Balance 

Transfer from Accumulated Surplus - Interest 

Transfer from Accumulated Surplus 

Transfer to Accumulated Surplus

222,504 

5,029

(227.532)

208,864

208,864

This Reserve is for managing the funds raised through prescribed service charges for the undergrounding of power 
within the district.

Environm.ntal Offs.t 

Opening Balance 

Transfer from Accumulated Surplus - Interest 

Transfer from Accumulated Surplus 
Transfer to Accumulated Surplus

291,595 

6.590

284,550 

7.691

550,927 

13.640 

1,030,000 

(1,372.063) 

222,504

284.550 

7.045

298,185 291,595

Purpose of the reserve is to receive funds so as to undertake environmental rehabilitation of land 

associated with road construction as approved by the relevant government agency.

Bibra lake Manac.m.nt Plan R.s.rv. 

Opening Balance 

Transfer from Accumulated Surplus - Interest 

Transfer from Accumulated Surplus 
Transfer to Accumulated Surplus

985,439 

16,491

(412,642) 
589,288

Purpose of the reserve Is to receive funds sO as to implement the Bibra lake Management Plan as 

adopted by Council.

Restricted Grants & Contributions Reserve 

Opening Balance 

Transfer from Accumulated Surplus - Interest 

Transfer from Accumulated Surplus 
Transfer to Accumulated Surplus

2.230.479

3,514,786 

(2,159.798) 

3,585,466

Purpose of the reserve Is to quarantine monies received for restricted purposes across financial years

CIHF Buildlnc Maintenanc. R...rv. 

Opening Balance 

Transfer from Accumulated Surplus - Interest 

Transfer from Accumulated Surplus 

Transfer to Accumulated Surplus

3,323,192 

84,023 

1.288,333 

(74,479) 

4,621,068

292,241

532,426 

10,648

(350,000) 
193,074

2.077.647

(5,102) 

2,072,545

3,189,423

1.400,000 

(250.000) 

4,339,423

Purpose of the reserve is to provide funding for major building maintenance of the Cockburn Integrated Health 

Facility at Cockburn Central

Cockburn C.ntral W.st R.cr.ation Facility R.s.rv. 

Opening Balance 10.880,762 15,647.202

1,070,427 

25,644

(110,633) 

985,439

5,569.838 

(4) 

2.247,700 

(5,587,055) 

2,230,479

2,189,423 

61,178 

1,072.590

3,323,192

7.908.607
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Transfer from Accumulated Surplus - Interest 

Transfer from Accumulated Surplus 

Transfer to Accumulated Surplus

Actual 

2016/17 

S 

125,909 

8.300,000 

(18.806.671) 

500,000

Budget 

2016/17 

$ 

53,000 

8,300,000 

(24,000,000) 
202

Purpose of the reserve Is to manage funds for the development of the Cockburn Central West Recreation Facility.

Carry Forward Proj.cts R.s.rv. 

Opening Balance 

Transfer from Accumulated Surplus - Interest 

Transfer from Accumulated Surplus 

Transfer to Accumulated Surplus

4,020,698

6,584,183 

(6,629,887) 

3,974,994

498,831

7,500,000

This reserve is to manage municipal funds for incomplete projects carried forward to the following financial year.

7,998,831

Port COOc.. Wat.rways SAR R.s.rva 

Opening Balance 

Transfer from Accumulated Surplus - Interest 

Transfer from Accumulated Surplus 

Transfer to Accumulated Surplus

3,629 

188,590 

(79,742) 

112,477

8,685 

188,590 

(79,742) 

117,533

Actual 

2015/16 

$ 

301,076 

14,688,595 

(12,017,517) 

10,880,762

9,657,071 

(5,636,373) 

4,020,698

Provide funding for the maintenance of the waterways surrounding Port Coogee marina and associated infrastructure. 

This is funded from the specified area rate levied on land directly adjacent to the waterways.

SUMMARY CASH BACKED RESERVES 

Opening Balance 

Transfer from Accumulated Surplus. Interest 

Transfer from Accumulated Surplus 

Transfer to Accumulated Surplus 

TOTAL CASH BACKED RESERVES

126,599,957 

2,329,289 

58,890,433 

(82,296,608) 

105,523,070

124,078,024 

1,857,806 

42,553,198 

(S2,676,958) 

115,812,070

107,073,767 

2,484,527 

65,858,263 

(48,816,600) 

126,599,957
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS.

15. REVALUATION SURPLUS

Actual Actual

2016/17 2015/16

$ $

Revaluation surpluses have arisen on revaluation of the following

classes of non-current assets:

land

Opening Balance 118,679,531 118,679,531

Revaluation Increment/(Decrement) (11,284,737)

107,394,794 118,679,531

Buildings

Opening Balance 22,405,632 22,405,632

Revaluation Increment/(Decrement) 456,022

22,861,653 22,405,632

Roads Infrastructure

Opening Balance 240,139,955 231,301,929

Revaluation Increment/(Decrement) (68,511,262) 8,838,026

171,628,693 240,139,955

Drainage Infrastructure

Opening Balance 142,858,567 151,027,196

Revaluation Increment/(Decrement) 5,951,874 (8,168,629)

148,810,441 142,858,567

landfill Infrastructure

Opening Balance 2,673,635 2,673,635

Revaluation Increment/(Decrement) (74,939)

2,598,696 2,673,635

Footpath Infrastructure

Opening Balance 27,186,403 26,094,236

Revaluation Increment/(Decrement) 594,842 1,092,166

27,781,245 27,186,403

Parks Infrastructure

Opening Balance 21,488,638 16,059.750

Revaluation Increment/(Decrement) 963,841 5,428,888

22,452,479 21,488,638

TOTAL REVALUATION SURPLUS 503,528,001 575,432,360

SUMMARY OF REVALUATION SURPLUS

Opening Balance 575,432,360 568,241,909

Revaluation net increment/(decrement) made during the year (71,904,359) 7,190,450

TOTAL REVALUATION SURPLUS 503,528,001 575,432,360
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

16. Notes to Statement of Cash Flows

Actual Budget Actual

2016/17 2016/17 2015/16

$ $ $

16.

Reconciliation of Net ClSh Provided by/(Used in) Operatlne
Activities to Chance in Net Asslts Resultinc from Operations.

Net Result 71,913,380 40,064,152 51,684,141

Add (LlSs) non.cash items:

Depreciation 27,465,498 26,353,614 23.790,540

Amortisation 1,391,018 1.191,132 1,064,912

Finance Cost 490,620

(Profit)/Loss on Sale of Assets (5,412,388) (14,650) (243,160)

Impairment charge provision 3,200,000

Assets Gifted to Other Parties 14,566,385 610,366

Employee entitlements provision 1,245,507 847,252

Accrued investment income (274,568) (240,026)

Joint Venture Investment (497,115) 2,361,161

Recognition of infrastructure assets previously not recognised (62,676,020) (13,128,414)

Less: Grants & Contributions for the Dlvllopment of Asslts (16,695,283) (34,967,106) (32,838,270)

Chanca in Asslts and L1abllltlas:

[Increase)/Decrease in Rates Debtors & Deferred Rates (573,416) (763,440)

(Increase)/Decrease in Sundry Debtors 7,198,041 (7,649,031)

(Increase)/Decrease in Stock on Hand 19,320 (22,468)

Increase/(Decrease) in Creditors & Accruals (14,822,444) 15,542,398

(Increase)/Decrease in Rubbish Debtors 17,536 119,717

Increase/(Decrease) on Income Received in Advance 597,526

(Increase)/Decrease in Prepayments (195,569) (94,310)
NET CASH USED IN OPERATING ACTIVITIES 26,958,027 32,627,142 41,041,367

16b 

Raconclliatlon of Cash

For the purpose of the Statement of Cash Flows, the entity 

considers cash to include Cash on Hand and in Banks and 

investments in Money Market Instruments, Cash at the end 

of the reporting period as shown in the Statement of Cash 

Flows Is reconciled to the related item in the Statement of 

Financial Position as follows: ’

Cash at Bank 

Cash on Hand 

Term Deposits 

Cash & Cash Equivalants at and of Reporting Period

2,896,742 

22,500 

112,476,840 

115,396,082

(17,163,264) 

21,000 

132,027,325 

1l4,885,061

8,528,960 

22,768 

143,002,272 

151,554,000

16c 

Undrawn 8orrowinc Facilities 

Credit Standby Arrangements 

Credit Card limit 

Credit Card Balance at Balance Date 

Total Amount of Cradit Unused

250,000 

81,359 

168,641

250,000 

50,458 

199,542
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NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL REPORT

17. Investment in Joint Venture - SMRC

The City is a member of the Southern Metropolitan Regional Council (SMRC) and also a participant in the 

Regional Resource Recovery Centre (RRRC). 

. The RRRC is controlled by a regional local government established in accordance with the Local Government 

Act 1995. The regional local government being the SMRC, consists of six local governments of which five are 

participants in the RRRC.

Participating Local Governments are required to contribute an annual fee to cover the capital cost in the 

establishment of the facility and pay gate fees for each tonne of waste they deliver to the facility to cover the 

operating costs. The capital costs for each participating Local Government member is based on the Australian 

Bureau of Statistics population statistics. Each project participant will develop equity in the project equal to the 

relevant proportion of the total capital loan repayments made by that project participant. The City of Cockburn’s 

interest in the RRRC is 42.97 per cent. 

The City of Cockburn has guaranteed, by way of agreement, its share of the Loan Liability to the SMRC and 

the Western Australian Treasure Corporation (funding body). The City of Cockburn’s share of the outstanding 

loan liabilities of RRRC at 30 June 2017 is $8,388,860 (audited). The City of Cockburn’s share of the 

outstanding loan liability for the SMRC Admin Building at 30 June 2017 is $671,220 (audited)

Net Increase/(Decrease) In Equity. SMRC Joint Venture

2016/17 2015/16

Actual Actual

$ $

(audited) (audited)

5,426,885 5,215,229

6,414,370 5,784,371

11,817,202 12,840,615

18,231,572 18,624,986

6,872,233 5,375,605

4,766,348 7,156,223

11,638,581 12,531,828

6,592,991 6,093,158

499,833

The City’s share in the net assets of the SMRC (excluding 

equity) Equity Ratio

Represented by Share of Joint Venture entity’s Financial 

Current Assets 

Non Current Assets 

Total Assets

Current Liabilities 

Non Current Liabilities 

Total Liabilities

Net Assets

City of Cockburn’s withdrawal from the Regional Resource Recovery Centre (RRRC) Project

The City has withdrawn from the RRRC Project Participants’ Agreement, which became effective from 30 June 

2017 following a 12 month notice period. The City’s withdrawal triggered a requirement under the RRRC 

Project Participant’s Agreement to prepare an amended business plan for the Project, having regard to the 

effect of the City’s withdrawal. The Deed of Variation to the Project Participant’s Agreement also required the 

SMRC to determine the City’s proportional entitlement to any net surplus or deficit on the basis of a notional 

winding up of the Project. However, any assets and liabilities relating to RRRC Loan Borrowings are to be 

excluded from the notional winding up calculation.

The SMRC have facilitated the preparation of an amended business plan showing an estimated sum payable 

by the City to the SMRC of $381 ,154 based on the notional winding up of the RRRC Project at 30 June 2017. 

The City does not concur with all the cost items and assumptions used in the calculation and is seeking for 

these to be reviewed. The City’s equity share in the assets of the RRRC will be adjusted in 2017-18 only once 

the amended business plan has been accepted by the City and the subsequent impact of the notional winding 

up on the City’s equity share determined. 
.

In accordance with the RRRC Project Participants’ Agreement, the City will continue to be responsible for its 

share of RRRC borrowing repayments until fully repaid or satisfied. The City will also be entitled to any 

proportional equity in assets acquired from the related borrowing, when this is fully repaid or satisfied.
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NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL REPORT

18. Contingent Liabilities

[.) Regional Resource Recovery Centre. Lending Facility 
Council is a participant in the Regional Resource Recovery Centre Joint Venture. The project was 
established through the Southern Metropolitan Regional Council (SMRC) and involves the cities of Canning, 
Cockburn, Fremantle, Melville and the Town of East Fremantle in the development of a waste processing 
plant and a recyclable and green waste facility at Canning Vale.

The capital construction of the facility is funded by borrowings from Western Australian Treasury Corporation. 
A $40 million lending facility was initially set up for this purpose, repayable over a term of 20 years. This 

facility has since been extended to a total of S55 million. The SMRC administer the borrowings and the project 

participants make quarterly contributions equal to the repayment costs of these borrowings.

The Council’s estimated share of the project funding is based upon population percentages as derived from 
the Australian Bureau of Statistics census. These are now revised yearly over the life of the loan. Council’s 

share in the 2016/17 year is 42.97%.

As at 30th June 2017, the balance outstanding against the lending facility stood at 519,522,597 with Council’s 

share of this liabiHty being S8,388,860 (calculated using the percentage of 42.97%).

Council’s annual contribution towards the repayment of interest and principal on the lending facility is currently 
around $1.62 million (approx. $40 per household).

Council has guaranteed by way of agreement its share of the loan liability to the SMRC and the Western 

Australian Treasury Corporation (funding body).

Ib) SMRC Administration Building - Lending Facility 
As a SMRC participant, Council has guaranteed by way of security to the Western Australian Treasury 

Corporation, a charge over its’ general funds for its’ share of any outstanding debenture borrowings provided 
for the SMRC administration building at 9 Aldous Place Booragoon. This facility has a limit of $2 million.

As at 30th June 2017, the balance outstanding against this facility stood at at $1 ,800,000 with Council’s share 
of this liability being $671,220 (using the current cost/profit sharing percentage of 37.29%).

Ie) ATa GST Audit - Unimproved Land Sales

The Australian Taxation Office (ATO) instigated an audit into the City’s GST treatment of unimproved land 

sales made during the period 1 September 2009 to 30 September 2013. Specifically, it investigated the City’s 

application of the margin scheme to land sales made under Item 4 of subsection 75-10(3) of the GST Act and 

whether the City correctly accounted for the GST attributable to these sales. The audit completed in 
December 2014 found that the City had not correctly accounted for GST on these land sales by a shortfall of 

$782,747. This finding was premised on the ATO’s view that some of the land had been improved prior to 1 

July 2000 (mainly through land clearing) and that this had enhanced the value of the land compared to its 
natural state. However, the City’s tax advisor’s position is that the ATO have erred with their interpretation of 
the facts and is currently acting on behalf of the City (and several other clients with similar issues) in 

responding to the ATO’s audit findings.

Upon advice, the City entered the A TO’s Alternative Dispute Resolution (ADR) process that was developed to 

resolve issues in respect of ’land on which there are no improvements’, applicable for section 38-445 and 

Item 4 of subsection 75-10(3) of the A New Tax System (Goods and Services Tax) Act 1999. However, the 

ATO has since advised the City on the 29 June 2017 that they have determined the majority of the land sales 
under audit to now be considered unimproved. This has reduced the potential maximum liability for the City 
from the previous audit finding of $782,7.47 to approximately $150,000. This amount is the potential net 

impact from 11 lot sales still being reviewed by the ATO if they are subsequently determined to be improved. 
However, the City and its advisor are confident that the ATO will also determine the majority of these lots to 

be unimproved, resulting in only a negligible or no liability.
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NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL REPORT

19. Capital & leasing Commitments

Capital Commitments

At the reporting date, Council had the following commitments remaining for major purchases:

2017 

$

2016 

$

Contracted for: 

Capital expenditure projects 

Plant & equipment purchases

5,772,499 

800,924 

6,573,423

33,589,504 

2,537,759 

36,127,263

Operating Leasing Commitments 

Non-cancellable operating leases contracted for but not capitalised in the financial report

Payable: 

Not later than 1 year 

Later than 1 year but not later than 5 years 

Later than 5 years

Actual 

2016/17 

$ 

672,405 

870,010

Actual 

2015/16 

$ 

599,046 

610,834

1,542,415 1,209,880
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NOTES TO AND fORMING PART Of THE fiNANCIAL REPORT

20a. Assets Classified by Function 

Total Assets Closs;fied by Funct;on and Activity

fGeneral Purpose FundIng 
Governance 

law, Order and Public Safety 

Health 

Educa!lon and Welfare 

Community Amenities 

Recreation and Culture 

Transport 

Economic Services 

Other Property and Services 

otol

20b. Disposal of Assets

Adual 

2016117 

S 

52.901.714 

28.570.090 

2.018.520 

1.883.193 

1.530.174 

40.974.561 

106.298.632 

630.293.449 

1.866.912 

352.906.834 

1.220.2.....078

Actual 

2015/16 

$ 

56.990.186 

28.965.663 

2.364.945 

2.042.004 

2.332,666 

74.126.965 

196.060,761 

685.238.718 

3.939.698 

189.666.947 

1,241,728,554

I 
Bud,et 

2016/17

Net Book V.lue 

Actual 

2016/17 

ProgramBookVal

BY FUNCTION

Governance 

Law. Order and Public Safety 

Health 

Education and Welfare 

Community Amenlt1clo 

Recf’caIlOI’ and Culture 

Transpoft 

Economk Sc.vlces 

Other PJoperty and Services 

otel

271.825 

747.989

6.071.773 

7.091.587

BY ASSt-r CLASSIFICATION 

land 

Building~ 

Infrastfucture. Parks E<lulpmeot 

Furniture and Equipment 

Computer$ 

Plant tlnd Equipment 

ot.’

5.546.315 

271.825

1.273,447 

7.091.587

14,650 

14.650

I 
Budcol 

2016/17

Slle Price 

Actu.1 

2016/17 

ProgramProceeds ProgramProcceds

30.625

31.800 12.000

800.000 1,057.252 832.ISO

450.000 11.384,298 420.500

1.250.000 12.503.975 1,264.650

10.881.819

1.250.000 

1.250.000

1.622.156 

12.503.975

l.264.650 

1.264.650

I~

Profit/loss 

Actu.1 

2016/17

30.625

31.800

1271.825) 

309.263

5.312.525 

5.’12.311

5.335.50’ 

1271.825)

348.709 

S.’12.388

12.000

32.150

129.500) 

1’.650
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20c. Control Over Contributions

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL REPORT

Fundin Bodies 

Alcoa KWlnana Refinery 

Communltv SPOII~ clIKllter.re.lIl()lI 

Department Child Prote<tion 

Department Child Plotef:tlQIl Jnd Family SuPPOII 

Depar Irnerll LOC,ll GovClnmerrl ,md (on1fllunitit!~ 

Oepanrnent Of AttO(ney General 

~p,,’lnu)lrl of ChIld Plolec’lon 

Oepartlllelll of Correct \’e SelvlCe~ 

Depanmem of (dot.Hlon ,lIld hamlllg 

Oepartment of ~ducallOl\ tmpk>vee & Workplac(> 

l:>t"pal1ment of File itlld Emergency 5et"\’kes 

Ot>partlllent of Health 

Departrll!:’nt ollnllastructule dnd RegiOllal Development 

Department of local gov(’rnmem 

Dcp<l!llIlcnt 01 SI10fts and Recreation 

(}(opartment 01 1J"rks & Wildlife COllllllunity & Ilegion,)1 Parks 

Department 01 Social ServIC~ 

DI~ahrllty ServICes Cornlllis~~ olI 

C>epanment of Tltlnspoll 

hemanll!?’ Docke’s I notball Clllb 

Disabllltv ~e".’I(es Comm~sion 

Frelllollllle Porl!. 

Ile"lthway 

Hot)e (onrllltrnity ~Ivices 

Main I{oads WA 

MedlCilr e ̂ustl.llra 

Ngala ,md Palenllllg Re~ear(h (",nue 

Pr;...ate Corllribuliooc, 

Public lrJ"~I)Ojt ̂ uthOlilVOI WA 

State Emergency Management Committt>e 

51.llC Natural HeSQlIIcc M,lllJgelllcnt Offici’ 

WC~lL’1I1 Au~tr<llial1 Loc..rl Gov(’lI1l11cnl As!tOCi lioll (WALGA) 

Wc~teln Au!.lr,1Ii,11l Planning (omm,t,stOu (WAPC)

Western Australian Police 

S\OQdcllld W^ Developmcnt

Pur ose 

Operaling granl for dclivCling sclvices 

OperOlIIlII~ grant 101 delrvcrm& !ot’rvrcE!I 

Operating Brant 101 delivering services 

Opelatlng gIant for delivering selvice~ 

OpelalillgElli:lnt for deli~..inB wlvice~ 

Operrrting grant for delivering services 

O!>Clallll!3 glanltol (lclivcnllg ~ervlCes 

Opel atin8 BI ant 101 dehvelllg !I.(’lvrCC!I 

Opelaring grant fOI delivering MlrVICt:l!> 

Ope, "tinB 8r ant rOf delrvcl in ’..f!IVlce.. 

Operating grant fOf delivering serv es 

Opeldtil1ggranllor dehv(!flllg !>erVlce~ 

Capitol I grams 101 load~ constructiom 

O!>E’rating 8r ant fOI delivering services 

OI:ICrating gr,tnt 101 delivering $CIV C!l. 

Operating Brall! fOf delivcnng services 

Opef,ltinB grant 101 delrvering 5eIVKe!l 

01:IC1 o1I II8 gr <lnt fOI deliver ing servlCe!l 

Operatil)8 grant for coastal and adJPtalion study 

Develope, c.ont libution for building constl un ion 

Operalmggrant fOl delivering wrvices 

OperdtingS’olnt for delivering services 

Operaling gIant lor dcl l’,in !If!lvice!l 

O!>Cl ling g’Llnl fOI deliv ling s(’rvic(>s 

Operating glnnt foe delivering selVic.es 

OI)C!,ltmg Brallt 101 rteli\ft’I n service!. 

Operating grant for deliveling service!l 

Operal in {lr ilnt for delivcling service.. 

Capit,ll erant for bll~ slOp conslll)(lion 

Operational grants for bushfire preventiOfl 

O!>cr;rIUlg 8,.1"1 fOI delivering SClvices 

Capitalgranl 101 bUilding cOIIslluction 

Operating grant fOI environmentJI servICes 

Capital grilnts for C(TV implementcltion and operating 

gr ants 101 dehv(>ring <.>ervKcs 

Capital grant... lor rood~ conslrl)(.l;OI1’.>

Function 

Recreation & Culture

Education & Welf.c1fe 

Education & Welfale 

Educalion & Welfare 

Educafion & Welf e 

[ducatlon & Welfare 

[ducatlOn & Welfare 

EducatIOn & Welf,lle 

[ducatlOn & Welfale 

law, Order & Public Sdfety 

EducatIOn & Welfare 

lransport 

law, Order & Public ~relV 

Govelllilnce 

HC(’eation & Culture 

[duc~\lon & Well ale 

[ducatlon & We!f ll(’ 

Recreation & Culture

Governance

ldllcallOn & Welf.lle 

Recreation & Culture 

ErllIC,J!101I & Welfare 

Education & Welt,lIe 

lran5port 

lI hh 

Education & Welfale 

Edu(ilt n & Welfare 

llilllspon 

law, Order & Public Sdfety 

Community ̂ menitips 

ReoeatioH & Culture 

RQ(leillion & Culwre

Law, Order & Public Safety 

’lan~I)Qlt

(1) _ Grantalcontrlbutlon. rec:ognised.. re....nue in a pr....lo~n reporUng period whk:h were not expended at the dose of the previous reporting period.

(2) _ New grantalc:ontributlons which were recognlsed .. rev.nues during the reporting period and whic:h had not yet been futty upended In the manner spec:lfled 

by the contributor.

(3) _ Grants/contributions which had been recognts.d as revenues In a previous reporting period or rec:e!...ed In the current reporting period and which w.re 

expended In the current reporting per\od In the manner Sf*:ltied by the contributor.

--ell 
1107115

. 
.. 

.’;’:f~:. 
>,.r.... 

> ~~;1<: 
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:.,,;... 
<~.~;.;~ 
:~. 
",:,~:~t 
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. 

1"J’. ~’ 

’~~..’ 
"";-~:, .. .

.:iJ7,

"
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".

Received Expended
2015/16 2015/16

10,000.00

282.6’>8.91 331,247.50

416,392.28 393,111.01

7,701.01 7,702.01

135,765.33 1110,290A7

2,999,"’4".19 3,00I1,9S4,t19

175.32

138,5SO.00 155,534.84

1,681.013.00 1,688.166.112

1,998,968.00 1I,171,<192.t12

151,086 J(l 151,08630

334,522.~1 321.373.62

157,512.11 148,959.11

l3,6II0.oo }1.383.UO

10,161.41 8,000.00

1/.172,001.00 1,147.888 fJ2

6,!)(j3.61

10.680.00 9,697.84

323,941.86 157,607.88

45,000.00 33,843.65

10.000.tXl 8,836.15

63,636.36 4,45<1.10

, :;:... 
..,......,~ 

’/~ 

,:"~t;r: 
:’~.. 
:~~’. 
-’~ 
...~ 

;=. 
);;~::.:~ 

"’ ’.J,’ ..’,’ 

~ ,~’;,.:’ 
I.., .~’ 

, .::,’ .1. ~..."....

Received 

2016/17

200.000.00 

19.120.65 

218,211.% 

463.981.03

191,511 13 

13,870.36 

4.396,92545

1,739,137.00 

1,%1,436.00

100,000.00 

330.808.99

176,137.00

4<"17.6H.48 

10,000.00 

!J.OOOOO 

5.5,80700 

7,R87.800.57

1,920.00 

159,186.14

25,000.00

28,272 64

246.000.00

11,~

207.008.24 

469,550.61

1115,103.61 

16,604.19 

<"1,409.833.16

1.684,324.74

232,707.74

J<"I2,.l18.23 

4,000.00 

~,OOO.OO 

55.807.00 

<"1.1.10,019.07

1,559.44 

157,820.<17

~

;8.280.00

34,833.33 

9,090.92 

86,<"154.90

)2_ 
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ASFC 16/11/2017 Item 14.1 Attachment 1

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL REPORT

21. FINANCIAL RATIOS

Current Ratio 

Asset Sustainability Ratio 

Debt Service Cover Ratio 

Operating Surplus Ratio 

Own Source Revenue Ratio

The above ratios are calculated as follows: 

~ 

Current Ratio

Asset Sustainability Ratio

Debt Service Cover Ratio

Operating Surplus Ratio

Own Source Revenue Ratio

ADDITIONAL FINANCIAL RA nos

2017 2016 2015

1.211 1.869

1.399 0.378

20.631 16.625

0.049 -0.002

1.003 0.898

1.432 

1.442 

9.533 

0.078 

0.971

current assets minus restricted current assets 

current liabilities minus liabilities associated 

with restricted assets

capital renewal and replacement expenditure 

depreciation expense

annual operating surplus before interest and depreciation 

principal and interest

operating revenue minus operating expense 

own source operating revenue

own source operating revenue 

operating expense

The following information relates to those ratios which only require an attestation they have been checked and are supported by verifiable information.

Asset Consumption Ratio 

Asset Renewal Funding Ratio

The above ratios are calculated as follows:

Asset Consumption Ratio

Asset Renewal Funding Ratio

2017 2016 2015

0.689 

0.729

0.714 

0.741

0.712 

0.767

depreciated replacement cost of assets 

current replacement cost of depredated assets

NPV of planned capital renewals over 10 years 

NPV of required capital expenditure over 10 years
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NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL REPORT

Z2. InfortlYdon on lorrowlncl

Debenture Rep"""entl

- 1
Prindp.’ Repayments

- -1--
Prlndpol Int.....t Rep.yments

.-

-Pn l- 
- 

T 
- - -

I I
I lJuly 2018 I

Amll lud,.t Actull ludlet AduII lud.et

’Irtlcu"rs/PurpoM $ IntertRllt. Maturity O.tI $ I $ $ $ $ $
- - -- I

I I I
Llw Order & Public Sltety
To asslst fund th~ E:mer8~ncy ~rvices Head Quartl!rs in

I

Cockburn Centlal {FESA Fundedl 743.1741 4.2~ 4 June 2023 143,1741 743.1741 0 0 74.511 74.52 t

Reer..tlon & Culture I 2.500.00011"0 aS~!it fund the Cockburn Central West development 2S.~.:~ 2.96% 27 lune 2026 2.500.000 22.500.000 22.500.~ 891.969 855,479

Tot.l~ - - S,245.174t- - - 5,2~ . 

n,so:
-

Hi.4i
I

- 

25.74S.174 22,500.000 950000

Unspent Dlbenlu,...

There is no un!tpl!nt debenture! !t t 30June 2017.

h(
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NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL REPORT

23.. Statement of Ratine Information for Vear Ended 30 June 2017

NON.MINIMUM MINIMUMS TOTALS

Qty Rateable value Rate in Yield Budget Qly Rateable Value Amount Yield Budget Qty Rateable Value Yield Budget
$ S $ 2016.2017 $ $ S 2016.2017 $ $ 2016.2017

GRV

Commercial Caravan Parks 2 1.778.244 0.0950000 168.933 1&8.933 744 2 1.778.244 168.933 168.933
Res dentiallmproved 27.694 629.618.828 0.0725000 45.647.365 45.612.066 11861 184.144.548 1.281 15.193.941 15.215.718 39.555 813,763.376 60.841.308 60.827.783
Residential. Vacant 1,420 25.232,450 0.0939100 2.369,579 2,371,435 1,380 8.249.504 744 1,026,720 1.026,720 2,800 33.481,954 3.396,299 3.398.155
Comm & Industrial-Improved 2,445 196,647.518 0.0755000 14.846,888 14.823.920 210 1.432.033 744 156.240 156.240 2.655 198.079.551 15.003.128 14,980,160
Comm & Industrial- Vacant 201 16.067.857 0.0939100 1,508.932 1.520.906 14 45.900 744 10.416 10.416 215 16.113,757 1.519.348 1.531.322

large Comm & Industrial- Improved 53 123.257,530 0.0805800 9,932.092 9.932.092 744 53 123.257.530 9.932.092 9.932.092
Jandakot Airport. Standard I 15.391.137 0.0755000 1.162.031 1.162.031 744 1 15.391.137 1.162.031 1.162.031

Jandakol Airport Major 1 25.416.000 0.0805800 2.048.021 2.048.021 744 I 25.416.000 2.048.071 2.048.021

UV

Rural . Vacant Land 55 78.174.000 0.0039100 305,660 282.044 2 184,000 906 1.812 1.812 57 78.358,000 307.472 283.856
Rural General 260 211.502.100 0.0025300 535,100 544,790 15 2.560.763 906 13.590 9.966 275 214.062,863 548.690 554,756

Total Rates levied 32.132 1.323.085.664 781524,602 78.466.238 13,482 1961616,148 16,402.719 16,420.872 45.614 1,519,702,412 94,927,323 94,887,109

Interim Rates - GRV & UV 2.877.008 2.369,726
Rales Received In Advance 152.341

Residentiallmprovecl . Concessions (1.619.510) (1.619.510) (1.556,835)

Total Ganer.’ Rates 32.132 1,323,085,664 76,905,092 78,466.238 13.482 196,616,748 16.402.719 16,420.872 45.614 1,519,702,412 96,337,163 95,700,000

23b. Specified Area Rates for Vear Ended 30 June 2017

ntenm tMfget

Rateable Rate Budget Applied to Applied to

Rate in Basis of Rate Qty Value Yield Revenue 2016-2017 Costs Costs

$ $ $ $ $ $ $

rort Coogee Special Malntellance 0.012 GRV 770 21.907.640 262.892 10.594 274.000 273.485 175,919

Port Coogee Waterways 0.012 GRV 56 4.106.800 49.282 (9.831) 56.000 39,451 56,000

I Total Specified Area Rates 826 26.014,440 312.173 763 330,000 312.936 231.919
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ASFC 16/11/2017 Item 14.1 Attachment 1

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL REPORT

24. Prescribed Service Charges

Property Surveillance & Security 

Section 6.38 of the Local Government Act 1995 allows Council to 

IAmount of each service charge: $67.00

Total amount 01 revenue collected from service charge for
0 0

reporting year:

Add: Amount of funds b/f from previous year for unspent
1,245,490 1,245,490

service charges

ess: Amount ot total tunds applied dUring tne reportmg year

in meeting the costs of the service provided by Wilson Parking 1,245,490 1,245,490

Australia were:

Amount of funds un-applied as at 30 June 2017 (carried forward 0 0

into the following year to meet future service costs).

Actual Budget 

2016/17 2016/17

25. Fees and Charges
Actual Actual

2016/17 2015/16

$ $

General Purpose Funding 778,231 558,828

Governance 18,586 18,648

Law Order & Public Safety 651,096 605,392

Health 303,848 278,509

Education & Welfare 1,480,154 1,477,301

Community Amenities 9,907,490 11,685,204

Recreation & Culture 3,767,169 3,540,358

Transport 217,574 323,379

Economic Services 2,039,149 2,118,305

Other Property & Services 3,189,998 1,467,055

22,353,295 22,072,981

/ 
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26. Interest Charges, Administration Fees and Instalments

Interest Admin Actual Actual

Rate Fee 2016/17 2015/16

% $ $ $

Administration Fee 5.00 270,113 256,341

Penalty Interest 7.00 229,449 253,474

Instalment Interest 3.50 349,316 375,225

848,878 885,040

Payment by Instalments 

Council offered instalment payment options of either two or four payments. The first instalment (inclusive of any arrears) 

had to be paid in full by the due date. Failure to pay the first instalment by the due resulted in the forfeiture of the 

instalment payment option. Ratepayers had the following options for paying their rates: 

(a) Pay in full by 2 September 2016

(b) Pay in four instalments due: 1. 2 September 2016 

2. 4 November 2016 

3. 6 January 2017 

4.10 March 2017

Administration Fees 

The Rates Instalment Fee is $5 per instalment.

Special Payment Arrangements

Ratepayers who were unable to pay their account in full or according to the instalment plans offered were able to make 

special payment arrangements to extinguish their debt. A separate administration fee of $20.00 was charged for these 

arrangements. Penalty interest was applied at the rate of 7% to any outstanding balance.

Instalment Interest

The Local Government Act allows for interest to be charged on overdue amounts. The Council charged interest at the rate 

of 3.5% on outstanding rates for the year under review. This charge covered the opportunity cost of lost income on 

investment that would otherwise be received had the instalment options not been exercised. The maximum rate of interest 

allowed to be imposed on outstanding amounts under S6.4S(4}(e} of the Local Government Act is S.S%

Penalty Interest - Rates

Penalty interest was levied where payment in full or the first instalment was not received within thirty-five days of the issue 

of the rate notice. The rate charged was 7% pa on the daily balance. The maximum rate of interest allowed to be imposed 

on overdue rates and service charges under S6.S1(l} of the Local Government Act is 11%.

Penalty Interest - FESA 

The Minister for Emergency Services deemed the penalty interest rate for 2016/17 to be 7% on outstanding balances. 

Interest was levied where payment in full or the first instalment was not received within thirty-five days of the issue of the 

rate notice.
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27. GRANT REVENUE

Actual Budget Actual

2016/17 2016/17 2015/16

$ S S

Grants, subsidies and contributions are included as operating

revenues In the Statement of Comprehensive Income:

By Nature or Type:

Operating Grants, Sublsidles and Contributions 13,752,463 9,357,649 8,057,274

Non-Operating Grants, Subsidies and Contributions 11,063,443 23,245,184 23,618,162

24,815,906 32,602,833 31,675,436

By Program:

General Purpose Funding 9,901,179 3,824,591 1,897,775

Governance 2,202,389 13,580,000 17,551,996

Law Order & Public Safety 972,425 248,852 401,447

Community Amenities 2,094,756 5,072,799 6,121,801

Recreation & Culture 1,278,094 4,371,184 527,952

Other Property & Services 8,367,063 5,505,407 5,174,464

24,815,906 32,602,833 31,675,436

28. Number of Employees

Actual Actual

2016/17 2015/16

No. No.

Number of full.tlme equivalent (HE) employees as at balance

date: 497 483

29. Superannuation

Contributory 

S G Occupational

Actual 

2016/17 

$ 

708,621 

4,303,471 

5,012,092

Actual 

2015/16 

$ 

615,464 

3,677,906 

4,293,370
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NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL REPORT

30. Financial Risk Management

Council’s cttvities expose it to a variety of financial risks including prke rl.sk. credit risk, liquidity risk and Interest rate risk. The Council’s overall risk management focuses on the 
unprcdlctablUt.y of financial markets nod seeks to minlmise potential adverse eHects on the financial perfonnance of the Council.

Council does not engage in transactions expressed in foreign currencies and is therefore not subject to foreign currency risk.

Financial risk management is carried out by the flnance area under policies approved by the Council.

C.rrvlne Value 

Actual 

201&/17 

$

Actual

Est. Feir Value 

Actua’ Actual

2015/16 

5

201&/17 

$

2015/16 

5

Financial Assets

cash and cash cQutvalents 115.387.367 151.554.000 115.387,367 15J.554.ooo

Held-Io-mal urlty IrweSl.menlS 4.920.l36 4.692.838 4.920.136 4.692.838

Receivable.s, 7.753.566 14.395.728 7.753,566 14.395.728

128.061.068 1.70.642.566 128.061.068 170.642.566

Finaneial Llabilitie.

Borrowings 2l.5oo.oo0 25.743.1.74 17.250.175 19.261.071

Payables 9.381.006 29.367.456 9.381.006 29.367.456
31.881.006 55.110.630 26.63J.181 48.628.527

Fair value Is determined as follows: 

- Cash and Cash Equivalents, Receivables, Payables - estimated to the carrying value which approxIIlldtes nel morket value. 
- Borrowings, Held-ra-Maturity Investments - eSlim.ued future Co:lsh flows discounted by the current market inleres\ rates applicable to assets and liabilities wilh shnil,u risk profiles.

(a) Risk As.e..ment - Ca.h & Ca.h Equivalents and Investments

Counc s objective Is to maIClllllse its return on cash and InvestlTlent~ whilst maintaining an adequate level of liquidity and preservlngcdpltal. rile Onance ared manages the cash and 
InvestmcnlS portfolio with the assistance of Independent advisers (where applicable). Cou"cll has an Investment polky and the polky Is subject to review by Council. An Investment 
Report is prOVided to Council on a monthly basis. setting out the make-up and perform nc~ of the portfolio.

The major ri!ok associated with investment’s Is price risk -the risk that the capital v;:lIue of investments Olay fluctuate due to changes in market prices. whether thel.e changel. are call1.cd by 
factors specific 10 Ind vldual financial instruments of their Issuers or factors affecting similar Instruments traded in market.

Cash and Investments are also sublect to interest rate fisk - the risk that movements in interest rates could affect returns.

Another ril.k a~oc ated with c<"Ish and invc5tments is credit risk - the r k that a contracting entity will not complete its obligDtions under a fnanc al instrument resulting rn a f ldncialloss 

to Council.

Council manages these risks bV dive.sifylng Its portfolio and only purchasing Investments with high credit ratings 01 capital guarantees Counf.1I also seeks advice from independent advisefs 
(where applicable) before placing any cash and investments.

Impact of a 5% (-) fflovr.lllent in price of Investments:

Actual

201&/17

$

240.763

240.76> I-I

776.632

776.632 I-I

Actual 

2015/16 

S

Equity 
- Income Statement

l30.007 

230.007

Impact of a 0.5% (4) movement in Interest rales on cash 

and investments:

- Equity 
- Income Statement

769.875 

769.875

(-) Sensitivity pclccnwges b..lscd on milnagement’s expcctatioll of future possible market movements 
Recent market volatility has seen large market movements for certain types of investments. 

(+) Maximum illlPact

Ibl Rocoivobl.. 

Council’s maJol receivables comprise rates and annual chalges and user charges and fees. The majol risk associated with these receivables Is credit ri..k the risk that the debu lIlay not 
be repaid. Council manages this risk by monitoring oulStandlng debt and employing debt recovery policies. It also encomages latepayers to J)i.ly rates by the due date throueh Incentives

Credit fisk on rates and annual charges ls minimlsed by the ability of Council to recover these debts as a secured charge over the land - that is. the land can be sold to recover the debt. 
Council is also able to charge Inte’est on overdue rales and annudl charges at higher than market rates. which further encourages payment.

The level of outstanding receivables Is reported to Council monthly dnd benchrnar h fe set and monitOlcd for dcceptCtble collection pel formance.

(ouncll makes suitable provision for doubtful re-cervables as required and carries out credit checks on most non-rate debtors.

There are no milte,lal receivables that have been subletl to a re negoUaUon of repayment terms
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30. Financial Risk Management

Percentdge of RiJte~ and Annual Char gcs 

Current 

. Overdue

Actual 

2016/17

Actu l 

2015/16

28% 

72%

29% 

71%

Percentage of Other Receivables

Current 

Overdue

93% 

7%

93% 

7%

(c) Payable! & Borrowincs

Pay~bles and borJowing:!lo arc both subject to liquldily rbk - that Is the risk th lln~lIfflcie,lt fund:!lo may be on hand to l1Ieel payment obligations as and when they f<.111 due. Councllmunascs 

this risk by monitoring its cdsh flow requirements and lquidity levels and maintaining an adequate cash buffer. Payment terms can 
be extended and overdraft facilities drawn upon if 

lequired.

Due Due Due Total Total

within betw..n aftu contractual clrrvinc

Iy..r l&Sy..rs Syurs clsh flows valut

$ $ $ $ $

2017

Borrowings 2.500.000 10.000.000 10.000.000 27.159.750 22.500.000

Payables 9.381.006 0 9.381.006 9.381.006

11.881.006 10.000.000 10.000.000 36.540.756 31.881.006

2016

Borrowings 2.593.138 10.414.725 12.735.311 29.788.028 25,743.174

Payables. 23.605.92. 5.761.532 29.367.456 29.367.456

26.199.062 16.176.257 12.735.311 59.155.484 55.110.630

(d) Interest R.t. Risk Profile 

The City is exposed to interest rate risk through primary finandal assets and liabilities. The follOWing table summaries interest rate 
risk for the Chy, together with the cffecttve Interest rates 

as t 30th June 2017.

Fixed Interest Rate Maturity
Non41nterest

Bearine

1016/17
Averaee Interest Floatlne Less than 1 More than More than Non-Interest

Rate Interest Rate Year 1 to 5 Years 5 Years 5 Years B.arlne Total

% $ $

Financill Assets

Cash 1.25 2.919.242 2.919,242

Direct Securities 2.61 1.078,644 3,841,492 4.920,136

FRN’s & TO’s 2.94 112.468.125 112.468,125

Receivables 2.48 858.657 6.894,909 7.753,566

Total 3,777,899 112,468,125 1,078,644 10,736,401 128,061,069

Financial Uabilities

Borrowings 3.66 2,500,000 10.000,000 10,000,000 22.500,000

Accounts Payable 9.381.006 9.381,006

Deposits/Bond, 1.50

Total 2,500,000 10,000,000 10,000,000 9,381,006 31,881,006

The following table provides comparatives as at 30U’ June 2016:

Fixed Interest Rate Maturity

Non41nterest

Bearlnc

1015/16
Averale Interest Floatlne Less than 1 More than More than Non41nterest

Rite Interest Rate Year 1 to 5 Years 5Yean 5 Years Bearinc Total

%

Financial Assets

Casta 1.7~ 8,551,/28 8,5S1J28

Direct Securities 2.85 1,108,599 3.58-1,239 4.692,838

I:RN’s & rD’, 2.92 143.002,772 143.002,272

Heceivahles 2.64 /38.g~1 13,656.877 14.395,728

Total 9,290,579 143,002,272 1,108,599 3,584,239 13,656,877 170,642,566

Financial liabilities

Borrowings 2.94 J.593.138 10.414,725 12,735.311 25,743,174

ACLOUIHS PaVdble 23,605,924 23,605,924

Deposits/Bollds 2.00 394,475 5,367.057 5,761,532

Total 2,593.138 10,809,200 12,735,311 28,972.981 55,110,630
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31. Elected Members Remuneration

Actual 

2016/17 

$

Budget 

2016/17 

S

Actual 

2015/16 

S

The following fees, expenses and allowances were paid to 

councillors and the mayor:

Meeting Fees 

Vehicle Mileage Claims 

Mayoral/Deputy Mayoral Allowances 

Communication Expenses

336,490 

11,853 

103,675 

37,955 

489,973

329,318 

10,000 

111,080 

45,000 

495,398

324,284 

5,243 

109,437 

42,494 

481,458

32. Economic Dependency

A significant portion of Council’s revenue is received by way of grants from the State and Federal Government. 

Actual Budget 

2016/17 2016/17 

$ $

The total of grant revenue from Government sources 24,815,906 32,602,833

Actual 

2015/16 

S 

31,675,436

33. Events after the Reporting Date

City of Cockburn’s withdrawal from the Regional Resource Recovery Centre (RRRC) Project

The City withdrew from the RRRC Project Participants’ Agreement, which became effective from 30 June 2017. This triggered a requirement 
for the SMRC to determine the City’s proportional entitlement to any net surplus or deficit on the basis of a notional winding up of the 

Project. The SMRC have since facilitated the preparation of an amended business plan for this purpose, showing an estimated sum payable by 
the City to the 5MRC of $381,154. The City does not concur with all the cost items and assumptions used in the calculation and is seeking for 
these to be reviewed. The City’s equity share in the assets of the RRRC will only be adjusted once the amended business plan has been 

accepted by the City and the subsequent impact of the notional winding up on the City’s equity share determined. Further information on 
the City’s withdrawal from the RRRC Project Participants’ Agreement can be found at note 17 (Investment in Joint Venture -SMRC).

Gifting of South Lake Leisure Centre building assets

In May 2016, the City entered into a deed of agreement with the Minister for Education for the decommissioning and surrender of building 
assets associated with the South Lake Leisure Centre located upon land controlled by the Education Department. The deed required the City 
to complete decommissioning works before the Minister would accept vacant possession of the land. The Minister has since issued a 
certificate of practical completion for the woks and taken vacant possession of the land and structures in September 2017. Accordingly, the 

City booked an impairment charge of $3.2M for the WDV of the building assets as at 30 June 2017 (see note 9b).

34. Major land Transactions 

The City did not participate in any major land transactions during the 2016/17 financial year.

35. Trading Undertakings and Major Trading Undertakings

The City did not participate in any trading undertakings or major trading undertakings during the 2016/17 financial year.

36. Trust Funds 

Funds held at balance date over which the City has no control and which are not included in the financial statements are as follows

Opening Balance 1 Closing Balance 30

July 2016 Amounts Received Amounts Paid June 2017

$ $ $ $

Bonds and Deposits 5,761,532 7,354,393 (7,730,812) 5,385,113

Public Open Space 5,845,276 5,845,276

5,761,532 13,199,669 (7,730,812) 11,230,389
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NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL REPORT

Note 37 - Fair Value Measurement

The City of Cockburn measures the following assets at fair value on a recurring basis after 

initial recognition: 
Financial Assets at fair value through profit or loss 

Land and Buildings 
Plant & Machinery 

Computer EqUipment 
Furniture and Equipment 
Roads 

Footpaths 

Drainage 
Landfill Infrastructure 

Parks Equipment

The following table provides the fair values of the City of Cockburn’s assets measured and 

recognized on a recurring basis after initial recognition and their categorization within the fair value 

hierarchy:

Recurring Fair Value Measurements

Non-Financial Assets - 30 June 2017 Note Level 1 ($) Level 2 ($) Level 3 ($) Total ($)

Land 9(b) 82,632,800 82,632,800

Buildings 9(b) 16,300 217,296,560 217,312,860

Furniture and Equipment 9(b) 1,870,689 1,870,689

Computer Equipment 9(b) 598,759 598,759

Plant & Machinery 9(b) 15,302,627 15,302,627

Roads 10(b) 351,679,674 351,679,674

Footpaths 10(b) 41,062,238 41,062,238

Drainage 10(b) 204,129,170 204,129,170

Landfill Infrastructure 10(b) 21,769,439 21,769,439

Parks Equipment 10(b) 46,204,657 46,204,657

Port Coogee Marina Infrastructure 10(b) 51,662,441 51,662,441

Non-Financial Assets - 30 June 2016 Note Level 1 ($) Level 2 ($) Level 3 ($) Total ($)

Land 9(b) 98,010,600 98,010,600
~

Buildings 9(b) 306,458 125,177,694 125,484,152

Furniture and Equipment 9(b) 274,162 274,162

Computer Equipment 9(b) 810,037 810,037
~

Plant & Machinery 9(b) 11,523,089 11,523,089

Roads 10(b) 410,433,627 400,433,627
~

Footpaths 10(b) 40,824,214 40,824,214

Drainage 10(b) 196,855,604 196,855,604
~

Landfill Infrastructure 10(b) 22,823,280 22,823,280

Parks Equipment 10(b) 44,392,917 44,392,917
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37 (a). Transfers Policy

The policy of the City of Cockburn is to recognise transfers into and transfers out of the fair value 

hierarchy levels as at the end of the reporting period. There was a transfer of Level 3 for recurring 
fair value measurements during the year.

37 (b). Highest and Best Use

All assets have been valued at their highest and best use, thai being their current use.

37 (c). Valuation techniques used to derive fair values:

The fair values of financial and non-financial assets that are not traded in an active market are 

determined using valuation techniques These valuation techniques maximise the use of observable data 

where it is available and rely as little as possible on entity specific estimates. If all significant inputs 

required to fair value an asset are observable, the asset is included in level 2. If one or more of the 

significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the asset is included in level 3. This is the case 

for Council specialised buildings assets, which are of a specialist nature and where there is no active 

market for the assets.

The following table summarises the valuation inputs and techniques used to determine the fair value for 

each asset class.

Level of Fair Value at
Valuation

Asset Valuation 30 June 2017
Technique(s)

Inputs Used

Input ($)

Land 2 82,632,800 Market
Price per square metre

Approach

Market
Estimates of residual value, useful life, patternBuildings 2 16,300 Approach
of consumption and asset condition and

217,296,560
Cost relationship to the assessed level 01 remaining

Buildings 3 Approach service potential of the depreciable amount.

Furniture & 

Equipment

3
1,870,689

Cost 

Approach

Estimates of residual value, useful life, 

pattern of consumption and asset condition 

and relationship to the assessed level of 

remaining service potential of the depreciable 
amount

Computers 
& 

Equipment

2
Cost 

Approach
Make, size, year of manufacture and 

condition

598,759

Plant & 

Machinery 2 15,302,627

Market 

Approach
Make, size, year of manufacture and condition

Roads
3 351,679,674

Cost 

Approach

Estimates of residual value, useful 

life, pattern of consumption and 

asset condition and relationShip to 

the assessed level of remaining 
service potential of the depreciable
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Estimates of residual value, useful life,

pattern of consumption and asset condition

Footpaths 3 41,062,238 Cost and relationship to the assessed level of

Approach remaining service potential of the depreciable
amount

Estimates of residual value, useful life,

204,129,170
pattern of consumption and asset condition

Drainage 3 Cost and relationship to the assessed level of

Approach remaining service potential of the depreciable
amount

Estimates of residual value, useful life,

21,769,439
pattern of consumption and asset condition

Landfill 3 Cost and relationship to the assessed level of

Approach remaining service potential of the depreciable
amount

Estimates of residual value, useful life,

46,204,657
pattern of consumption and asset condition

Parks Equipment 3 Cost and relationship to the assessed level of

Approach remaining service potential of the depreciable
amount

Port Coogee 3
51,662,441

Estimates of residual value, useful life,
Marina pattern of consumption and asset condition

Infrastructure Cost and relationship to the assessed level of

Approach remaining service potential of the depreciable
amount

Total
1,034,225,354

Recurring Fair Value Measurements

The City’s land, building and landfill infrastructure assets were revalued as at 30 June 2017 by independent 

valuers AssetVal Pty Ltd. These were valued on the basis that the entity intended to retain these assets for a 

continuous use for the purposes of the enterprise and for the foreseeable future. The Valuer had regard to 

assessing the value of the assets in their existing use and ensuring the highest and best use, noting that the 

current use of an asset is presumed to be its highest and best use unless market or other factors suggest a 

different use would maximise its value.

The following methods were used to determine the fair value measurements.

Land

Where there is an active and liquid market as evidenced by sales transactions of similar property types, a 

Market Approach by way of Direct Comparison or Income methods can be utilised, and are accepted 

valuation methodologies under AASB13. If a Market Approach is adopted, the valuation is deemed to be a 

Level 2 input.

Direct Comparison method which is considered a Level 2 input on the Fair Value Hierarchy, involves the 

analysis of sales evidence and comparisons with the subject land taking into account mailers such as area, 
location and other general site characteristics. We note the Direct Comparison approach has been utilised in 

our assessment for all Land Assets, however the fair value measurement has been either a Level 2 or 3, 

depending on assumptions as to: 
- Whether the land is subject to restrictions as to use and/or sale; 
- Whether there is no active marke\.
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If these assumptions apply to the land, we have measured the expected Fair Value as a Level 3. However if 

an active market could be established and there were no unreasonable restrictions as to use and/or sale, we 

have deemed the measurement to be a Level 2. Land carrying a Community or Park Recreation zoning, land 

that is utilised for Community uses (and not zoned ’Community’), access strips, or due to its general 
characteristics land that has no observable active market, have been assessed as a Level 3.

The valuation techniques used to measure fair value maximised the use of observable data where it was 

available and relied as little as possible on entity specifics. The disclosure of valuation estimates is designed 
to provide users with an insight into the judgements that have been made in the determination of fair values.

For assets valued under Level 3, the unobservable input is the rate per square metre applied to the asset

Buildings

Where there is an active and liquid market as evidenced by sales transactions of similar property types, the 

Market Approach by Direct Comparison, Income or Summation methods can be utilised, and is an accepted 
valuation methodology under AASB13. If a Market Approach is adopted, the building valuation is deemed to 

be a Level 2 input

Direct Comparison and Summation methods involve the analysis of sales evidence and comparisons with the 

subject taking into account matters such as method of construction, size, condition, age, land area and 

location. The land value is subtracted from the Market Value of the property to measure the asset Fair Value.

The Income approach is apphed to income producing properties and includes the capitalisation of net income 

method, or for multi-income stream assets, a discounted cash flow approach The capitalisation method 

involves capltahsing the estimated net Income of the property at an appropriate capltalisallon rate (net yield) 
that has been determined through the analYSIS of sales evidence.

Due to the predominantly speclalised nature of Local Government Assets, most of the buildings valuations 

have been undertaken on a Cost Approach (Depreciated Replacement Cost) valuation, an accepted 
valuation methodology under AASB13. The cost approach is deemed a Level 3 Input Under this approach, 
the following process has been adopted:

. Where there is no depth of market as determined for the Council assets, the net current value of an asset 

is the gross current value less accumulated depreciation to reflect the consumed or expired service 

potential of the asset Published/available market data for recent projects, and/or published cost guides 

are utilised to determine the estimated replacement cost (gross value) of the asset, including allowances 

for preliminaries and professional fees. This is considered a Level 2 input 

. A condition assessment is applied, which is based on factors such as the age of the asset, overall 

condition as noted by the Valuer during inspection, economic and/or functional obsolescence. The 

condition assessment directly translates to the level of depreciation applied. The conditions assessed are 

considered a Level 3 input 

. In determining the level of accumulated depreciation, in some instances residual values have been 

factored into the calculations, which is the value at the time the asset is considered to be no longer 
available. The residual values applied are considered a Level 3 input

While the replacement cost of the assets could be supported by markel supplied evidence (level 2), the other 

unobservable inputs (such as estimates of residual value, useful life, and asset condition) were also required 

(level 3).

Landfill Infrastructure

Where there is an active and liquid markel as eVidenced by sales transactions of similar property types, the 

Market Approach by Direct Comparison, Income or Summation methods can be utilised, and is an accepted 
valualion methodology under AASB 13. If a Market Approach is adopled, the asset valuation is deemed to be 

a Level 2 input 
The Fair Value should represent the highest and best use of the asset, Le. the use of the asset that is 

physically possible, legally permissible, financially feasible, and which results in the highest value. 

Opportunities that are not available to the agency or entity are not considered. In this case we have assumed 

the current use is the highest and best use due to the specialist nature of the assets. 

Due to the predominantly specialised nature of Local Government Assets, the landfill valuations have been 

undertaken on a Cost Approach (Depreciated Replacement Cost), an accepted valuation methodology under 

AASB 13. The cost approach is deemed a Level 3 Input Under this approach, the following process has been 

adopted:
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. Where there IS no depth of market as determined for the Council assets, the net current value of an 

asset is the gross current value less accumulated depreciation to reflect the consumed or expired service 

potential of the asset. Published/available market data for recent projects, and/or published cost gUides 
are utilised to determine the estimated replacement cost (gross value) of the asset, including allowances 

for preliminaries and professional fees This is considered a Level 2 input. 

. A condition assessment is applied, which is based on factors such as the age of the asset, overall 

condition, economic and/or functional obsolescence. The condition assessment directly translates to the 

level of depreciation applied. The conditions assessed are considered a Level 3 input. 

. tn determining the level of accumulated depreciation for major assets, we have dlsaggregated Into 

significant components which exhibit different patterns of consumption (useful lives). Residual value is 

also factored which is the value at the time the asset is considered to be no longer available. The 

condition assessment is applied on a component basis. 

. While the replacement cost of the assets could be supported by market supplied evidence (Ievet 2), the 

other unobservable inputs (such as estimates of residual value, useful life, and asset condition) were 

also required (level 3).

The valuation techniques used in the determination of fair values maximise the use of observable data where 

it is available and relies as little as possible on entity specifics.

The landfill infrastructure assets were segregated into Storage, Monitoring, Water Supply, Fixed Plant, Plant 

& Equipment and Site works; Water supply and Site works assets were further componentized. Unit rates 

and lump sums were applied based on similar recent project costs, unit rate databases, indices, Rawlinson’s 

Construction Handbook and quotations, these rates were reviewed by council staff. Raw Costs were 

increased up to 27% depending on project complexity to allow for project overheads including survey, 
environmental and investigation costs, engineering design, planning and project management.

A site inspection was carried out as part of the valuation process. However none of the sub-surface assets 

were inspected due to their inaccessible nature.

Plant & Machinery, Computer Equipment and Furniture & Equipment

These classes of assets were revalued in June 2016 through a management review in order to comply with 

the mandatory requirements of Reg. 17 A of the Local Government (Financial Management) Regulations. The 

additions since that time are shown at cost and given their level of currency, it is deemed the written down 

values approximate fair values.

Most plant and equipment assets are generally valued using the market and cost approach using 

comparable sales and relevant industry market price reference guides, and have been classified as being 

valued at Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy. The most significant inputs into this valuation approach are the 

make, size, year of manufacture and condition.

Level 3 valuation inputs were used to determine the fair value of the City’s furniture and equipment. The 

valuation methodology was determined having regard to the lack of a market and sales evidence, and the 

level of specialisation of the assets.

Infrastructure Assets (Roads, Footpaths, Drainage, Parks)

In accordance with AASB13 and legislative requirements, the City carried out internal management 

revaluations of its Roads, Footpaths, Drainage, Parks/Environment, Signs, and Lighting & Fences 

infrastructure assets as at 30 June 2017. These valuations were completed using the Cost Approach 

(Depreciated Replacement Cost), an accepted valuation methodology under AASB13. The cost approach is 

deemed a Level 3 Input.

The valuations were coordinated, developed and prepared in-house and formed by establishing unit rates for 

infrastructure replacement that consider labour, overhead costs and materials.

The unit rates are agreed by reviewing multiple sources as outlined below:

. Current contract rates from the City of Cockburn’s contract management system. 

. Rawlinsons Australian Construction Handbook 2014. 

. Internal knowledge from key operational stakeholders.
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. Current charge out rates for Internat tabour activities

The Condition profile of the City’s infrastructure assets is measured using a 1 to 5 rating This rating affecls 

the remaining life of the asset and has been considered In preparing the valuations.

Road surface and footpath data IS considered to have an accuracy level of 95% and all roads and footpaths 
have been segmented from intersection to intersection. The data recorded against each section includes 

surface area, surface type, date of construction and condition. The City undertook a full road surface and 

footpath condition assessment audit with Opus during late 2016.

Data is held for all storm water drainage assets including pits, pipes and sumps, and the pit type, pipe 
material and length and sump size and material. Where the construction year is unknown, this was assumed 

to be the same year as the road construction date. The data held for the storm water infrastructure is 

considered to have 85% accuracy. To improve this accuracy level and to validate the City’s database an 

audit of the City’s pits and pipes storm water assets was commissioned in 2013 and was completed within 

two years. A condition assessment audit of the entire sump fencing was undertaken in 2012 by the Asset 

Services team, which also clarified any uncertainty of the material types. Sump fencing was included in the 

revaluation of Fences.

Parks & Environment Hard infrastructure data is currently considered to have an accuracy level of 95% and 

Signs, lighting & fences infrastructure data is currently considered to have an accuracy level of 90% and is 

held in the operational asset register. A full data pick up of all park and environment assets was undertaken 

in August 2012 (parks) and March 2013 (environment) by Opus. All assets were condition rated and 

documented on an individual asset basis (e.g. a single park bench) and each has been given a unique asset 

number. This data is recorded in the operational asset register.

The rates used for the Parks data were obtained from Parks Service unit. When newly constructed assets 

were considered the actual construction rates were used.

37 (d) Disclosed Fair Value Measurements

The following assets and liabilities are not measured at fair value in the statement of financial position, but 

their fair values are discloses in the notes:

- Borrowings 
The following table provides the level of fair value hierarchy within which the disclosed fair value 

measurements are categorised in their entirety and a description of the valuation technique(s) and 

inputs used:

Description Note Fair Value Valuation Inputs Used

Hierarchy Technique(s)
Level

~

Liabilities
~ +

Borrowings 12(b) 2 Income Current commercial

approach using borrowing rates for

discounted similar instruments

cash flow

methodology

There has been no change in the valuation technique(s) used to calculate the fair values disclosed in the 

notes to the financial statements.
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NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL REPORT

38. Related Party Transaction

Key Management Personnel (KMP) Compensation Disclosure

Actual 

2016/17

The total of remuneration paid to KMP of the City during the 

year are as follows:

Short-term employee benefits 

Post-employment benefits 

Other long-term benefits

1,790,243 

159,432 

(69,663)

1,880,012

Short-Term Employee Benefits

These amounts include all salary, paid leave, fringe benefits and cash bonuses awarded to KMP. Details in respect to 

fees and benefits paid to elected members may be found at note 31.

Post-Employment Benefits 

These amounts are the current-year’s estimated cost of providing for the City’s superannuation contributions made 

during the year.

Other Long-Term Benefits 

These amounts represent long service benefits accruing during the year.

Related Parties 

The City’s main related parties are as follows: 

i. Key Management Personnel

Any person(s) having authority and responsibility for planning, direct and controlling the activities of the entity, directly 

or indirectly, including any elected member, are considered key management personnel.

ii. Enllties Subject to Significant Influence by the City

An entity that has the power to participate in the financial and operating policy decisions of an entity, but does not 

have control over those policies, is an entity which holds significant influence. Significant influence may be gained by 

share ownership, statute or agreement.

iii. Joint Venture Arrangements Accounted for Under the Equity Method

The City has a one-third interest in an environmental health and building survey service. The interest in the joint 

venture arrangements is accounted for in these financial statements using the equity method of accounting. For details 

of interests held in joint venture arrangements, refer to Note 17.
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38. Related Party Transaction

Transactions with Related Parties

Transactions between related parties are on normal commercial terms and conditions no more favourable than those 

available to other parties unless otherwise stated. The following transactions occurred with related parties:

Actual 

2016/17

Associated Companies/Individuals: 

Sale of goods and services 

Purchase of goods and services

Joint Venture Entities: 

Distributions received from joint venture entities 6,592,991

Amounts Outstandine from Related Parties: 

Trade and other receivables 

Loans to associated entities 

Loans to key management personnel

Amounts Payable to Related Parties: 

Trade and other payables 

Loans from associated entities

Note: Transitional provisions contained within AASB 2015-6 do not require comparative related party disclosures to be 

presented in the period of intiial application. As a consequence, only disclosures in relation to the current year have 

been presented.
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NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL REPORT

39. Opening & Closing Funds used in the Rate Setting Statement 

2016/17 2016/17 

(30 June 2016 (30 June 2016 

Carried Forward) Broucht Forward)

2015/16 

(30 June 2015 

Carried Forward)

$ $ $

Surplus/(Deficit) - Rate Settine Statement 6,643,985 9,267,511 9,267,511

151,554,000 151,554,000

13,656,877 13,656,877

715,996 715,996

41,102 41,102

165,967,975 165,967,975

(23,605,924) (23,605,924)

(5,425,888) (5,425,888)

(29,031,812) (29,031,812)

136,936,162 136,936,162

(120,348,780) (120,348,780)

(5,761,532) (5,761,532)

(6,251,177) (6,251,177)

(132,361,489) (132,361,489)

Comprises: 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Financial Assets - Current 

Trade & Other Receivables 

Other Assets 

Inventories

115,396,082 

3,841,492 

6,894,909 

911,565 

21,782 

127,065,830

less: 

Trade & Other Payables 

Provisions

(9,381,006) 

(6,596,413) 

(15,977,419)

Net Current Assets 111,088,411

less: 

Restricted Financial Assets - Reserve Funds 

Land Held for Re-sale 

Restricted Financial Assets - Deposits & Bonds 

Committed Financial Assets (unspent grants & 

contributions)

(97,962,610)

(7,560,460) 

(105,523,070)

Add: 

Restricted Financial Assets held in Non Current 

Investments 1,078,644 4,692,838 4,692,838

Surplus/(Oeficit) 6,643,985 9,267,511 9,267,511

Difference:

There was no difference between the Surplusj(Deficit) 1 July 2016 Brought Forward position used in the 2017 audited 

financial report and the Surplusj(Deficit) Carried Forward position as disclosed in the 2016 audited financial report.

Ia=~ I 141 of 174

Version: 4, Version Date: 20/04/2022
Document Set ID: 6859306



Item 14.1 Attachment 2 ASFC 16/11/2017

Statement of Comprehensive Income

by Nature or Type
for the Year Ended 30 June 2017

Actual Budget Actual

2016/17 2016/17 2015/16

$ S S

OPERATING REVENUE

Rates 96.337.163 95,700.000 91.311.030

Specified Area Rates 312.936 330,000 341.727

Fees and Charges 22.353.295 24.368.500 22.072.981

Service Charges 440.700 450,000 1.066,477

Operating Grants and Subsidies 13.752.463 9,357.649 8.057,274

Contributions, Donations and Reimbursements 1.203.429 638.665 1.372.307

Interest Earnings 5.157.532 4.772.036 5.678.901

Total Oper.Une Revenue 139,557,517 135,616,850 129,900,696

OPERATING EXPENDITURE

Em ployee Cost (52,132,049) (48.822,391) (47,084,154)

Materials and Contracts (37,709,273) (38.979.850) (34,865,658)

Utilities (4,748,358) (4.684.525) (4,363,875)

Interest Expenses (966,490) (930,000) (85,602)

Insurances (2.444,985) (7,244,048) (2,223.550)

Other Expenses (7,810.268) (7,328,893) (7,976,582)

Depreciation on Non Current Assets (27,465.498) (26.353,614) (23,790.540)

Finance Cost (490.620)

Amortisation on Landfill Infrastructure (1,391.018) (1,191,132) (1,064,912)

Total Operatine Expenditure (135,158,559) (130,534,453 ) (121,454,871)

Incr..se/(Decr....) 4,398,958 5,082,396 8,445,825

NON-OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Non-Operating Grants, Subsidies and Contributions 11,063,443 23,245,184 23,618,162

Developers Contributions Plans: Cash 5,631,840 11.721,922 9.220,108

Gifted Subdivision Assets 62,676,020 13.128,414

Increase/(Decrease) In Equity - Joint Venture 499.833 (2,344,579)

Increase/(Decrease) in lG House Trust (2,718) (16,582)

Assets Gifted to Other Parties (14,566,385) (610,366)

Impairment Charge - Buildings (3,200,000)

Profit on Sale of Assets 5,684.213 14,650 364.400

Loss on Sale of Assets (271.825) (121.241)

Total Non-Operatine Activities 67,514,422 34.981,756 43,238,316

NET RESULT 71,913,380 40,064,152 51,684,141

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or 10$1

Changes on revaluation of non-current assets (71.904,359) 7,190,450

Total Other Comprehensive Income (71,904,359) 7,190,450

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 9,021 40,064,152 58,874,591
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Statement of Comprehensive Income

by program
Actual Budget Actual

For the year ended 30 June 2017 2016/17 2016/17 2015/16

$ S S

REVENUES

Revenue From Ordinary Activities

General Purpose Funding 108,691,413 105,371,974 100,301,439

Governance 165,070 131.550 231,074

Law Order & Public Safety 999,756 803,944 962,430

Health 336,647 260,500 309,815

Education & Welfare 8,886,134 6.417,260 7,049,298

Community Amenities 9,937,578 11,717,236 11,875,672

Recreation & Culture 4,300,089 5.018,140 4,101,359

Transport 219,702 315,000 522,125

Economic Services 2,045,897 2,325,503 2,120,142

Other Property & Services 3,975,230 3,255,743 2,427,343

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES 139,557,517 135,616,850 129,900,696

EXPENSES

General Purpose funding (1,854,910) (1,569,505) (1,165,505)

Governance (9,950,052) (11,445,157) (10,153,011)

law Order & Public Safety (6,335,833) (6,460,903) (6,004,215)

Health (2,340,611) (2.466,674) (2,454,667)

Education & Welfare (15,231,102) (13,138,099) (13,218,316)

Community Amenities (33,210,050) (33,631,070) (30,160,766)

Recreation & Culture (33,531,641) (30,634,527) (28,531,696)

Transport (26,399,596) (26,567,806) (25.497.265)

Economic Services (2,618,309) (2.564,698) (2,504.795)

Other Property & Services (3,686,454) (2,056,014) (1,754,625)

Totlll OperJltinc Expenditur. (135,158,559) (130,S34,453) (121,454,871)

Increase/(Oecrease) 4,398,958 5,082,396 8,445,82S

NON-OPERATING GRANTS/CONTRIBUTIONS TOWARDS ASSETS: CASH

General Purpose Funding 4,136,093 85,557 89,267

Governance 2,082,135 18,079,999 17,437,563

law Order & Public Safety 706,195 117,897

Education & Welfare 200,000 23.640

Community Amenities (5,433,663) 603.645

Recreation & Culture 930,356 4,154,220 199.633

Transport 10,272,804 3.805,408 5,115.016

Economic Services

Other Property & Services 3,801,362 8,841,922 9,251.608

16,69S,283 34,967,106 32,838,270

Gifted Subdivision Assets 62,676,020 13,128.414

Assets Gifted to Other Parties (14,566,385) (610,366)

Increase/(Decreaselln Equity. Joint Venture 499,833 (2,344,579)

lncrease/(Decreasel in LG House Trust (2.718) (16,582)

Impairment Charge. Buildings (3,200,000)

PROFIT /(LOSS) ON DISPOSAL OF ASSETS

Law Order & Public Safety 30,625

Education & Welfare 31,800 12,000 42,300

Recreation & Culture (271,825) (90,767)

Transport 309,263 32,150 283,348

Other Property & Services 5,312,525 (29,500) 8,278

S,412,388 14,6S0 243,160

NET RESULT 71,913,380 40,064,152 S1,684,141

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

It.m~ that will not ~ ,.c/auifl.d subs.qu.ntly to proJit or 10$$

Changes on revaluation of non-current assets (71,904,359) 7,190,450

Tot~1 Oth.r Comprehensive: Income (71,904,3S9) 7,190,450

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 9,021 40,064,152 58,874,591
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Statement of Financial Position

Actual Budget Actual

As at 30 June 2017 2016/17 2016/17 2015/16

$ S S

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash and Cash Equivalents 115,396,082 114,885,061 151.554,000

Financial Assets - Current 3,841,492

Trade & Other Receivables 6,894,909 7,033,800 13,656,877

Other Assets 911,565 65,000 715,996

Inventories 21,782 13,700 41,102

Total Current Assets 127,065,830 121. 997 ,561 165,967,975

NON CURRENT ASSETS

Financial Assets - Non Current 1.202,453 4,813,070 4,819,364

Interests In Joint Ventures 6,592,991 8,437,737 6,093,158

Trade & Other Receivables 858,657 630,000 738,851

Property, Plant and Equipment 328,223,270 351,112,618 311,375,336

Infrastructure 740,089,224 714,640,302 736,216,337

Rehabilitation Assets 16,211,653 16,517,533

Total Non Current Assets 1,093,178,248 1,079,633,727 1,075,760,579

TOTAL ASSETS 1,220,244,078 1,201,631,288 1,241,728,554

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Trade & Other Payables 9,381,006 2,225,000 23,605,924

Borrowings 2,500,000 2,597,175 2,593,138

Provisions 6,596,413 2,000,000 5,425,888

Total Current liabilities 18,477,419 6,822,175 31,624,950

NON CURRENT LIABILITIES

Other payables 6,329,512 5,761,532

Borrowings 20,000,000 20,552,860 23,150,036

Provisions 18,957,592 6,544,855 18,391,990

Total Non Current Liabilities 38,957,592 33,427,227 47,303,558

TOTAL LIABILITIES 57,435,012 40,249,402 78,928,508

NET ASSETS 1,162,809,067 1,161,381,886 1,162,800,045

EQUITY

Accumulated Surplus 553,757,996 477,327,907 460,767,729

Reserves - Cash/Investment Backed 105,523,070 115,812,070 126,599,957

Revaluation Surplus 503,528,001 568,241,909 575,432,360

TOTAL EQUITY 1,162,809,067 1,161,381,886 1,162,800,045
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Statement of Changes in Equity
Actu.1 Budget Actual

For th. y..r .nd.d 30 Jun. 2017 2016/17 2016/17 2015/16

$ S S

RESERVES CASH/INVESTMENT BACKED

Balance at beginning of year 126,599,957 124,078,024 107,073,767

Transfer from accumulated surplus 61,219,722 44,411,004 68,342,790

Transfer to accumulated surplus (82,296,608) (52,676,958) (48,816,600)

Balance at end of reporting period 105,523,070 115,812,070 126,599,957

REVALUATION SURPLUS

Balance at beginning of year 575,432,360 568,241,909 568,241.909

Revaluation Increments during year 7,966,579 15,359,080

Revaluation Decrements during year (79,870,938) (8,168,629)

Balance at end of reporting period 503,528,001 568,241,909 575,432,360

ACCUMULATED SURPLUS

Balance at beginning of year 460,767,729 428,997,800 428,609,779

Net result 71,913,380 40,064,152 51,684,141

Transfer from reserves 82,296,608 52,676,958 48,816,412

Transfer to reserves (61.219,722) (44,411.004) (68,342,602)

Balance at end of reporting period 553,757,996 477,327,907 460,767,729

TOTAL EQUITY 1,162,809,067 1,161,381,886 1,162,800,045
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Statement of Cash Flows

Actual Budget Actual

For the year ended 30 June 2017 2016/17 2016/17 2015/16

$ S $

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Payments

Employee Cost (50,B86,542) (48.822.391) (46.236,902)

Materials and Contracts (51,794,610) (47.479.850) (20.127.926)

Utilities (4,748,358) (4,684,525) (4,363,875)

Interest Paid (966,490) (930.000) (85.602)

Insurances (2.444,985) (2,244.048) (2,223,550)

Other Expenses (7,810,268) (7,328.893) (7.976.582)

GST on Payments (13,367,790) (10.657.073)

(132,019,043) (111.489.707) (91,671,509)

Receipts

Rates & Special Area Rates 96,076,683 96,030,000 90,889,316

Fees and Charges 27,947,790 27.368.500 16.128,057

Service Charges 440,700 450,000 1,066,477

Contributions, Donations and Reimbursements 1.203,429 638,665 1,372.307

Interest Received 4,882,964 4.772.036 5,438,875

Grants & Subsidies. Operating 13,752,463 9.857.649 8.057,274

Other Revenue/Income 597.526

GST on Receipts 3,648,584 2,973,834

GST Refunded by ATO 10,426.932 5.000.000 6,786,736

158,977,070 144,116,850 132,712.876

NET CASH flOWS PROVIDED BY/(USED IN) OPERATING
26,958,027 32,627,142 41,04l,367

ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from Sale on Non Current Assets 12,503.975 1,264,650 3,471,651

Purchase Furniture and Equipment (1,758,457) (33,808) (6,105)

Purchase Computer Equipment (943.781) (484.800) (294.621)

Purchase & Construction 01 Infrastructure Assets (23.927.732) (19,767,538) (13,016,993)

Purchase Plant and Machinery (7,925,137) (5.791.000) (3.537,490)

Purchase & Development of land (836.966) (428,871)

Purchase & Construction of Buildings (33,399,309) (58,655,520) (60,055,961)

Capital Grants, Subsidies & Contributions 11,110,713

Developer Contribution. Cash 5,631,840

Assets Gifted to Other Parties (14,566,385) (610,366)

NET CASH flOWS PROVIDED BY/(USED IN) INVESTING
(54,111,239) (83,468,016) (41,640,486)

ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Net receipts/(refund) of bonds (5,761,532) (441,622)

Loan Principal Repayment (3.243,174) (2,593,138) 23,576,680

NET CASH flOWS PROVIDED BY/(USED IN) FINANCING
(9,004,706) (2,593,138) 23,13S,058

ACTIVITIES

Net Increase/(Decrease) In Cash during year (36.157.918) (18,466.906) 22,535,939

Cash & Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Reporting Period 151,554,000 133,351,966 129,018,060

CASH & CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF REPORTING PERIOD 115,396,082 114,885,061 151,554,000
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1. Executive Summary

Under the requirements of Australian Auditing Standard ASA 260: "Communication with Those 

Charged with Governance", we are required to communicate audit matters arising from the audit of 

financial statements to those charged with governance of an entity. This Annual Audit Completion 

Report together with our previous External Audit Plan discharges the requirements of the Auditing 

Standard

This report has been prepared for the Council via its Audit Committee to summarise the significant 

matters that have arisen from our year-end audit of the City of Cockburn for the year ended 30 June 

2017.

1.1 Status of Audit

Our audit field work at the City of Cockburn for the financial year ended 30 June 2017 has been 

completed.

Before our Independent Auditor’s Report is signed off and issued to the Council, the following 

outstanding matter is required to be attended to:

. Completion of audit procedures relating to Auditing Standard ASA 560 Subsequent Events to 

be performed up to the date of signing the Independent Auditor’s Report.

1.2 Dellverables

External Audit Plan 22 June 2017

Interim Audit Management Letter 28 June 2017

Present the Audit Completion Report to the 

Audit Committee

16 November 2017

Provide Independent Auditor’s Report on the 

Financial Report

After recommendation of Financial Report by the 

Audit Committee
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2. Financial Statements and Audit Opinion

Audit Opinion

We have completed the audit of the City of Cockburn’s accounts in line with current Australian 

Auditing Standards and will give an Unqualified Opinion [subject to subsequent events procedures] 

that the financial report of the City of Cockburn

(a) gives a true and fair view of the financial position of the City of Cockburn as at 30 June 2017 

and of its financial performance for the year ended on that date; and

(b) complies with the Local Government Act 1995 (as amended), the Local Government (Financial 

Management) Regulations 1996 (as amended) and the Australian Accounting Standards.

Refer to Appendix 1 for our Proposed Draft Independent Auditor’s Report

3. Current Year Areas of Audit Focus

Our audit procedures were focused on those areas of City of Cockburn’s activities that are considered 

to represent the key audit risks identified in our external audit plan and through discussions with 

management during the course of our audit.

Revaluation of Land and 

Buildings

Regulation 17A(4) of the LG (Financial Management) Regulations 

1996 requires Land and Building assets to be measured at fair 

value for the year ending 30 June 2017. The City of Cockburn’s 

Land and Buildings asset classes were revalued at fair value by 

external valuers, AssetVal at 30 June 2017.

Audit evaluated the professional competence and objectivity of the 

expert and the adequacy of the scope of the expert’s work. We are 

satisfied that the expert is suitably independent of the Council, 

objective and experienced in undertaking this work.

Audit procedures tested capital asset additions on a sample basis 

for accuracy to supporting documentation. Audit also reviewed the 

basis of the asset valuations (at fair value) undertaken and 

considered the judgements, assumptions and data used together 

with the reasonableness of any estimation techniques applied. 

Asset reconciliation schedules were verified against trial balance 

reported amounts.

We have relied upon the values adopted by the external valuers.

Results of the audit procedures conducted did not note any 

material misstatement of the land and building asset classes.
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2 Revaluation of Roads, The Refuse Site Infrastructure and Marina Infrastructure asset

Drainage, Footpaths, classes were valued by external valuers AssetVal at 30 June 2017.

Parks Equipment, Refuse

Site Infrastructure and City of Cockburn also carried out an internal valuation of Roads,

Marina Infrastructure. Drainage, Footpath and Park Equipment asset classes at 30 June

2017.

Audit procedures tested capital asset additions on a sample basis

for accuracy to supporting documentation. Audit also reviewed the

basis of the asset valualions (at fair value) undertaken and

considered the Judgements, assumptions and data used together

with the reasonableness of any estimation techniques applied.

Asset reconciliation schedules were verified against trial balance

reported amounts.

We have relied upon the values adopted by the management.

Results of the audit procedures conducted did not note any

material misstatement of the infrastructure asset classes.

3 Revenue Recognition Accounting Standards for Revenue and Contributions recognition

prevent Councils from recording unexpended untied grants as a

liability instead of revenue (grants and contributions received In

advance)

Audit procedures included substantiation and verification of cut -

off procedures and assessment of whether treatment of revenue is

consistent with Accounting Standards AASB 118 Revenue and

AASB 1004 Contributions.

Audit procedures included discussions with management, review

4 Contingent Liabilities of council minutes and solicitor’s representation lelters to identify

the possible existence of contingencies which may require

disclosure in the financial statements.

At this date, we are satisfied with the current disclosure in the

financial report.

5 Related Party Disclosures AASB 12015-6 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards-

Extends Related Party Disclosures to Not - for - Profit Public

Sector Entities. The objective of this Standard was to extend the

scope of AASB 124 Related Party Disclosures to include not - for-

profit sector entities.

Audit Procedures included discussions with Management and

review of supporting documentation in this regards.

At this date, we are satisfied with the current disclosure in the

financial report.

We are satisfied that these key areas of focus have been addressed appropriately based on our audit 

procedures and are properly reflected in the City of Cockburn’s financial report.
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4. Assessment of Internal Controls

Our interim phase of the audit indicated that the current internal control systems and processes are 

reasonable. They are designed adequately for City of Cockburn’s current business operations.

However, a separate Interim Audit Management Letter has been provideGl to management following 

our interim audit which provides details of the internal control and compliance matters raised.

Our follow up indicates that the management comments for the interim audit visit conducted during 

the financial year ended 30 June 2017 have been fully implemented.

5. Key Findings During Final Phase of Audit

During our audit planning procedures and risk identification process, we identified a number of key 

focus areas as outlined in Section 3 above. In addition, during the course of our year-end fieldwork, 

other accounting and audit issue was noted. Our consideration of this matter is set out below.

We request that the Audit Committee review the matter below and satisfy themselves that:

. there are no other mailers of which you are aware that would impact these issues; 

. there are no other significant issues that ought to be considered before recommending the 

adoption of the financial statements to the Council; and 

. you concur with the resolution of the issue as described below.

Given the significant work undertaken in the revaluation of the City of Cockburn’s Land and 

BUildings, Roads, Drainage, Footpaths, Park EqUipment, Refuse Site Infrastructure and Manna 

Infrastructure assets during the financial year ended 30 June 2017, we recommend that Asset 

Management Plans for each asset class be reviewed and updated with the most recently 

acquired data collected to ensure all future projections of required capital maintenance and 

upgrades remain reliable for strategic decision making purposes.

Updated projections from the Asset Management Plans should be factored into the City of 

Cockburn’s Long Term Financial Plan estimates to ensure appropriate planning for future 

funding requirements are appropriately planned for and known.
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6. Specific Required Communications

The Australian Auditing Standard ASA 260 "Communication wIth Those Charged wIth Governance" 

requires the auditor to communicate certain matters to the Audit Committee that may assist them in 

overseeing management’s financial reporting and disclosure process. Below we summarise these 

required communications as they apply to your organisation.

Reporting Requirement Detaited Comments

Changes to Audit Approach .,. There were no changes to the audit approach outlined in the

Outlined in External Audit Plan External Audit Plan.

Significant accounting policies ).- Management is responsible for the selection and use of

appropriate accounting policies. The significant accounting

policies used by the City of Cockburn including new

pronouncements adopted during the year, are described in

Note 1 to the financial statements.

;- There were no significant changes in the application of existing

policies during the year ended 30 June 2017. The accounting

policies adopted in the financial statements are appropriately
disclosed.

Sensitive Accounting Estimates Refer to "Current Year of Audit Focus" section

and Disclosures

Misstatements and Significant :.- We are required to report to you all unadjusted misstatements

audit adjustments which we have identified dUring the course of our audit, other

than those of a trivial nature In the context of the City of

Cockburn, we consider that amounts of a value less than

$135,000 should be considered triVial ThiS represents 5% of

materiality.

;- A few disclosure adjustments to the financial statements have

been discussed and amended during the course of our audit

;- A few financial adjustments have been raised through our audit

work which have been dealt With to our sallsfaction.

Significant Weaknesses in :;.. No significant weaknesses in internal control were identified.

Internal Controls Refer to our Interim Audit Management Leiter.

Disagreements with management }oo There have been no significant disagreements with

management during the course of the audit.

Serious Difficulties Encountered , There were no serious difficulties encountered in dealing with,

in Dealing with Management management when performing the audit.

when Performing the Audit such

as:
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. Significant delays in

management providing

required information

. An unnecessarily brief time

within which to complete the

audit

. Extensive unexpected effort

required to obtain sufficient

appropriate audit evidence

. The unavailability of expected
information

. Restrictions imposed on the
auditor by management

Fraud and Illegal Acts r We are not aware of any matters that require communication.

" We would request that the Audit Committee members raise

with us any areas of risk not addressed in our communications

and that they inform us of their knowledge of any actual or

suspected fraud.

Compliance with laws and > In performing our audit procedures, we have not become

regulations aware of any non-compliance with applicable laws or

regulations that would have an impact on the determination of

material amounts and disclosures in the financial report.

> We have also received representations from management

confirming that the Council is in compliance with all laws and

regulations that impact the Council.

Books and records and conduct of > We have been presented with all the necessary books and

the audit explanations requested of management to support the

amounts and disclosures contained in the financial statements

in a timely and efficient manner.

Other Information in Documents > Our financial statement audit opinion relates only to the

Containing Audited Financial financial statements and accompanying notes.

Statements

> However, we also review other information in the Annual

Report, such as Management’s Discussion and Analysis, for

consistency with the audited financial statements Once the

annual report is prepared and provided to us, we will review

the Annual Report for consistency between the audited

financial statements and other sections of that document

Related Party Transactions > None of which we are aware other than what is disclosed in

Note 38 to the financial statements.

Major Issues Discussed with
, None.,

Management in Connection with

Initial or Recurring Retention
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,. As part of our audit, we have assessed and agreed with the

Going concern conclusions reached by the management concerning the

application of the going concern concept.

Independence ~ We confirm that, as the date of this report, we are independent

having regard to Macri Partners’ policies, professional rules

and relevant statutory requirements regarding auditor

independence.

~ During the year ended 30 June 2017, Macri Partners has not

provided any non-audit services to the City of Cockburn.

7. Disclaimer

This report has been prepared for the Audit Committee and management of City of Cockburn only. It 

should not be quoted or referred to, in whole or in part, without our prior written consent. No warranty 

is given to, and no liability will be accepted from, any party other than the City of Cockburn.
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8. Appendix 1 - Proposed Audit Opinion

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO: RATEPAYERS OF CITY OF COCKBURN

Report on the Financial Report

Opinion

We have audited the flllancial repolt of City of Cockburn (the Council), which comprises the Statement 

of Financial position as at 30 June 2017, the Statement of Comprehensive Income by Nature or Type, 
Statement of Comprehensive Income by Program, Statement of Changes in Equity. Statement of Cash 

Flows and Rate Setting Statement for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting 

policies and other explanatOly information and Statement by Chief Executive Officer.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial report of the City of Cockburn is in accordance with the 

Local GOl’ernmel1f Act 1995 (as amended), including:

(c) giving a tme and fair view of the financial position of the City of Cockburn as at 30 June 2017 

and of its financial perfol1nance for the year then ended: and

(d) complying with the Australian Accounting Standards (including Australian Accounting 

illterpretations) and the Local Gorernl/lent (Financial Management) Reglllations 1996 (as 
amended).

Report on Other Legal and Regulatol’y Requirements

In accordance with the Local Government (Audit) Reglllations 1996. we also report that:

(a) There are no matters that in our opinion indicate significant adverse trends in the financial position 
or financial management practices of the Council.

(b) There are no other matters indicating non-compliance with Part 6 of the Local G01’ernment Act 

1995 (as amended), the Local GOl’ernlllenf (Financial Managelllent) Regulations 1996 (as 

amended) or applicable financial controls of any other wlitten law noted during the course of our 

audit.

(c) In relation to the asset consumption ratio and asset renewal flIDding ratio (presented at Note 21 of 

the armual financial report) we have reviewed the calculations as presented and nothing has come 

to our attention to suggest they are not:

(i) reasonably calculated: and 

(ii) based on verifiable inf0l111ation.

(d) Allnecessruy inf01mation and explanations were obtained by us.

( e) All audit procedures were satisfactorily completed in conducting our audit.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (Cont’d)

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. Our responsibilities under 

those standards are fmther described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial 

Report section of our rep0l1. We are independent of the Council in accordance with the auditor 

independence and ethical requirements of the Accounting Professional and Ethical Standards Board’s 

APES 110: Code of Ethics for Pl"Ofessional Accou/lta/lts (the Code) that are relevant to our audit of the 

financial repolt in Australia. We have also fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with 

the Code.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 

our opinion.

Information Othu than the Financial Report and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The management is responsible for the other infollnation. The other information comprises the 

il ollnation included in the Council’s annual rep0l1 for the year ended 30 June 2017, but does not illclude 

the fmancial repOlt and our auditor’s report thereon. Our opinion on the financial report does not cover 

the other information and accordingly we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. In 

cOlmection with om’ audit of the financial rep0l1, our responsibility is to read t.he other inf0111lation and, in 

doing so, consider \....hether the other inf0111lation is materially inconsistent with the financial rep0l1 or our 

knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on Ule work we 

have perfollned, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information: we are 

required to repol1 that fact. We have nothing to report ill this regard.

Responsibilities of the Management fOI’ the Financial Report

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial report that gives a 

true and fair view in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards, the Local Governlllent Act J 995 

(as amended) and the Local GOl’ernlllent (FinanclOl Managelllent) Regulations 1996 (as amended) and for 

such internal controls as management determines is necessaly to enable the preparation of the fmancial 

repol1 that gives a true and fair view and is free from material misstatement, whether due to fi’aud or 

ell’or.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Repol’t

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial rep0l1 as a whole is fi’ee 

from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes 

our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee Ulat an audit 

conducted in accordance with the Australian Auditing Standards will always detect a material 

misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or elTor and are considered material if, 

individually or in the aggTegate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of 

users taken on Ule basis ofUlis fmancial rep0l1.

As part of an audit in accordance with the Australian Auditing Standards, we exercise professional 

judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:
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. Identify and assess the risks of materialmisstatemellt of the fl11ancial repOlt, whether due to fraud or 

elTor, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those lisks, and obtain audit evidence that is 

sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material 

misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from enol’, as fi.aud may involve 

collusion, forgely, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the ovelTide of illtemal control.

. Obtain an understanding of intemal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures 
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but nol for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 

effectiveness of tile Council’s internal control.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 
estimates and related disclosures made by the management.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial report, including the 

disclosures, and whether the financial report represents the underlying transactions and events in a 

manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the management regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and tinung of 

the audit and significant audit findings. including any sigtuficant deficiencies in intemal control that we 

identify during our audit.

Matters Relating to the Electronic Publication of the Audited Financial Report

This auditor’s report relates to the financial repOlt of the City of Cockbul’D for tlle year ended 30 JlUle 

2017 included on the Council’s website. Management is responsible for the integrity of the Council’s 

website. The auditor’s rep0l1 refers only to the subject matter described above. It does not provide an 

opinion on any other infonnation which may have been hyperlinked to/from these statements. If users of 

the fmancial report are concerned with the inherent risks arising from publication on a website, they are 

advised to refer to the hard copy of the audited financial report to confinn the infol111ation contained in 

tlus website version of the financial repOlt.

A MACRI 

PARTNER

MACRI PARTNERS 

CERTIFIED PRACTISING ACCOUNTANTS 

SUITE 2, 137 BURSWOOD ROAD 

BURSWOOD WA 6100

PERTH 

DATED THIS 16TH DAY OF NOVEMBER 2017.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO: THE RATEPAYERS OF CITY OF COCKBURN

Report on the Summary Financial Statements

Opinion

The summary financial statements, which comprise the Statement of Financial Position as at 

30 June 2017, Statement of Comprehensive Income by Nature or Type, Statement of 

Comprehensive Income by Program, Statement of Changes in Equity and Statement of Cash 

Flows for the year then ended are derived fi’om the audited financial repOlt of City of 

Cockbum for the year ended 30 June 2017.

In our opinion, the accompanying summary financial statements of City of Cockbum for 

the year ended 30 June 2017 is consistent, in all material respects, with the audited financial 

repOlt, in accordance with AASB 1039: Sl/lIIlIIary Financial Slatell/ents.

Summary Financial Statements

The summary financial statements do not contain all the disclosures required by Australian 

Accounting Standards applied in the preparation of the audited fmancial repOlt of City of 

Cockblll’O. Reading the sunullary fmancial statements and the auditor’s repOlt thereon, 

therefore, is not a substitute for reading the audited financial report and the auditor’s repOlt 
thereon. The summary financial statements and the audited financial report do not reflect the 

effects of events that occurred subsequent to the date of our repOlt on the audited financial 

repOlt.

Indepelldence

In conducting our audit, we have complied with the independence and ethical requirements 
of the Accounting Professional and Ethical Standards Boru’d’s APES 110: Code of Ethics for 

Professiol/al Aceol/lltants that are relevant to our audit of the summary fmancial statements 

in Australia.

Tile Alldited Financial Report and Ollr Report Thereon

We expressed an unmodified audit opinion on the audited financial report in our repolt dated 

16th November 2017. That repolt also includes the communication of key audit matters. Key 
audit matters ru’e those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most 

significance in our audit of the financial report of the current period.
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Management’s Responsibility for tile Summary Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the summary 
financial statements in accordance with Accounting Standard AASB 1039: SUII/1/Iary 
Financial STatements, the Local GOl’ernl11ent Act 1995 (as amended) and the Local 

GOl’ern/lle/lt (Financial Managelllenr) Regulations 1996 (as amended). This responsibility 
includes establishing and maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation of the 

summary flllancial statements; selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and 

making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

Auditor’s Respo1lsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on whether the summary financial statements is 

consistent, in all material respects, with the audited fmancial report based on our procedures, 
which were conducted in accordance with Auditing Standard ASA 810: Engagements to 

Report on SlII/11/1ary Financial Statelllents.

Matters Relating to tile Electronic Publication oftlte AlIdited Financial Statements

This auditor’s report relates to the summary financial statements of City of Cockbul"D for 

the year ended 30 June 2017 included on City of Cockbul"D’ website. The Council is 

responsible for the integrity of City of Cockbul"D’ website. Tbe auditor’s repoJ1 refers only 
to the subject matter described above. It does not provide an opinion on any other 

infomlation which may have been hyperlinked to/from these statements. If users of the 

financial statements are concerned with the inherent risks arising liOl11 publication on a 

website, they are advised to refer to the hard copy of the audited summary financial 

statements to confum the infonnation contained in this website version of the summary 

financial statements.

MACRI PARTNERS 

CERTIFIED PRACTISING ACCOUNTANTS 

SUITE 2, 137 BURSWOOD ROAD 

BURSWOOD WA 6100

A MACRI 

PARTNER

PERTH 

DATED TillS 16TH DAY OF NOVEMBER 2017.
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14.2 (2017/MINUTE NO 0005) APPOINTMENT OF INTERNAL 
AUDITOR

Author(s) 

Attachments

N Mauricio 

1. Strategic Internal Audit Plan

RECOMMENDATION

That Council appoint Deloitte for delivery of internal audit services to 30 

June 2019, in line with the time span of the City’s Strategic Internal 

Audit Plan.

COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION 

MOVED Cr C Reeve-Fowkes SECONDED Cr S Portelli

That the recommendation be adopted.

CARRIED 5/0

Background

Council appointed Deloitte to provide internal auditing services to the 

City in August 2011 on a four year contract and then extended it in 

2015 for another two years. The initial appointment followed a formal 

procurement quotation process, which invited submissions from 

suppliers on the WALGA Preferred Supply Panel for audit services. 

The Local Government (Audit) Regulations 1996 requires the audit 

committee to provide assistance to council in the process of selecting 
and appointing an auditor. Whilst this relates specifically to the 

appointment of the external auditor, the City also chooses to bring the 

appointment of the internal auditor to the audit committee for better 

governance. The terms of reference for the Audit & Strategic Finance 

Committee also require it to provide assistance to Council in the 

process of selecting and appointing an auditor.

Certain functions of the internal audit complement the external auditor’s 

role. As the external auditor plans for an effective audit they assess and 

determine whether to include outcomes from internal audit. All internal 

audit reports are referred to the audit committee for consideration.

The scope of the internal audit function is set by the audit committee 

(with input from the CEO & management) and the internal auditor 

reports functionally to the audit committee.
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Submission

N/A

Report

Internal auditing is an independent, objective assurance and consulting 

activity designed to add value and improve an organisation’s 

operations. It helps an organisation accomplish its objectives by 

bringing a systematic, disciplined approach to evaluate and improve the 

effectiveness of risk management, control, and governance processes.

The following table summarises the internal audit plan delivered by 
Deloitte over the contract term to date and where each audit 

assignment originated from:

Auditable Issues/areas Source Status

Fra <fcontro ssessment.m: 201-1in~~~~al Audit-! ComPlet~~;;~-~-/12 

~r~~~~:~:~~~~~~!;hain- 
................. 

---2 1-1...ln~~~~ai udft..--[;;~~I-~ted 20.~;;-~..; 
Exercise..of eiegated

-

horiiies
Executive i Completed 2012/13 

.....................................H_ 

Completed 2013/14Revenue Recogn ion(rates and 
...C?!~~E...~C?~.~~.~~) 
Audit salaried employee 

_t.i.I!l~~~~pi’::lg_p.~~s:!ig~~ 
Review implementation of fraud 

.!:i.~~_~9’::l_~g~r.!.:l~’::l!__..........__ 
Procurement Improvement

2011 Internal Audit 

Plan 

2011 Internal Audit 

Plan 

Audit Committee 

I Audit Plan

Completed 2013/14

Completed 2013/14 
..._.............---_........._-_....... 

Completed 2014/15

2015/16 Rates Setting Pro 

I 2016/17 Rates Setting-Pro

Council Completed 2015/16

Council Completed 2015/16

! Strategic Internal 

Project Management i Audit Plan 2016- I Completed 2016/17 

---------------I--~?~~-J---.- 
2017/18 Rates Setting Process, Council I Completed 2016/17 

I ;

At its July 2016 meeting, the Audit and Strategic Finance Committee 

adopted a three year strategic internal audit plan. The internal audit 

plan was developed through the City’s Risk Review Group (comprising 
cross functional managers), with input from the internal auditor. The 

audit planning was informed by the City’s operational and strategic risk 

registers, where assessed risk levels influenced the audit priorities.

Deloitte have commenced delivery of internal audit services required 
under the strategic internal plan with the completion of the Project 

Management and 2017-18 Rates Setting audits earlier this year. The
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completion of audits into the City’s records management practices and 

land development and developer contributions is planned for the 

2017 -2018 financial year (as attached).

It is therefore logical and makes sense to continue with Deloitte for the 

delivery of remaining audits required under the strategic internal audit 

plan to 30 June 2019.

Deloitte’s audit reports and the recommendations contained therein are 

always relevant and of very high quality. They consistently meet the 

stated objectives of each agreed terms of reference for the audit, 

ensuring value for money. The delivery of the City’s internal audits 

during Deloitte’s contract tenure has been overseen by the same audit 

manager and partner, enabling them to develop a very good 
understanding of the City’s operating environment and business 

activities. This has helped ensure that audit findings and 
recommendations are always appropriate, practical and workable for 

the City. 

Given the performance of Deloitte over the past six years, it is 

recommended that the City extend their contract for another two 

financial years. Deloitte continue to be preferred suppliers with WALGA 

on their supply panel for Audit Services.

Strategic Plans/Policy Implications

Leading & Listening

Deliver sustainable governance through transparent and robust policy 
and processes

Ensure sound long term financial management and deliver value for 

money

Budget/Financial Implications

The cost for internal audit assignments is determined at the time of 

agreeing the terms of reference. Hourly fees are set in accordance with 

the WALGA supply panel contract for Audit Services, which are subject 
to annual CPI increases.

The City’s budget includes an allocation for compliance/internal audit 

work of $50,000.

Legal Implications

N/A

1640f174 ~
Version: 4, Version Date: 20/04/2022
Document Set ID: 6859306



Item 14.2 ASFC 16/11/2017

Community Consultation

N/A

Risk Management Implications

Not appointing an internal auditor at this time would leave the City 
unable to deliver the requirements of the Council adopted Strategic 
Internal Audit Plan.

Advice to Proponent(s)/Submissioners

N/A

Implications of Section 3.18(3) Local Government Act, 1995

Nil
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CITY OF COCKBURN STRATEGIC INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN

Function/Process/Activity Reason Audit Scope Organlsational Context 2016.2017 2017.2018 2018.2019

Project Management High risk as Identified in the risk Consideration and testing of the design and effectiveness of
registers the project management procedures adopted at the City,
Project management across the and to propose any potential additional measures that may
organisation is inconsistent and inefficient assist the City in improving its project management skills
and has been highlighted in the and practices. The focus of this review covers the project Emerging Strategic &
Organisational review and employee management activities currently implemented and adopted Operational Risks
surveys. The likelihood of the risk by the City of Cockbum in managing its projects.
eventuating to the level of critical

consequences is frequent.

land Development and Substantial risk as Identified In the risk The review objective is to assess the adequacy of the
Developer Contributions registers management control framework relating to land

Accurate analysis is critical for the development projects and the City’s developer Contribution
feasibility of land Development and schemes. Audit will look at the extent to which the City is

Emerging Strategic &Projects funded through Developer complying with key legislative, planning scheme, policies,
Operational Risks

’oi
Contributions. procedures, guidelines, and other requirements in delivering

land development projects and administering the developer
contribution schemes.

Fleet Management Moderate risk as Identified In the risk The objective of the review is to assess the adequacy of the
registers management control framework and related risk
The City has a considerable investment in management strategies for the fleet management function,
its fleet assets and considerable resources including processes relating to the planning, organizing,
are consumed in operating and controlling, directing, communicating, and the management

Emerging Strategic &maintaining the fleet to ensure it services of vehicle assets. Extent to which the City’s is complying ..;
the City’s business requirements. with policies, procedures, guidelines, and with laws and

Operational Risks

Independent review will assist determine regulations pertaining to fleet management
the effectiveness of the fleet management
model.

Records Management High risk as Identified in the risk The purpose of this audit is to assess City of Cockburn’s
registers management of both paper and electronic records. The key
The effectiveness of the City’s ECM objectives are to determine if the City is meeting both its

system remains a recurring question and program and legislative requirements, and if it has struck the
thus a high priority and will immediately right balance in doing so. In The City of Cockburn, officers
follow the formation of the Knowledge and individuals all have responsibility for records
Management Plan document which will act management. The Information Services has functional
as a guide to which actions to take to responsibility for records management and supports Emerging Strategic &

vachieve the goal of best practices. There is departmental staff in meeting these records management Operational Risks
lack of audit trail for documents/external, responsibilities. The audit will review the operations of the
sent emails not saved in ECM. Non. central records management system which provide
compliance with processes and functional direction and support to business units.

requirements, Lack of awareness and

training, and no perceived consequences
and Increased Officer workloads.

Rates Model ’-Moderate nsk as identified in the risk To have reasonable assurance of theCity of Cockburn’s
registers rate setting model for the annual budget, with a focus on the
The City’s Budget Management Policy City’s objectives of applying a maximum equivalent rates

Emerging Strategic &requires that internal audit review the increase for residential improved properties using a ’1 v ’oi
annual rate setting process and the concession and of continuing to provide a benefit to

Operational Risks

outcomes, paying particular attention to the pensioners from the City’s rates incorporation strategy.
parameters used for applving the rates
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CITY OF COCKBURN STRATEGIC INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN

Function/Process/Activity Organlsational Context 2016.2017 2017.2018 2018.2019

Resources Allocation

~

Internal Communications

’Financial Managemeri Systems 
& Procedure

Reason 

concession scheme to residential improved i 

properties, ’

Moderate risk as Identified In the risk 

registers 
The Long Term Financial Plan is a critical 

planning document for ensuring the future 

financial sustainability of the City in terms 
of resources allocation, An independent 
review of the methodology and the basis of 

underlying assumptions used will support 
the governance over this exercise,

Moderate risk as identified in the risk 

registers 
Internal Communications across the 

organisation was also highlighted in the 

Organisational review and employee 

surveys. The likelihood of the risk 

eventuating to the level of critical 

consequences has been occurring 

routinely. There is currently no internal 
communication plan or policy.

Obligation under Section 5(2)@ of the 
Local Government (Financial 
Management) Regulations 1996 

Requires the Chief Executive Officer to 

undertake a review of the appropriateness 
and effectiveness of the financial 

management systems and procedures of 

the Local Government regularly (and not 
less than once in every four financial 

years) and report to the Local Government 

the resu~s of those reviews.

Audit Scope

The objective for this audit is to assess the level of 

compliance and alignment of the City’s L TFP with the DLGC 

Strategic Planning Framework. The review will also look at 

how well the L TFP integrates with and informs the City’s 
other financial planning processes including the corporate 
business plan, annual business plan and annual budget. 

Improvement opportunities are to be identified.

Review of the top down communication from the Executive 

to their direct reports and heads of departments, and the 

cascade of information by Strategic Managers to their direct 

reports and then on to all staff across their departments. 
Lateral communication across departments. The interface 

for staff who wish to communicate internally or seek advice 

on intemal communication. Communication around change 

programmes and new initiatives. The appropriate use of 

email and the storing of information electronically. 
Information sharing across the whole organisation inclusive 

of Elected Members. The communication skills and 

practices of managers and key communicators. The 

effectiveness of the current main communication channels.

Review effectiveness an’d appropriateness of collection, 
custody and security of all money owing or held by the City. 
Maintenance and security of the financial records in specific 
to accounting for municipal or trust, revenue received or 

receivable, expenses paid or payable, assets and liabilities, 
and authorisation for the incurring of liabilities and the 

making of payments. Maintenance of payroll, stock control 

and costing records, preparation of budgets, budget 
reviews, accounts and reports required by the Act or the 

regulations.

Emerging Strategic & 

Operational Risks
-.j

Emerging Strategic & 

Operational Risks
"j

Compliance Requirement -.j

/()(
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14.3 (2017/MINUTE NO 0006) PERFORMANCE REVIEW OF 
MONETARY & NON-MONETARY INVESTMENTS FOR THE 

FINANCIAL YEAR 2016-2017

Author(s) 

Attachments

S Downing 

N/A

RECOMMENDATION

That Council receive the information.

COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION 

MOVED Cr C Reeve-Fowkes SECONDED Cr S Portelli

That the recommendation be adopted.

CARRIED 5/0

Background

Council Policy SFCS1 ’Investments’ Clause 5.2 requires:

An annual report on the perfonnance of the investment portfolio 
will be submitted to Council outlining the perfonnance of the 

portfolio for the financial year."

Submission

N/A

Report

As per the Investments Policy SFCS1, the following report is divided 

into two parts. The first part is a report on cash investments held by the 

City and the second part is for non-cash investments.

Cash Investments

The City earned the following interest income during 2016-2017:

. Municipal/Reserve funds (MFR) 

. Rates - Administration Interest 

. Rates - Penalty Interest 

. Deferred Pension rates 

. ESL Interest 

. Total Interest income

$4.554m 

$0.350m 

$0.220m 

$0.019m 

$0.014m 

$5.157m
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Interest income from the surplus cash in the municipal fund and 

reserves (MFR) totalled $4.554m. The interest rates earned by the 
MFR over the twelve mo’nths varied from 3.05% in July 2016 to 2.73% 

in June 2017.

The interest income earned from the other four sources, Rates- 

Penalty Interest, Rates - Administration Interest, Deferred Pension 

Rates and ESL Interest, was not earned on the management of surplus 
cash but on outstanding debts due to the Council. The Local 

Government Act provides the heads of power for a council to impose 
interest on outstanding rates. Rates - Administration Interest and ESL 

Interest are charged at 3.5%, whilst Rates - Penalty Interest is charged 
at 7%. The Local Government Act has a maximum interest rate of 11 %. 

The Council has always elected to impose a lower interest rate. The 

rate for Deferred Pension Rates was 2.48% as at 30 June 2017.

All surplus funds are invested in accordance with the Local Government 

Act, associated regulations and Council’s Investment Policy. All cash 

investments/term deposits are compliant with Council’s Investment 

Policy.

The funds are invested in term deposits with APRA regulated financial 

institutions apart from two investments. The amendment to the 

regulations requiring Council’s only invest in term deposits with a 

maturity less than twelve was gazetted with an over-rider allowing 

existing investments with a maturity greater than twelve months and in 

non-term deposits to go to maturity. 

The first investment is for $2m in a CBA zero coupon senior bond 

paying 7.18%. The maturity date for the return of the $4m is January 
2018. (The additional $2m is the capitalised interest compounded over 

the life of the bond).

The second investment is the reverse mortgage backed security, 
Emerald. The original investment was $3m in three $1 m tranches. The 

City is currently receiving interest at the rates of 2.40%,2.75% and 

2.86% on the respective tranches. Additional ’step-up’ interest is also 

accruing on these three tranches at 0.9%, 1.5% and 1.9% respectively, 
which will be paid to the City upon maturity. The current balance of 

’step-up’ interest owing to the City is $271,079. The City received 

capital repayments of $54k in the past year, reducing the outstanding 
balance due for the investment to $2.65m.

Non-Cash Investments

The City has substantial freehold land on its balance sheet. As at the 

30 June 2017 that total was $83.4m. The makeup of the land comprises 

sumps, reserves, land available for sale, freehold parks and land on 

which council buildings and facilities occupy. The Land Management 

Strategy had identified a range of land assets that are surplus to
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requirement or land that could be made saleable with investment from 

Council. The concept is to monetise freehold land (where possible) so 

as to re-invest in income producing property to receive a stream of 

rental income. The Land Management Strategy provides for a 
reconciliation of the freehold land and that which is surplus to 

requirements.

Rental Income

The City received rental income for 2016-2017 on commercial 

properties and land.

Commercial Property ....................................J Income (Ex-GSn

h Caravan Park ......................$254,156

Cockburn Heaiih and Comm nity Faci iiy

Cockburn GP Super Clinic

$1,434,374 

$666,.364

... ....................._- ......................................_.. 

Youth Centre $148,517

Naval Base Shacks $457,121

.......... ..... ................._....... .. .. ..... .....................................H....... . 

Coogee Beach Caf $51,190

.... ...... .............................H........................................._.... 

Baptist Recreation Centre - Land Lease $26,425

.. ..... ........................_.........................................H....... 

Spearwood Dalmatinac - Land Lease $20,720

Cockburn Bowling Club - Land Lease $10,003

......;::::........._........................................................._..............._._.........._............................_....................................................... 

emergency Services Facility - DFES Sub-lease

............................_....... ... .........................................- 

12 Rivers Street, Bibra Lake
........................................1.._._.......

$57,750 

.. 

...$69;568 

.....................................$44;724
. .. .......................- ..................................................._-_...........- 

Port Coogee Marina Building (first floor)
........._...........i.._.......

I Otherland rentf-
............L.... 

,

$151,695

,......__........._................_....... ... ..................................- 

Total Rental Income $3,332,607

The net rental revenue from the Cockburn Health and Community 

Facility is quarantined within a financial reserve for the purpose of 

future maintenance requirements for the facility. This is to ensure that 

there is no future demand for the Municipal Fund to meet capital or 

operating maintenance costs. Once the level of funds meets the target, 
dividends will be paid to the municipal fund. The City also quarantines 
funds received from the Naval Base Shacks to meet the future capital 
maintenance needs of this unique asset.

Land Sales
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The City budgeted to settle on Lot 9003 Beeliar Drive for $9.3m (settled 
in March 2017) and Lot 803 Yangebup Road Yangebup $1.58m (settled 
in November 2016).

Whereas funds are generally allocated to income producing assets, the 

exception is the sale of land at Lot 9003 Beeliar Drive. The proceeds 
were allocated in the 2016-2017 Budget to the redevelopment of the 

Council Depot. The City is actively marketing a number of parcels of 

land but interest is disappointing though not unexpected in the current 

economic climate.

Strategic Plans/Policy Implications

Community, Lifestyle & Security

Provide for community facilities and infrastructure in a planned and 

sustainable manner

Create and maintain recreational, social and sports facilities and 

regional open space

Economic, Social & Environmental Responsibility

Create opportunities for community, business and industry to establish 

and thrive

Leading & Listening

Ensure sound long term financial management and deliver value for 

money

Provide for community and civic infrastructure in a planned and 

sustainable manner, including administration, operations and waste 

management

Budget/Financial Implications

N/A

Legal Implications

N/A

Community Consultation

N/A
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Risk Management Implications

This is an information report only on actions taken in the 2016-2017 
financial year. All cash investments and term deposits are in 

accordance with Council Policy. There are no risks as an outcome of 

this report. 

Advice to Proponent(s)/Submissioners

N/A

Implications of Section 3.18(3) Local Government Act, 1995

Nil
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15. ENGINEERING & WORKS DIVISION ISSUES

Nil

16. COMMUNITY SERVICES DIVISION ISSUES

Nil

17. EXECUTIVE DIVISION ISSUES

Nil

18. NEW BUSINESS OF AN URGENT NATURE INTRODUCED BY 

MEMBERS OR OFFICERS

Nil s

19. MATTERS TO BE NOTED FOR INVESTIGATION, WITHOUT 

DEBATE

Nil

20. CONFIDENTIAL BUSINESS

Nil

21. CLOSURE OF MEETING

The meeting closed at 6:29pm.
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ASFC 16/11/2017 CONFIDENTIAL Item 12.2 Attachment 1

Summary of Legal Proceedings commenced and/or responded to by the City

City of
Cost Cockburn are Monies

Status:
Lawyer

Subject Start Date
Law Firm

Cockbur Applicant
(known)

Summary / Current Status (as at date)
Prosecuting, Awarded

Active / Details/Progress/ Outcome
File No, & Lawyer

n Officer
(not incl. Defending or minus COC

Closed
GST,) Seeking Advice Costs

22615 Port Coogee 20/06/16 Peter Doug N/A $29,163.49 legal advice requested for the Pile Defect Seeking advice Active this is currently ongoing
Development Wittkuhn - Vickery remediation in Port Coogee Marina
Cockburn Road, McLeod’s

Coogee
3509 Lot 11 (No. 40) 31/08/2016 Peter Andrew Swire $110,902.01 Scheme requires Swire to cede land for Prosecuting the deed Active Currently in mediation. Mediated

Solomon Road, Wittkuhn - Trosic Cold Verde Drive extension, and also of agreement position appears to be achievable,
JandakotSwire McLeod’s Storage contribute towards constructing the road. which will secure the road land.

Cold Storage Ply LId The City secured conditions of Currently awaiting subdivision process
Ply LId development approval to ensure Scheme to occur.

obligations were met. Swire requested to
defer these arrangements, by entering in
to a deed of agreement. Whereas the City
could have compelled the conditions of

development approval at the time, it

agreed to enter the deed. Swires have

attempted to not comply with the deed,
forcing the City in to a statement of claim

against Swires via the Supreme Court.

39911 Termination of 1/10/2017 Jackson Gail Cockburn $5,000.00 Termination of Contract, Compilation of Defending Active Ongoing
Fratelle’s McDonald Bowman claim against Fratelle, defend claim
Architect against COC
Contract for

Cockburn

Bowling Club

EMT:71590 Winding up 28/07/16 Jackson Stuart Nil $11,000.00 Ongoing Seeking advice N/A Active Ongoing
85 SMRC McDonald Downing

Closed Cases

39984 SAT DR 30/09/2016 Denis Andrew Sultene & $27,299.40 SAT Appeal of Council’s decision to Defending Nil Closed SAT invited Council to reconsider its

273/2016 McLeod - Lefort Ors refuse Planning Application for Club decision and the application was
Sultane & Ors v McLeod’s Premises. Malter proceeded to approved by Council 13/02/2017.

City of Cockburn mediation.

4/13 Port

Kembla Drive,

Bibra Lake

SQM:7153 Development 31/10/2016 Jackson Rob Nil $22,846.79 Complete Seeking advice N/A Closed Agreement finalised
512 Agreement to McDonald Avard

FFC (Oval Area
& Buildina Area)

16076/CH Lot 25/01/17 Kott John Cockburn $16,527.90 Matter Finalised - 27 Mar 2017 - Prosecuting $65,886.10 Closed 27 Mar 17 - Successful Prosecution

931 (20)Chelydr Gunning - West Unlawfully commenced Building Works $75,000 penalty and $7414 costs
a Point, North Anne awarded to the City
Coogee Wood

39911 Knight. D - SAT 6/09/2016 Andrew Michael Cockburn $11,919.70 Court process is complete and provided Prosecuting Nil Closed Owners were approved to keep three
Review of Wadham Emery 28 days to pay CoC from the date of dogs within the property. Court imposed
Application to - conviction (19 June 2017) a fine of $500.00 and costs of $522.50

Keep Additional McLeod’s in relation to the matter, noting that

Dogs although there had been an offense, the
owners were attempting to resolve the
nuisance issue.
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Fratelle Group Architectural Services Contract for the Cockburn Bowling and 

Recreation Facility

After identifying significant Architectural Services performance issues with the Fratelle 

Group, the City engaged Bollig Architectural Services to undertake an independent Peer 

review of the design work completed by Fratelle. This review confirmed concerns and 

identified a significant number of deficiencies in the design with recommended 

rectifications.

The City then received legal advice from Jackson McDonald regarding the proposed 

termination of the Architectural and Consultancy Services contract number Cl00074 for the 

Cockburn Bowling and Recreation Facility with the Fratelle Group.

The Advice received was that the City had sufficient evidence and grounds to Terminate the 

Fratelle Group contract, due to a number of breaches predominantly related to timeliness 

and quality of design issues. The Contract was therefore terminated on the 24 July 2017.

Fratelle Group replied to the Termination Letter on the 28 July 2017 alleging that the City 

had repudiated the contract, accepting that repudiation and itself purporting to terminate 

the Contract between the parties. Therefore, neither party can be proceeding on the basis 

that there is a contract currently on foot.

The City, prior to the Termination of the contract, also received advice from Jackson 

McDonald regarding the City’s contractual rights to adjust the Percentage Based Fee in line 

with the contract, and whether the City could make a claim against the Fratelle Group. The 

City’s rights were confirmed and a letter was sent prior to the termination of the contract 

adjusting the fee, and outlining a financial claim by the City to the Fratelle Group. This 

enables the City to seek adjudication regarding the claim under the Construction Contracts 

Act.

A new architect called Sandover -Pinder was appointed following a Request For Quotation 

process to complete the remainder of the project.

The City has subsequently received a letter of Claim from Clyde and Co representing the 

Fratelle Group on the 13 October 2017. The City has therefore received additional advice 

regarding this Claim under the Construction Contracts Act from Jackson McDonald. 

Following this advice Jackson McDonald has been requested to provide a response 

defending the City against this claim as the contract has been terminated. If the claim 

proceeds to adjudication, then the City will also pursue the claim identified before the 

contract was terminated, and if feasible will recoup subsequent costs incurred by the City 

due to breaches of the Architectural Services contract by Fratelle Group.
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The City will also seek further advice regarding any other appropriate options, such as a 

commercial settlement in order to protect the City’s interests and provide the best outcome 

considering the risks and costs.
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